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TEN YEARS FINANCIAL TREND

YEAR ENDED 31st  March

2016 2017* 2018* 2019* 2020* 2021* 2022* 2023* 2024* 2025*

OPERATING RESULTS

Revenue from Operations 12,220.71 3,133.84 3,250.08 4,571.60 5767.27 10,850.83 13,299.57 12651.10 9,663.81 3,128.89

Other Income 178.55 70.59 87.64 77.63 326.61 8.67 3.82 4.92 3.97 3.97

Profit/(Loss)before depreciation 504.79 (395.87) (722.97) (789.71) (472.33) (752.82) (488.68) (361.01) (221.73) (204.97)

PBT before Exceptional Income 68.94 (785.42) (1,090.97) (1,146.15) (806.95) (1,047.09) (762.81) (583.83) (383.10) (95.98)

PBT After Exceptional Income 68.94 (785.42) (1,090.97) (1,146.15) (594.02) (741.72) (564.32) (385.34) (361.89) (95.98)

Profit/(Loss) after Tax 40.37 (767.85) (1,256.89) (1,181.90) (465.61) (798.41) (796.68) (450.86) (439.73) 41.49

Total Comprehensive Income - (770.39) (1,253.05) (1,190.25) (471.03) (793.10) (796.47) (451.94) (439.73) 277.71

SOURCES OF FUNDS

Paid up share capital 4,023.36 4,023.36 4,023.36 4,023.36 6158.99 6,158.99 6,158.99 6158.99 3,323.36 3,323.36

Reserves 424.25 (401.97) (1,655.02) (2,845.28) (3316.31) (4,109.41) (4,919.85) (5371.79) (2,975.90) (2,698.19)

Loan Funds 2,502.72 2,921.57 5,204.54 5,360.09 3834.94 3,093.38 1432.16 2442.23 1,667.85 2,259.34

Deferred Tax Liability/(Asset)Net (1,517.85) (1,535.42) (1,369.50) (1,333.75) (1462.16) (1,405.47) (1173.11) (1107.59) (1,029.74) 1,087.68

Total 5,432.48 5,007.54 6,203.38 5,204.42 5,215.46 3,737.49 1498.19 2121.84 985.57 3,972.19

APPLICATION OF FUNDS

Fixed Assets 2,455.65 2,065.53 1,688.49 1,343.22 1014.41 726.25 492.36 347.31 205.44 421.81

Investments 5.20 17.67 19.17 15.37 15.37 15.37 - - - -

Non Current/Current Assets-Net 2,971.63 2,924.34 4,495.72 3,845.83 4,185.68 2,995.87 1005.83 1774.53 780.14 3,550.38

Total 5,432.48 5,007.54 6,203.38 5,204.42 5,215.46 3,737.49 1498.19 2121.84 985.57 3,972.19

*- Figures for periods ending from 31st March 2017 are under Ind AS
*- �Paid up share capital as above includes Preference Share Capial `700 L upto 31st March 2019 and `2835.63 L from March 2020 and Nil from March 2024

(Rs. In lakhs)
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DIRECTORS – A BRIEF PROFILE
Mr. MANIMARAN - (DIN: 09707546)
Managing Director

Mr. GV Manimaran holds a diverse and impressive 
academic portfolio, including a B.Sc. in Agriculture, 
JAIIB, LL.B., and an MBA. He is Founder and Director 
of Sasvitha Home Finance Limited. In the trade 
union sector, Mr. GV Manimaran played a pivotal 
role as the General Secretary of both the All-India 
Nationalized Banks Officers Federation (AIN BOF) 
and Canara Bank Officers’ Association from 2012 to 
2021. He also served as the Senior Vice President of 
the All-India Bank Officers Confederation (AIBOC) 
during the same period. Further, Mr. GV Manimaran 
has been the President of the Canara Bank Officers 
Thrift and Credit Society Ltd. from 2001 to 2021, 
showcasing his leadership and commitment to 
the financial well-being of banking professionals. 
He has three decades of experience in banking. 
He was the, “Officer Director” - Dec 2010 to Dec 
2017. He was a part of Risk Management and HR 
Board Committees of Canara bank. TRADE UNION 
CREDENTIALS (Previous) General Secretary- All India 
Nationalized Bank Officers’ Federation General 
Secretary- Canara Bank Officers’ Association 
Senior Vice President - All India Bank Officers’ 
Confederation President - Canara Bank Officers’ 
Thrift & Credit Society Ltd. He was conferred with 
the Sri Vishweshwarayya Award in the Construction 
Industry by the Construction Academy at the award 
function held at Music Academy Hall, Chennai, on 
29th March 2025

Dr. Ennarasu Karunesan- (DIN: 00200432)
Non-Executive Independent Director

Dr. Ennarasu Karunesan is a veteran leader with 
over 35 years of experience in the infrastructure 
and maritime sector. His illustrious career spans 25 
years as President, Director & CEO, Chief Executive, 
and Chief Advisor in global infrastructure, Maritime, 
Ports, and Logistics. Dr. Karunesan has worked 
with prominent organizations at a Chief Executive 
level including Mumbai Port, Malaysia Ports, P&O 
Ports, Dubai Ports World, Jawaharlal Nehru Port 
Authority, Navi Mumbai, and Adani Ports & Special 
Economic Zone, Mundra, the largest port in India. 
Notably, he played a pivotal role in developing 
infrastructure at Westports, Malaysia (1996- 
2004), a major transshipment port in Asia, and 
developed three container terminals in Adani Ports, 
Mundra, Kattupalli Port, DP World Chennai and the 
development of the Vadhavan 

Port in Maharashtra. Dr. Karunesan holds a PhD 
in Maritime Management, a versatile mechanical 
engineer with an MBA from Jamnalal Bajaj Institute 
of Management, Mumbai. He is a multifaceted 
personality, passionate about health, safety, 
environmental, and green movement activities. 
A good team player with exceptional leadership 
skills. An accomplished endurance cyclist ridden 
30,000 km exploring heritage sites of India and 
neighbouring countries. Dr. Karunesan has received 
over 35 awards for his service to Indian and global 
ports, remarkably the Government of Tamil Nadu’s 
“Kappalotiya Tamizhan award”

Mr. Baskaran Srinivasan - (DIN: 01918525) 
Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. S Baskaran possesses over 20 years of post- 
qualification experience in strategic planning, land 
development and real estate, feasibility analysis, 
Profit Revenue Maximization. He has a Verifiable 
track record for the successful completion of large 
projects, developing partnerships and building 
positive rapport with vendors and clients and is 
versed in all land and real estate business and 
operations.
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Dr. Ravi Muthusamy-(DIN: 08066520)
Non-Executive Independent Director

Dr. Ravi Muthusamy has over three decades 
of diverse and distinguished service in law 
enforcement, beginning his career in the Indian 
Police Service (IPS) in 1991. He has demonstrated 
exceptional leadership, serving in various 
capacities across Tamil Nadu and at the national 
level. His work spans operational, administrative, 
and specialized roles in crime prevention, public 
order maintenance, and community policing and 
served immediately before his retirement on 31st 
May 2022, as Director General of Police (DGP) M. 
Ravi’s career exemplifies unwavering dedication 
to the service of the public and law enforcement 
excellence, marked by a commitment to continuous 
learning, proactive policing, and leadership in 
challenging roles. His tenure has left a lasting 
impact on public safety, law enforcement policy, 
and community engagement across Tamil Nadu 
and beyond.

Mr. Nallusamy Elangovan - (DIN:03293596) 
Non-Executive Independent Director

A law graduate from Madras law college in the year 
1991. He has three decades of experience at the 
Bar Council and advising large corporates in India 
and Abroad in diversified space of Finance sector/ 
Fertilizers/ petro chemical Companies on various 
projects / mergers/ take overs / legal structuring 
the Buiness Ventures accordance to the law. Sr legal 
consultant for US based Cyber security company 
having business operation in INDIA/ Middle east/ 
US and also Sr legal consultant for EOU in Food 
Sector.

Mrs. R S Isabella– (DIN: 06871120)
Non-Executive Independent Director

Smt. R. S. Isabella is a veteran banker with her 
experience spanning over three decades in the 
financial sector. She has an outstanding academic 
record to her credit being a Gold Medalist in B 
Com, besides holding a Masters’ Degree in Bank 
Management (MBM) and a master’s degree in 
business administration (MBA) from reputed 
institutions. She is also a certified Associate of 
Indian Institute of Banke` She began her career 
in Karur Vysya Bank in 1993 as an officer and 
has worked in almost key operational segments 
of banking specializing in corporate and project 
finance. She joined Repco Bank in the year 1999 
and worked in various capacities heading pivotal 
departments such as Credit, Accounts and Audit, 
Information Technology, Treasury and Funds 
Management, Human Resource, Legal, Inspection 
etc. She was instrumental in formulation of key 
policies, processes and systems in all functional 
areas of the bank. She took charge as Executive 
Director of the bank in the year 2015 and appointed 
as Managing Director of the bank in the year 
2019 by the Govt of India. She also held the 
position of Chairman and Managing Director of 
Repco Micro Finance Limited and Director of Repco 
Home Finance Limited, a listed company. During 
her tenure, the institutions exhibited exemplary 
growth in business and bottom line and the awards 
and accolades received by her bear testimony to 
it. She was conferred with “Woman leader of the 
year” among CEO s of Co-operative Banks in the 
year 2019-2020 and 2022-2023 besides several 
awards for furthering financial inclusion of women 
through SHG lending
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OPERATIONS AND PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, your Company 
recorded a turnover of ` 3,128.89 Lakhs, 
representing a 67% decline compared to the 
previous year. Despite the reduced revenue, 
the Company reported a Net Profit After Tax of  
` 41.49 Lakhs, a significant turnaround from the 
Net Loss of ` 439.73 Lakhs in the previous year.

This improvement in profitability is attributed to 
the implementation of robust systems, regular 
review mechanisms, and enhanced planning 
and execution strategies. The Company’s order 
book remains at a healthy level, providing a solid 
foundation for future growth.

There has also been notable progress in the timely 
collection of receivables from ongoing projects, 
contributing to improved cash flow. Additionally, 
prudent financial management helped keep finance 
costs under control.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

There has been no change in the nature of business 
during the financial year under review, and the 
Company continues to operate in the field of 
construction activities.

In line with the company’s long-term growth 
strategy and after receiving approval via postal 
ballot, we are pleased to announce the expansion 
of our business into additional sector. This 
diversification aims to enhance our overall business 
activities, drive greater revenue potential, and 
reduce exposure to sector-specific risks.

While we are entering new sectors, it is important 
to emphasize that our core business—Engineering, 
Procurement, and Construction will remain the 
foundation of our operations. The diversification 
will serve to complement and strengthen our 
existing business, rather than divert focus or 
resources from it. We remain fully committed to 

BOARD’S REPORT
Dear Members,

Your Director’s present the 77th Annual Report and the audited financial statements for the financial year  
ended 31st March 2025.

The financial performance of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2025 is summarized below:

FINANCIAL RESULTS:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Gross Income 3130.77 9667.78
Profit / Loss before interest and Depreciation 312.1 80.10
Finance Charges 299.07 301.83
Gross Profit / (Loss) 13.03 (221.73)
Depreciation and Amortization expenses 108.99 161.37
Profit/(loss) after exceptional item and before tax (95.98) (361.89)
Provision for Tax (137.46) 77.85
Net Profit/ (loss) after tax 41.49 (439.73)
Other Comprehensive Income /(Loss) 236.22 -
Total Comprehensive Income 277.71 (439.73)
Earnings per share 0.12 (1.32)
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maintaining our leadership and excellence  within 
the construction industry, while the new ventures 
will contribute to the broader strategic vision of the 
company.

We believe this step will provide a balanced 
approach to growth, positioning us for sustainable 
success in the coming year

DIVIDEND AND GENERAL RESERVE

Your Directors has not recommended any dividend 
for the financial year ended 31st March 2025. The 
Company has not transferred any amount to the 
general reserve.

SHARE CAPITAL

As on 31st March 2025, under review, your company 
has

 authorized Share Capital of ` 7200 Lakhs

•	 4,00,00,000 equity shares having face value of 
` 10 each amounting to `  4000 Lakhs

•	 32,00,000 Preference shares having face value 
of ` 100 each amounting to ` 3,200 Lakhs

 Paid-up capital of ` 3323.36 Lakhs.

During the year under review, your Company 
obtained approval from the members through 
a postal ballot notice dated 22nd February 2025 
for the issuance of 67,22,722 equity shares to 
promoters and non-promoters on a preferential 
basis, at a price of ` 40.05 (Rupees Forty and Five 
Paise only) per share, comprising a face value of ` 
10/- and a premium of `30.05 per share.

Subsequently, the Company allotted 16,49,840 
equity shares on 8th May 2025.

Following this allotment, the paid-up equity share 
capital increased to 3,48,83,438 equity shares, 
amounting to ` 34,88,34,380/- (Rupees Thirty-Four 
Crores Eighty-Eight Lakhs Thirty-Four Thousand 
Three Hundred and Eighty only).

DETAILS OF DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any Deposits 
covered under Section 73 of the Companies Act 
2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of 
Deposits) Rules, 2014.

ALTERATION OF MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION

During the financial year ended 31st March 2025 
there was no alteration of MOA / AOA. However, 
the Board of Directors, at their meeting held on 20th 
May 2025, recommended the following alterations 
to the Memorandum of Association of the Company, 
subject to the approval of the members:
•	 Subdivision of unissued preference shares of 

the Company;
•	 Reclassification of the authorised share capital 

of the Company; and
•	 Adoption of a new set of the Memorandum 

of Association in line with the applicable 
provisions.

Pursuant to the said recommendation, the 
members approved the aforementioned items 
through postal ballot on 25th July 2025.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR 
INVESTMENTS

During the year under review, your Company has 
neither extended any loans, guarantees nor made 
any investments covered under the provisions of 
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND OVERSIGHT

With a strategic focus on integrating risk 
management into the Company’s overall strategic 
and operational framework, the Board of Directors 
has established a robust mechanism for regular 
review and monitoring of key business risks. This 
process, implemented in close coordination with 
the management team, ensures that potential risks 
are proactively identified, assessed, and mitigated 
through appropriate control measures.

The Board engages in periodic discussions with 
the management to stay informed on emerging 
risks and the effectiveness of mitigation strategies, 
thereby enabling comprehensive risk oversight at 
the Board level.

In addition to operational controls, the Board has 
instituted comprehensive standards, processes, 
and frameworks to establish and maintain effective 
Internal Financial Controls (IFC), ensuring the 
Company’s financial operations are conducted 
responsibly and with due diligence.
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These controls are subject to continuous 
monitoring, regular management reviews, and 
self-assessment to ensure their effectiveness. The 
internal control framework is aligned with the 
Company’s business objectives and is periodically 
reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

In addition to operational controls, the Board has 
instituted comprehensive standards, processes, 
and frameworks to establish and maintain effective 
Internal Financial Controls (IFC), ensuring the 
Company’s financial operations are conducted 
responsibly and with due diligence.

These controls are subject to continuous 
monitoring, regular management reviews, and 
self-assessment to ensure their effectiveness. The 
internal control framework is aligned with the 
Company’s business objectives and is periodically 
reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee actively monitors the 
adequacy and performance of these controls. 
Significant observations are followed up, and 
necessary actions are taken and reported to the 
Committee for oversight.

The Company has adequate Internal Financial 
Controls in place with reference to its Financial 
Statements, ensuring compliance with applicable.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL 
PERSONNEL

As on 31st March 2025, the Board of Directors of 
the Company comprised Six Directors, consisting 
of one Executive Director, two Non-Executive 
Directors and three Independent Directors and, as 
tabled below:

Mr. G V Manimaran Chairman & 
Managing Director

Mr. Baskaran Non-Executive - 
Non- Independent

Dr. Ennarasu Karunesan Non-Executive - 
Non- Independent

M` R S Isabella Non-Executive 
-Independent

Mr. Nallusamy Elangovan Non-Executive 
-Independent 

Dr. Ravi Muthusamy Non-Executive 
-Independent

During the year under review, there are significant 
changes in the composition of board of directors 
which is given in the corporate governance report 
attached with the Annual report.

In pursuance of Section 152 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under Dr. 
Ennarasu Karunesan, Non-Executive Director (DIN 
00200432), of the Company is liable to retire by 
rotation, at the 77th Annual General Meeting and 
being eligible offers himself for reappointment.

The resolution seeking members approval for the 
re-appointment of Dr. Ennarasu Karunesan as a 
Director of the Company is included in the Notice 
convening the 77th Annual General Meeting.

The Company has received declarations from all the 
Independent Directors of the Company confirming 
that they meet the criteria of independence as 
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the SEBI (LODR) Regulations. In the opinion of 
the Board, the Independent Directors possess the 
requisite expertise and experience, and they fulfil 
the conditions specified in the Act and the Rules 
made thereunder and are independent of the 
management.

The details of program for familiarization of 
Independent Directors with the Company, nature 
of the industry in which the Company operates and 
related matters are uploaded on the website of the 
Company at the link https://coromandelengg.com/ 
policies .

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual 
evaluation of its own performance, working of its 
Committees and Individual Directors of the Company 
pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with the Rules framed thereunder and 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations. The performance was 
evaluated by the Board after seeking input from 
all the Directors on the basis of criteria such as the 
board composition and structure, effectiveness of 
board processes, information and functioning, etc.

Pursuant to the provisions of Schedule IV of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of the 
Listing Regulations, the Independent Directors 
of the Company had a separate meeting during 
the financial year without the attendance of 
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non-independent Director at its meeting held on 
26th March 2025, the performance of the Non- 
Independent Directors, the Board as a whole 
was evaluated, taking into account the views of 
Directors

During the year under review, the following 
changes took place in the office of Key Managerial 
Personnel:

•	 Mr Sabaretnam Singaram, Managing Director, 
resigned from his position with effect from 
25th October 2024. The Board appointed  
Mr G V Manimaran as Chairman and Managing 
Director withy effect from 12th November 2024

•	 Mr. Ravichandran Perumal, Chief Financial 
Officer, resigned from his position with effect 
from 15th November 2024. The Board appointed 
Mr. AK Babu Ismath Razack to the position with 
effect from 14th December 2024.

•	 Ms. M Akila, Company Secretary and 
Compliance Officer, resigned with effect from 
31st May 2024. She was replaced by Mr. Anto 
Abhinash, who assumed charge on 1st June 
2024 in the same position.

•	 Following the resignation of Mr. Anto Abhinash 
from the position of Company Secretary and 
Compliance Officer with effect from 31st 
October 2024, the Company appointed Ms. 
Sneha Jain to the role with effect from 31st 
January 2025.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

During the financial year ended 31st March 2025, 
6 (Six) Board Meetings were held. Details of the 
meetings held, and attendance of each Director are 
given in the Corporate Governance Report forming 
part of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, your Directors, to the best of 
their knowledge and ability confirm as under:

(a)	 in the preparation of the annual Financial 
Statements, the applicable accounting 
standards have been followed, and no material 
departures have been made from the same.

(b)	 The accounting policies mentioned in Note 
No. 3 of the Financial Statements have been 
selected and applied consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent so as to give a true and fair view 
of the state of affairs of the company as at 31st 
March 2025 and of the profit of the company.

(c)	 proper and sufficient care has been taken 
for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the 
assets of the company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities.

(d)	 the annual accounts of the company have been 
prepared on a going concern basis.

(e)	 the internal financial controls to be followed 
by the company have been laid down and that 
such internal financial controls are adequate 
and operating effectively;

(f)	 proper systems have been devised to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems are adequate and 
operating effectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Your Company has an Audit Committee pursuant to 
the requirements of the Act read with Rules framed 
thereunder and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The 
details relating to the same are given in the report 
on Corporate Governance forming part of this 
Report. During FY 2024-25, the recommendations 
of Audit Committee were duly accepted by the 
Board.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS 
WITH RELATED PARTIES

Throughout the year, all contracts, arrangements, 
or transactions involving related parties adhered 
to the stipulations outlined in the Companies Act, 
2013 and its associated regulations. Additionally, 
the Company takes necessary action and ensures 
compliance for any contracts, arrangements, or 
transactions with related parties that meet the 
criteria for materiality, in accordance with the 
Company’s policy on related party transactions 
and the applicable Section and Regulation. 
Furthermore, the details such transactions that 
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necessitated reporting in Form No. AOC-2, as per 
Section 134(3)(h) in conjunction with Section 188 of 
the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 forms part of the Boards’ report. All 
the transactions that were conducted by Company 
with its related parties during the financial year 
under review were at arm’s length basis.

The Policy on Related Party Transactions, as 
approved by the Board, is available on the 
Company’s website at https://coromandelengg. 
com/policies .

The details of all the transactions with Related 
Parties are provided in the accompanying financial 
statements.

VIGIL MECHANISM

In accordance with Section 177 of the Act and 
Regulation 22 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, the 
Company has formulated a Vigil Mechanism and 
has a whistle blower policy in place to address 
genuine concerns or grievances, if any, of the 
directors, vendors and employees. The whistle 
blower policy is available on the website of the 
Company at https://coromandelengg.com/policies

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

Your Company has adopted a code of conduct for 
prevention of “Insider Trading” as mandated by the 
SEBI and same is available on the website of the 
Company: https://coromandelengg.com/policies. 
Your Company’s Audit Committee monitors 
implementation of said Policy.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has in place a Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee in terms of the 
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
the rules made there under and Regulation 19 of 
the SEBI (LODR) Regulations. The details relating to 
the Committee are given in the report on corporate 
governance forming part of this report.

The Board has accepted the recommendations of 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 
there were no incidences of deviation from such 
recommendations during the financial year under 
review.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Company has in place a Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee in terms of the 
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
the rules made there under and Regulation 20 of 
the SEBI (LODR) Regulations. The details relating to 
the Committee are given in the report on corporate 
governance forming part of this report.

TECHNICAL COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors, recognizing the importance 
of focused sight on technical matters, has 
constituted a Technical Committee comprising 
Directors of the Company. The formation of this 
Committee is in accordance with the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013, and the SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations. The details relating to the Committee 
are given in the report on corporate governance 
forming part of this report.

REMUNERATION POLICY

In line with the recommendations of the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee, the Board of 
Directors has adopted a comprehensive policy for 
the selection, appointment, and remuneration of 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), Senior 
Management, and other employees.

This policy is designed in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 
2013, and Regulation 19 along with Part D of 
Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Its 
core objective is to ensure that the remuneration 
structure is reasonable, competitive, and aligned 
with the company’s performance. It aims to attract, 
retain, and motivate highly competent individuals 
while striking a balance between short-term and 
long-term goals to drive sustainable growth.

The policy is available for reference on the 
company’s official website at the following link: 
https://coromandelengg.com/policies. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The requirements for forming a CSR Committee 
and spending on CSR under Section 135 of the 
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Companies Act, 2013, do not apply to the Company 
for the Financial Year 2024-25.  

AUDIT

STATUTORY AUDIT

M/s. CNGSN & Associates LLP, Chartered 
Accountants, (FRN. 004915S/S200036) Chennai 
were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the 
Company at the 74th Annual General Meeting of the 
Company held on 3rd August 2022, to hold office for 
a term of 5 consecutive years until the conclusion 
of 79th Annual General Meeting of the Company.

M/s. CNGSN & Associates LLP, Chartered 
Accountants, has furnished a certificate of their 
eligibility and consent under section 139 and 141 of 
the Companies Act 2013 and the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules 2014 for their continuance 
as the Auditors of the company for the Financial 
Year 2025-26. In terms of the Listing Regulations, 
the Auditors have confirmed that they hold a valid 
certificate issued by the Peer Review Board of the 
ICAI.

The Independent Auditors’ Report(s) to the 
Members of the Company in respect of the Financial 
Statements for the Financial Year ended 31st March 
2025 form part of this Annual Report and contains 
no qualification or adverse remarks or disclaimer 
with regard to the financial statements for the year 
ended 31st March 2025.

STATUTORY AUDITORS’ - EMPHASIS OF MATTER:

The Statutory Auditors of the Company have 
included an Emphasis of Matter in their report 
for the financial year ended 31st March 2025. The 
said Emphasis of Matter does not constitute a 
qualification or modification of their opinion but 
has been included to draw attention to certain 
matters disclosed in the financial statements:

1.	 We draw attention to the outstanding statutory 
due to Government authorities. Delays were 
observed in payment of Goods and Service Tax 
amounting to Rs.1,08,93,788 including interest 
thereon and in payment of Tax Deducted at 
Source amounting to Rs. 54,64,310, both of 

which were subsequently paid.

2.	 The amount of Rs. 3,70,277 towards Employees’ 
Provident Fund contributions including interest 
remains unremitted by the company. Our 
opinion is not modified in this regard.

3.	 MSME dues including interest amounting to 
Rs. 7,26,40,633 remain unpaid beyond the 
due dates. Our opinion is not modified in this 
regard.

4.	 We draw attention to the outstanding long- 
term loan from IDFC First Bank. During FY 
2024–25, the loan repayments were not made 
as per the scheduled due dates and amounts 
specified in the repayment schedule and paid 
subsequently. Our opinion is not modified in 
this regard.

5.	 We draw attention to the revaluation of Plant 
& Machinery carried out during the quarter 
ended 31.03.2025, resulting in an increase of 
Rs. 3, 17,09,228 in the carrying value of assets 
and corresponding impact on Other Equity. Our 
opinion is not modified in this regard.

6.	 Due to the voluminous nature of transactions 
undertaken by the entity, we have not 
conducted comprehensive verification of the 
Goods and Services Tax (GST) and Input Tax 
Credit (ITC) claims. However, based on our 
review of the internal audit report and related 
records, we noted instances of mismatched 
credit, including cases where ITC pertaining 
to the State of Tamil Nadu was claimed under 
the GST registration of the State of Odisha. Our 
opinion is not modified in this regard.

Management’s response to the above emphasis of 
matters mentioned in the Auditors Report:

1.	 The Board notes the observation regarding 
delays in payment of Goods and Services Tax 
amounting to ` 1,08,93,788 (including interest) 
and Tax Deducted at Source amounting to ` 
54,64,310. The delays occurred due to a change 
in management. Both amounts have since been 
paid in full and have no continuing impact on 
the Company’s operations or financial position.
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2.	 With reference to the unremitted difference 
in Provident Fund contributions during FY 
2024–25, it was noted that the EPF portal 
does not provide an option to directly remit 
the differential amount. As per the guidance 
received from the EPFO, the difference is 
required to be remitted under the relevant 
heads for the respective month, followed by 
submission of the challan in the usual manner. 
The Company is in the process of completing 
this remittance, and the differential amount will 
be paid within the current month to regularize 
the same.

3.	 With reference to the observation regarding 
dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
(MSMEs) amounting to ̀  7,26,40,633 (including 
interest), the delay in payments has primarily 
been due to temporary cash flow constraints, 
operational delays and differences in invoice 
reconciliation. However, the Company has duly 
recognized the outstanding amounts to MSME 
in its books of accounts, in accordance with 
the requirements of the MSMED Act, 2006. 
We are actively coordinating with the MSME 
vendors to resolve outstanding issues and are 
committed to clearing the dues in a phased 
manner. The Company remains fully committed 
to compliance with all statutory obligations 
and is strengthening internal controls to ensure 
timely payments to MSMEs in the future.

4.	 We confirm that all outstanding dues, including 
the accumulated interest, were subsequently 
cleared towards the end of the period. The 
delay in servicing the scheduled instalments 
has since been addressed, and the Company 
is taking necessary steps to ensure timely 
compliance with repayment obligations going 
forward.

5.	 The Board notes the revaluation of Plant & 
Machinery carried out during the quarter 
ended 31st March 2025 to ensure that the 
assets are reflected at their fair value in the 
financial statements. The valuation, based 
on an inspection of construction equipment 
including concrete mixers, generators, and bar 
bending machines located at the warehouse 

and stockyard, resulted in an increase of ` 
3,17,09,228 in the carrying value of assets with 
a corresponding impact on Other Equity. This 
disclosure is for information purposes only and 
does not affect the Company’s operational or 
financial position.

6.	 In October 2023, ITC of ̀  27,97,434/- pertaining 
to the Tamil Nadu GST registration was claimed 
under the Odisha GST registration, resulting 
in duplication. The error was due to a lapse 
in state- wise ITC reconciliation with GSTR-
2B. Corrective adjustments are being made 
in subsequent GST returns, and preventive 
measures include appointing a dedicated GST 
consultant and implementing GSTIN- specific 
monthly reconciliations.

DETAILS OF FRAUD

The Statutory Auditors of the Company have not 
reported any fraud as specified under Section 
143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

There have been no instances of fraud reported by 
the Auditors under Section 143(12) of the Act and 
Rules framed thereunder either to the Company or 
to the Central Government during FY 2024-25.

COST AUDIT

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and 
Audit) Rules, 2014, Your directors, based on the 
recommendation of the Audit Committee and on 
subsequent approval of the shareholders at their 
Annual General Meeting held on 27th September 
2024, has appointed M/s. D A R & Co., Cost 
Accountants as the Cost Auditor of the Company 
for the Financial Year 2024-25 on a remuneration 
of `75,000/- (Rupees Seventy-Five Thousand only)

Further it is noted that the provisions relating to 
the appointment of a Cost Auditor under Section 
148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
applicable rules are not applicable to the Company 
for the Financial Year 2025–26. Accordingly, no 
appointment of Cost Auditor is proposed for the 
said financial year, and no resolution in this regard 
is included in the Notice convening the 77th Annual 
General Meeting.
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SECRETARIAL AUDITOR, SECRETARIAL AUDIT 
REPORT

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014, the Company had appointed M` Vidhya 
Sivakumar of M/s. Vidhya & Associates, Company 
Secretaries, Chennai to conduct the Secretarial 
Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-
25. The Secretarial Audit Report is enclosed as 
Annexure 3.

The Secretarial auditor has issued the audit report 
with an Observation. The Observation is as follows:

 �There was a delay in the submission of the 
Statement on the impact of Audit Qualification 
in the prescribed format along with the audited 
financial results for the quarter and year ended 
31st March 2024. The Company has subsequently 
filed a waiver application and has paid a penalty 
of Rs. 1,05,000 (excluding GST). The waiver 
application is currently under review by BSE 
Limited.

Management reply

The company has always compliant in filing of 
Financial Results as per the Regulation 33 of SEBI 
(LODR) 2015. Discrepancies in respect to delay 
in filing of the statement on the impact of audit 
qualification in the prescribed format for the 
financial year ended 31st March 2024 was an un-
intentional omission due to oversight and clerical 
error. Subsequently, the said discrepancy was 
corrected by the Company on the intimation by the 
BSE. 

With respect to the delay in submission of financial 
results for the quarter and year ended 31st  
March 2024, the Company has initiated a waiver 
application 2nd June 2024 under Case No. 205405 
and also paid the fine of ` 1,0,5000 (excluding GST) 
on 11th April 2025 and currently the waiver petition 
is pending for review before BSE Limited.

Management has taken corrective measures to 
strengthen internal compliance processes and 
ensure timely submissions in the future. We remain 
committed to maintain high standards of regulatory 
compliance and corporate governance.

As required under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, Your 
Company has obtained a certificate from the 
Practising Company Secretary that none of the 
Directors of the Board of the Company have been 
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 
continuing as Directors by MCA/SEBI and other 
Statutory Authorities. The said Certificate is forming 
part of this Report.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 204 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 24A of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the Board of Directors, at its 
meeting to be held on 13th  August 2025, approved 
and recommended the appointment of M/s Nithya 
Gokul & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary,  
(FCS No.9221, CP No. 10804) as the Secretarial 
Auditor of the Company for a term of five years from 
2025- 2026 to 2029-2030 subject to the approval 
of the shareholders at the ensuing 77th Annual 
General Meeting based on the written consent of 
the Secretarial Auditors and confirmation to the 
effect that they are eligible and not disqualified to 
be appointed as the Auditors of the Company in the 
terms of the provisions of the Listing Regulations, 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made 
thereunder. A detailed proposal for appointment 
of Secretarial auditor forms part of the Notice 
convening this AGM.

The Secretarial Auditors have also confirmed that 
they hold a valid certificate issued by the Peer 
Review Board of the ICSI .

INTERNAL AUDIT

Pursuant to Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Rule 13 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 and all other applicable provisions 
(including any amendment thereto) if any of the 
Companies Act, 2013, M/s. B Thiagarajan & Co., 
Chartered Accountants, Chennai were re-appointed 
as the Internal Auditors of the Company for the 
Financial Year 2025-2026.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
REPORT

The Management Discussion and Analysis for the 
year under review as stipulated under Regulation 
34(2) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, highlighting 
the business details, is attached and forms part of 
this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

In terms of Regulation 34 of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (LODR) Regulations, a 
report on Corporate Governance along with a 
Certificate from a Practicing Company Secretary 
confirming the compliance with the conditions of 
Corporate Governance is attached to this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SEXUAL 
HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) 
ACT, 2013

The Company has in place a prevention of Sexual 
Harassment and Grievance Handling Policy in line 
with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment of 
Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
& Redressal) Act, 2013.

An Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been 
set up to redress complaints received regarding 
sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, 
contractual, temporary and trainees) are covered 
under this policy.

During the year ended March 31, 2025:

1.	 the number of sexual harassment complaints 
received - Nil

2.	 the number of such complaints disposed – Nil

3.	 the number of cases pending for a period 
exceeding ninety days - Nil

STATEMENT ON MATERITY BENEFIT COMPLIANCE

Your Company continues to comply with the 
provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 and 
also confirms that relevant provisions were not 
applicable during the year under review.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY 
ABSORPTION, & FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 
AND OUTGO

The core business of the Company revolves around 
civil construction, which inherently involves low 
energy consumption. As such, the provisions 
relating to conservation of energy and technology 
absorption under Rule 8(3) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the 
Company.

A.  Conservation of energy;

  �the steps taken or impact on conservation of 
energy – Nil

  �the steps taken by the company for utilizing 
alternate sources of energy – Nil

  �the capital investment on energy conservation 
equipments – Nil

Nevertheless, the Company remains committed 
to sustainable construction practices and has 
voluntarily adopted several eco-friendly measures 
to minimize environmental impact and promote 
resource efficiency, including:

•	 Installation of energy-efficient LED lighting 
across project sites.

•	 Implementation of waste reuse practices, such 
as using filled cement bags and construction 
debris for ground stabilization.

•	 Utilization of broken bricks in non-structural 
applications like weathering courses.

•	 Repurposing scrap steel for drains, covers, and 
embedded supports in construction.

•	 Creative use of granite waste in anti-skid 
flooring, parking areas, and landscaping 
features.

•	 Application of Kota stone remnants in seating 
and decorative planters to avoid material 
wastage.

•	 Overall efforts to reduce construction 
waste, optimize material usage, and limit 
environmental emissions.

These initiatives reflect the Company’s proactive 
approach to environmental responsibility and its 
commitment to integrating sustainable practices 
into day-to-day operations.

B.  Technology absorption:

the efforts made towards technology 
absorption;

…

benefits derived like product  improve-
ment, cost reduction, product develop-
ment or import substitution;

…
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in case of imported technology (imported 
during the last three years reckoned from 
the beginning of the financial year)-

…

a) the details of technology imported; …
(b) the year of import; …
(c) whether the technology been fully 
absorbed;

…

(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where 
absorption PARTY has not taken place, and 
the reasons thereof; and

…

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research 
and Development.

…

C. During the year, the Company did not have any 
foreign exchange earnings and outgo.

SUBSIDIARIES / ASSOCIATES / JOINT VENTURES

During the year under review, your Company has 
no Subsidiary / Associate / Joint Venture.

ANNUAL RETURN

The details forming part of the annual return in 
the prescribed Form MGT-7 as per Section 92(3) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of 
the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014 is available at the website of https://
coromandelengg.com/annual-general-meeting .

DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES

As of March 31, 2025, 99.90% of the Company’s 
paid-up Equity Share Capital exists in dematerialized 
form, with the remaining 0.10% in physical form.

Your Company has updated the relevant forms 
in the website of the company regarding the 
procedure to convert their physical shares into 
dematerialized form.

The Company’s Registrar  and Share transfer Agent is 
KFin Technologies Limited having its office Selenium 
Building, Tower B, Plot 31-32, Nanakramguda, 
Serilingampally, Hyderabad, Rangareddi–500032.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company is in compliance with the Secretarial 
Standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors 
(SS-1) & Secretarial Standards on General Meetings 
(SS-2).

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES REMUNERATION

The ratio of remuneration of each Director to 
the median of employees’ remuneration as per 
Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
information relating to employees to be disclosed 
under Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment & 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014 is annexed to and forms part of this report.

GENERAL

Your directors state that no disclosure or reporting 
is required of the following matter as there were 
no transactions on these matters during the year 
under review:

•	 Issue of equity shares with differential rights.

•	 Issue of shares to employees of the Company 
under any scheme.

•	 No instance of fraud reported by the Auditors 
under Section 143 (12) of the Act.

•	 There are no proceedings pending under the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy code, 2016.

•	 There was no instance of one-time settlement 
with any Banks or financial institution.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS 
AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION BETWEEN THE 
END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND THE DATE OF 
THE REPORT

Subsequent to the end of the financial year, the 
Company has undertaken certain material actions 
that will create impact in its capital structure and 
financial position:

The Company proposed the issue of 66,72,722 
equity shares of face value ` 10/- each at a price 
of ` 40.05/- per share (including a premium 
of ` 30.05/-), on a preferential basis to certain 
identified allottees from both Promoter and Non- 
Promoter groups. The proposal was approved by 
the shareholders through postal ballot on March 
27, 2025. In-principle approval for the same was 
received from BSE Limited on April 23, 2025. 
Pursuant to the said approvals, the Company 
allotted 16,49,840 equity shares aggregating to  
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` 6,60,76,092.00 to the respective allottees, and 
the listing approval for the same from BSE Limited 
was received on July 16, 2025.

During the above-mentioned period, the Company 
also approved the sub-division of every 1 (one) 
preference share of face value Rs 100/- each into 10 
(ten) preference shares of face value ` 10/- each, in 
order to facilitate better capital structure flexibility.

Further, the Company reclassified its authorised 
share capital from ` 72,00,00,000/- (Rupees 
Seventy-Two Crores only), divided into 
4,00,00,000 equity shares of ` 10/- each and 
3,20,00,000 preference shares of ` 10/- each, to  
` 72,00,00,000/- divided into 5,20,00,000 equity 
shares of ` 10/- each and 2,00,00,000 preference 
shares of ̀  10/- each. Consequently, Clause V of the 
Memorandum of Association of the Company was 
amended accordingly.

PAYMENT OF FINE TO STOCK EXCHANGE

During the year under review, the Company 
inadvertently missed filing the outcome of the 
Board Meeting held on May 24, 2024, along with 
the Statement of Impact of Audit Qualification, 
as required under the SEBI (LODR) Regulations. 
Consequently, the Bombay Stock Exchange 
(BSE) raised a query and levied a penalty of  
` 1,05,000/- (excluding GST) for the said non- 
disclosure.

In line with the principles of good corporate 
governance and to uphold regulatory compliance 
standards, the Company has made the payment of 
the imposed penalty to the BSE. Simultaneously, 
the Company has also filed a waiver application 
with the Stock Exchange, which is currently under 
consideration.

The Company remains committed to ensuring 
strict compliance with all applicable regulatory 
requirements and is taking necessary steps to 
strengthen its internal compliance mechanisms to 
avoid such instances in the future.

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE 
REGULATORS OR COURTS

The Company has not received any significant 
material orders passed by the regulators or courts 
or tribunals impacting on the going concern status 
and company’s operations in future.
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FOR & ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Place: Chennai	 G V MANIMARAN
Date: 13th August, 2025	 CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR
	 DIN: 09707546
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FORM NO. AOC.2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms 

length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis - NIL

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:
Name(s) of the 

related party and 
nature of relationship

Nature of 
contracts

/arrangements
/Transactions

Duration of the 
contracts

/arrangements
/Transactions

Salient terms of 
the contracts or 
arrangements 
or transactions 
including     the 
value, if any

Date(s) of 
approval by 
the Board, if 

any

Amount 
paid as 

advances, 
if any

Accord Distillers 
and Brewers Private 
Limited

Promoter Group

Sale of Services 2024-25 Project 
Management 
Consultancy 
in respect to 
construction 

12-11-2024 NIL

Bhaarath Medical 
College and Hospital 
(a part of Shri Lakshmi 
Ammal Educational 
Trust)

Promoter Group

Sale of Services 2024-25 Project 
Management 
Consultancy 
in respect to 
construction 
of buildings for 
Hospital

12-08-2024 NIL

Bharath Institute of 
Higer Education and 
Research (BIHER)
(a part of Shri Lakshmi 
Ammal Educational 
Trust)

Promoter Group

Sale of Services 2024-25 PMC work for 
the proposed 
construction of 
Hospital extension 
block and new 
hostel block at 
Bharath University 
Campus, Chennai

12-08-2024 NIL

Sameera Estates 
Private Limited

Enterprise in which 
Director has significant 
influence

Sale of Services 2024-25 Work Order for 
construction 
of road and 
infrastructure 
works at Sameera 
Nellai – PH1

31-01-2025 NIL

FOR & ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Place: Chennai	 G V MANIMARAN
Date: 13th August, 2025	 CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR
	 DIN: 09707546
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The Members,
Coromandel Engineering Company Limited
CIN: L74910TN1947PLC000343 
Bascon Futura, New No. 10/2, Old No. 56L,
Venkatanarayana Road, T. Nagar,
Chennai – 600 017

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the 
compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 
the adherence to good corporate practices by 
Coromandel Engineering Company Limited (CIN: 
L74910TN1947PLC000343) hereinafter called the 
“Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a 
manner that provided me with a reasonable basis 
for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory 
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the company’s books, 
papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the Company and 
also the information provided by the Company, 
its officers, agents and authorized representatives 
during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby 
report that in my opinion, the Company has, 
during the audit period covering the financial 
year ended on 31st March 2025, complied with 
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also 
that the Company has proper Board-processes 
and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, 
in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute 
books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company for the financial 
year ended on 31st March 2025 according to the 
provisions of:

i)	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the 
rules made thereunder;

ii)	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 
(‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

iii)	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations 
and bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv)	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and 
the rules and regulations made thereunder 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-25

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, 
Overseas Direct Investment and External 
Commercial Borrowings;

v)	 The following Regulations and Guidelines 
prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): -

a.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of  
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure  
Requirements), 2015;

b.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

c.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
1992;

d.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure  
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

e.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat 
Equity) Regulations, 2021; - Not applicable 
to the Company during the audit period

f.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible  
Securities) Regulations, 2021; - Not 
applicable to the Company during the 
audit period

g.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the 
Companies Act and dealing with client; - 
Not applicable to the Company during the 
audit period

h.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 
2009; - Not applicable to the Company 
during the audit period and

i.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; -

	 Not applicable to the Company during the 
audit period and
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vi)	 other laws applicable to the company.

I have also examined compliance with the 
applicable clauses of the following:

(i)	 Secretarial Standards issued by The  
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii)	 The Listing Agreements entered into 
by the Company with Bombay Stock 
Exchange(s),

During the period under review the Company 
has complied with the provisions of the Act, SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI LODR Regulations”), and 
other relevant Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the 
following observations:

There was a delay in the submission of the 
Statement on the impact of Audit Qualification 
in the prescribed format along with the 
audited financial results for the quarter and 
year ended 31st March 2024. The Company 
has subsequently filed a waiver application 
and has paid a penalty of ₹1,05,000 (excluding 
GST). The waiver application is currently under 
review by BSE Limited.

I further report that

•	 The Board of Directors of the Company is 
duly constituted with a proper balance of 
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors 
and Independent Directors. The changes in 
the composition of the Board of Directors that 
took place during the year under review were 
carried out in compliance with the provisions 
of the Act

•	 Adequate notice is given to all directors to 
schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least 
seven days in advance, and a system exists for 
seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the 
meeting and for meaningful participation at 
the meeting.

I further report that there are adequate systems 
and processes in the company commensurate with 
the size and operations of the company to monitor 
and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 
regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period the 
following events occurred in pursuance of the 
above-referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, 
standards, etc.

•	 The Company had received approvals from 
BSE Limited under Regulation 31A of the SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 for reclassification 
of certain shareholders from the ‘Promoter 
and Promoter Group’ category to the ‘Public’ 
category:

a)	 On 28th January 2025, the Company received 
approval from BSE Limited, pursuant to 
applications made on 20th February 2024, 
for reclassification of certain shareholders 
from the ‘Promoter and Promoter Group’ 
category to the ‘Public’ category.

b)	 On 20th September 2024, the Company 
received approval from BSE Limited, 
pursuant to the application made in 17th 
February 2024, for reclassification of 
certain shareholders from the ‘Promoter 
and Promoter Group’ category to the 
‘Public’ category.

•	 The Board of directors in their meeting held 
on 22nd February 2025 had approved to issue 
67,22,722 equity shares on preferential basis 
and has also obtained approval of shareholders 
of the Company on 27th March 2025 through 
postal ballot.

•	 The Board of Directors, at their meeting held 
on 12th November 2024, 14th December 2024 
and 31st January 2025, approved change in 
the composition of the company’s Board of 
Directors.

For Vidhya & Associates
Practicing Company Secretary

Vidhya Sivakumar
A17092| C.P: 7282

Place: Chennai 	 Peer Review No: I2003TN553900
Date: 6th August, 2025	 UDIN: A017092G000951652
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For Vidhya & Associates
Practicing Company Secretary

Vidhya Sivakumar
A17092| C.P: 7282

Place: Chennai 	 Peer Review No: I2003TN553900
Date: 6th August, 2025	 UDIN: A017092G000951652

To

The Members,
Coromandel Engineering Company Limited
CIN: L74910TN1947PLC000343
Bascon Futura, New No. 10/2, Old No. 56L,
Venkatanarayana Road, T. Nagar,
Chennai – 600 017

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.	 Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the company. My respon-
sibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2.	 I have followed the audit practices and processes as appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on a test basis to 
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices I 
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.	 I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Account of the 
company.

4.	 Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules 
and regulations and happening of events etc.

5.	 The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is 
the responsibility of the management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on 
a test basis.

6.	 The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the 
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.
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STATEMENT OF EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION

A. �Details of employees who were paid remuneration in excess of Rs. 8.50 lakhs per month or Rs. 102 lakhs per annum dur-
ing 2024-25 as per Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 duly 
amended by the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2016 are as follows: NIL

B. �Details of  Employees employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of remuneration in that year 
which, in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, is in excess of that drawn by the manag-
ing director or whole-time director or manager and holds by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, not 
less than two percent of the equity shares of the company: NIL

C. �Statement showing particulars of top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn is given below:

Sl. 
No.

Name of the
Employee 

and Nature of 
Employment

Designation
Date of 

Commencement 
of Employment

Qualification Remuneration  
(in Rs.) Age

Last 
employment 
held by such 

employee 
before joining 
the company

Percentage of 
equity shares 
held by the 
employee in 
the company

Relationship 
of employee 
with Director

1
Velappan N
Contract

Chief Operating 
Officer

13-05-2022 B.E. 26,13,211 64 AVP - CECL NA NA

2
Sabaretnam 
Singaram
Permanent

Whole-time
Director/
Managing
Director

(Resigned with
effect from 25th
October 2024)

13-02-2024

Bachelors in 
Commerce from 
Loyola College, 
Chennai and 
Masters in Business 
Administration from 
Strayer University, UK

23,83,308 59
Winmeen 
Engineers 
Private Limited

NA NA

3
Ravichandran 
Perumal     
Permanent

Chief Financial 
Officer

(Resigned with
effect from 15th 
October 2024)

30-12-2023
Bachelor's Degree 
in Mathematics, CA 
(1991)

16,23,399 62

 Saveetha 
Institute of 
Medical and 
Technical 
Sciences

NA NA

4

Ganapathy A K                 
Permanent

Senior Manager 
– Project

(Resigned with 
effect from 7th 
July 
2025)

04-09-2019 DCE (1987) 13,50,327 57

Senthil 
Construction Pvt 
Ltd, Kalpakkam NA NA

5
Thirumalai K N          
Permanent

Assistant 
General 
Manager- 
Project & 
Systems

23-03-2009 BE (1988) 11,72,595 58 Eta Ascon, Dubai NA NA

6

Perumalrajan 
Seeni 
Permanent

Chief Technical 
Officer

23-10-2024 BE-Civil, LLB      9,87,001 44
ASGC 
Construction, 
Dubai

NA NA

7

R Ramya 
Nirmala       
Permanent

Chief Human 
Resources 
Officer

(Resigned with 
effect from 25th 
October 2024)

04-04-2024 SAP-HCM, MBA 9,65,832 45

Archi Structural 
Constructions 
India P Ltd, 
Coimbatore

NA NA
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Sl. 
No.

Name of the
Employee 

and Nature of 
Employment

Designation
Date of 

Commencement 
of Employment

Qualification Remuneration  
(in Rs.) Age

Last 
employment 
held by such 

employee 
before joining 
the company

Percentage of 
equity shares 
held by the 
employee in 
the company

Relationship 
of employee 
with Director

8

A K Babu 
Ismath Razack  
Permanent

CFO 20-11-2024 BSc(Agri) 
MBA(Finance) 8,37,445 63

Ali Alghanim 
& Sons Group 
General Trading 
& Contracting 
Co. Kuwait

NA NA

9
Sethupathy R
Permanent

Chief Operating 
Officer 25-11-2024 BE-Civil 8,07,797 63

Tamilnadu Slum 
Clearance Board

NA NA

10
Anita M                              
Permanent

Head - Design & 
Resources

(Resigned with 
effect from 30th 
June 2024)

04-04-2024 BE 7,21,993 53

Archi Structural 
Constructions 
India P Ltd, 
Coimbatore

NA NA

D.	� The details of remuneration during the year 2024-25 as per Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment 
& Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, duly amended by Companies (Appointment & 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2016 are as follows:
(i)	 Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees – 25.68
(ii)	 There were 67 employees (permanent employees-65 & non-permanent employees-2) on the  rolls of the 

Company as on 31st March, 2025.
(iii)	 Ratio of Remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company 

for the financial year –

Name and Designation Ratio

Mr. Sabaretnam Singaram, Managing Director (resigned with effect from 25th 
October 2024)

6.43

Mr. G V Manimaran, Chairman and Managing Director (appointed with effect from 
12th November 2024 without any remuneration except sitting fees)

-

Remuneration is not comparable as they were employed and appointed in the previous year and 
subsequently

(iv)	� Percentage increase in the remuneration of each Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial 
Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, in the financial year:

Name Designation % increase /
(decrease)

Ravichandran Perumal* Chief Financial Officer - Resigned with effect from 15th  
October 2024

…

Sabaretnam Singaram* Managing Director - Resigned with effect from 25th Oc-
tober 2024

…

Anto Abinash E* Company Secretary and Compliance Officer - Resigned 
with effect from 31st October 2024

…

A K Babu Ismath Razack  Chief Financial Officer – Appointed with effect from 14th 
December 2024

NIL

Sneha Jain Company Secretary and Compliance Officer – Appoint-
ed with effect from 31st January 2025

NIL

*Salary is not comparable as they were employed and appointed in the previous year and subsequently.
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For & on behalf of the Board

Place: Chennai		  GV MANIMARAN
Date: 13th August, 2025 		  Chairman and Managing Director
		  DIN: 09707546

(v)	 i.   �Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial 
personnel in  the last financial year – 14.56

	 ii.  �Percentile increase in the managerial remuneration- Managerial Remuneration is not comparable 
as they were appointed and employed only for part of the FY 2024-25

	 iii.  �The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the directors – Not 
Applicable

	 iv.  �The Company affirms that the remuneration is in compliance with its Remuneration policy.
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Indian Construction Sector – Overview and Way 
Forward

India’s construction sector, valued at approximately 
USD 1.4 trillion, is set to maintain strong 
momentum, fuelled by steady economic growth 
and sustained infrastructure investments. With 
real GDP projected to grow at 6.3% in FY 2025- 
26 and 6.4% in FY 2026-27, the sector will benefit 
from rising real incomes, moderate inflation, and 
an improving labour market, all of which support 
robust demand for housing, commercial spaces, 
and infrastructure.

Fiscal consolidation, with the budget deficit 
expected to narrow to 4.4% of GDP in FY 2025-26, 
combined with improved tax administration and 
streamlined regulatory processes, will strengthen 
investor confidence in the domestic market.

The sector’s way forward lies in leveraging 
opportunities in urban and semi-urban housing, 
expansion of logistics and the adoption of green 
and sustainable building practices. Policy reforms 
in land management, faster project approvals, and 
enhanced execution capabilities will be critical 
to unlocking its next phase of growth within the 
Indian market.

Industry Overview

The construction industry is a cornerstone of 
India’s development agenda, providing the physical 
framework for economic activity and social 
progress. It spans a wide spectrum of activities, 
from large-scale infrastructure such as highways, 
ports, and industrial corridors to residential, 
commercial, and institutional buildings. With 
urbanisation accelerating and cities expanding, the 
demand for housing, public utilities, and transport 
connectivity continues to grow steadily.

The industry also benefits from the increasing 
participation of private developers in industrial and 
warehousing facilities, educational and healthcare 
infrastructure, and renewable energy projects. At 
the same time, competition remains high, especially 
in the institutional and government contracting

space, where pricing pressures can be significant. 
The sector faces operational challenges such as raw 
material cost swings, skilled manpower gaps, and 

the need for faster adoption of mechanisation to 
meet tight deadlines.

Despite these challenges, the medium- to long- 
term outlook is favourable, with infrastructure 
development remaining a policy priority and urban 
expansion ensuring a steady flow of opportunities 
for capable and well-managed construction 
companies.

Company Overview – Legacy of 78 Years

Founded in 1947, Coromandel Engineering 
Company Limited (CECL) is one of India’s oldest 
and most respected construction companies, with 
a track record that spans more than seven decades. 
From its early beginnings in post-independence 
India to its current role in delivering complex, large- 
scale projects, CECL has consistently demonstrated 
engineering excellence, timely execution, and an 
unwavering commitment to quality.

Over the years, the Company has successfully 
executed a diverse project portfolio covering 
residential developments, commercial complexes, 
industrial plants, institutional buildings, and 
specialised infrastructure works. Many of these 
projects have become recognisable landmarks, 
reflecting CECL’s ability to adapt designs and 
construction methods to client needs while 
maintaining the highest standards of safety and 
durability.

CECL’s operations are strongly supported by:

•	 Strong project management capabilities, 
ensuring efficient coordination across design, 
procurement, and site execution.

•	 An experienced leadership team supported by 
a skilled and safety-conscious workforce.

•	 Integration of modern construction 
technologies such as mechanised equipment, 
prefabrication methods, and sustainable 
building practices.

•	 Long-standing client relationships, with a 
significant share of business coming from 
repeat customers in both public and private 
sectors.

The Company’s reputation is built not only on 
its technical capabilities but also on its ability to 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
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foster trust — delivering projects on schedule 
and within budget, even in challenging operating 
environments. With a blend of legacy strengths 
and a forward-looking approach, CECL is well- 
positioned to capitalise on emerging opportunities 
in India’s rapidly evolving construction landscape.

CECL’s Core Services & Offerings

CECL operates across a wide spectrum of 
construction and infrastructure domains, including:

Residential Flats & Joint Venture Projects

We design and develop high-quality residential 
flats, blending modern amenities with optimal 
space utilisation. Our joint venture projects bring 
together strategic partnerships to create premium 
housing solutions that align with evolving lifestyle 
needs.

Rural Housing Solutions

CECL provides durable and cost-effective housing 
tailored to rural communities, focusing on 
accessibility, climate resilience, and cultural 
relevance. Our designs aim to uplift living standards 
while maintaining affordability.

Urban Infrastructure Projects

From roads and drainage systems to public utilities, 
we deliver critical urban infrastructure that 
improves mobility, safety, and sustainability. These 
projects address the growing needs of expanding 
cities and contribute to long-term urban planning.

Industrial Infrastructure & Factory Spaces

We construct robust industrial units and factory 
spaces equipped for large-scale production and 
logistics. These facilities are built to comply with 
industry standards, ensuring operational efficiency 
and worker safety.

Commercial Building Structures

Our commercial projects include office complexes, 
retail outlets, and mixed-use developments 
designed for functionality and aesthetic appeal. We 
focus on energy efficiency and modern architectural 
trends to attract and retain businesses.

In addition to its core construction services, CECL 
also undertakes initiatives that contribute to the 
community. Recently, the Company constructed a 
shade structure and provided paving tiles for the 
student walkway at Avvai School in Tambaram, 

thereby supporting a safe and comfortable 
environment for students

Market & Industry Drivers 

Government Initiatives

The initiatives undertaken by CECL (Coromandel 
Engineering Company Limited) are closely 
aligned with several key government programs 
that are shaping India’s infrastructure and urban 
development landscape.

•	 Pradhan  Mantri  Awas  Yojana  (PMAY)  – 
expanding affordable housing

•	 Bharatmala & Sagarmala Projects – 
accelerating road and port connectivity

•	 Smart Cities Mission – enabling next-
generation urban development

Opportunities

Several factors are acting as strong growth catalysts 
for CECL’s operations. The ongoing trend of rapid 
urbanization is significantly increasing the demand 
for both residential and commercial spaces, 
providing a robust pipeline of opportunities for 
the construction sector. The adoption of modern 
technologies such as Building Information 
Modelling (BIM) and prefabrication techniques is 
also enhancing project speed, accuracy, and cost 
efficiency. Moreover, there is a growing emphasis 
on green buildings and sustainable construction 
practices, which aligns with CECL’s commitment to 
environmentally responsible development. These 
combined factors position CECL as a forward- 
thinking player in India’s infrastructure and real 
estate growth story.

Risks and Threats

•	 Raw Material Price Volatility – Fluctuations 
in the prices of cement, steel, and other 
construction materials can significantly affect 
project costs and profitability.

•	 Labour Availability and Productivity – 
Shortages of skilled and semi-skilled manpower, 
particularly during peak demand, may cause 
execution delays.

•	 Regulatory and Approval Delays – Delays in 
obtaining statutory clearances can disrupt 
timelines and increase project costs.

•	 Execution Delays and Cost Overruns – Site- 
specific challenges, design modifications, or 
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unforeseen conditions may result in extended 
schedules and budget overruns.

•	 Market Demand Fluctuations – Economic 
slowdowns or shifts in real estate demand 
patterns can affect the pipeline of new projects.

•	 Environmental, Health and Safety (EHS) Risks 
– Construction activities carry inherent safety 
hazards and environmental impact risks.

•	 Competition and Pricing Pressure – Intense 
competition, especially in tender-based 
projects, can lead to margin compression.

Mitigation Measures

The mitigation measures outlined correspond 
to the specific risks identified, addressing their 
potential impact effectively.

1.	 Strategic Procurement – Entering into long- 
term supply contracts, maintaining a diversified 
supplier base, and applying value engineering 
to optimise material usage.

2.	 Workforce Development – Retaining a trained 
in-house team, partnering with multiple labour 
contractors, and investing in skill enhancement 
programs.

3.	 Proactive Compliance Management – 
Maintaining strong relationships with 
regulatory bodies, ensuring timely submissions, 
and incorporating realistic approval timelines 
in project plans.

4.	 Robust Project Management – Using detailed 
scheduling, technology-enabled monitoring, 
and contingency planning to control delays and 
cost overruns.

5.	 Portfolio Diversification – Balancing exposure 
across residential, commercial, and industrial 
segments and targeting both private and public 
sector projects.

6.	 Environmental, Health and Safety Protocols 
– Enforcing strict safety and environmental 
standards, conducting regular training, and 
complying with statutory norms.

7.	 Value-Based Differentiation – Focusing on 
quality execution, adherence to deadlines, 
and relationship-driven client engagement to 
secure repeat orders.

Segment or product wise performance for the 
financial year 2024-2025:

	 (in lakhs)

Sales GM GM%

3,069 551.3 18%

Status of Order Book:

(in lakhs)

Estimated
Contract Value

Executed as on
31/03/2025

Order Book –
01/04/2025

27152 1763 25398

Internal Control & Governance 

CECL maintains a robust internal control system

supported by a dedicated Audit Committee that 
ensures:

•	 Compliance with statutory obligations

•	 Periodic review of audit reports and control 
mechanisms

•	 Timely updates on regulatory changes

Additionally, the Audit Committee ensures that the 
organization stays well-informed and responsive 
to changes in the regulatory landscape, enabling 
swift adaptation to new legal and compliance 
requirements. CECL’s governance structure is built 
on the core principles of transparency, financial 
prudence, and operational efficiency. These values 
are deeply embedded in the company’s decision- 
making processes and day-to-day operations, 
fostering a culture of integrity and trust.

Outlook – CECL’s Strategic Direction

With India’s construction market projected 
to reach an estimated $1.4 trillion by 2025, 
CECL is strategically positioned to harness this 
unprecedented growth potential. The company has 
laid out a clear and ambitious roadmap to expand 
its capabilities and market presence. Expansion 
into EPC services with integrated Architecture, 
Structural, HVAC, Electrical & Sanitary Solutions

Summary of Financial Results:

•	 Investment in BIM and Prefab technologies to 
improve turnaround and efficiency

•	 Targeting a turnover of `50 Crores by March 
2026



COROMANDEL ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2526

Looking ahead, CECL envisions transforming itself 
into a comprehensive one-stop construction 
solutions provider, catering to diverse client needs 
across the residential, commercial, and industrial 
sectors. By strengthening its footprint both within 
India and in select international markets, CECL 
is committed to delivering innovation, quality, 
and excellence at every stage of the construction 
lifecycle.

Summary of Financial Results:

` in lakhs
Particular FY 2024-25 % FY 2023-24 %

Revenue from Operations 3128.89 100.00 9663.81 100.00
Materials consumed and Sub con- 
tract Expenses

1505.20 48.11 7592.33 78.56

Salaries & Other Benefits 690.56 22.07 984.62 10.19
Other Expenses 622.92 19.90 1010.73 10.46
Finance Cost 299.07 9.56 301.83 3.12
Depreciation 108.99 3.48 161.37 1.67
Total Costs 3,226.74 103.12 10,050.88 104.00

Net Profit / (Loss)
` in lakhs

Particular 2024-25 2023-24
Total revenue 3130.77 9667.78
Profit/(Loss) before interest and tax (PBIT) 203.09 -81.27
Profit/(loss) before tax (PBT) -95.98 -361.89
PBT as % of revenue -3.07% -3.70%

Key Financial Ratios
Parameter 2024-

25
2023-24 Change (%) Comments

Debtors’ Turnover days 281 68 416%
Significant elongation in receivable 
days, indicating slower collections and 
stress in working capital cycle

Inventory Turnover times 3.1 7.37 -42%

Lower turnover is attributable to stra-
tegic stocking to ensure timely project 
execution and uninterrupted supply of 
materials

Interest Coverage Ratio Negative Negative -

Ratio remained subdued during the 
year; however, focused efforts to-
wards operational optimization & fi-
nancial restructuring 

Current Ratio 1 0.9 -0.1
Liquidity position shows steady im-
provement with current ratio moving 
closer to the ideal benchmark.

Debt Equity Ratio 11.19 20.99 -9.8
Reflects prudent financial manage-
ment and disciplined repayment plan-
ning.

Discussion on financial performance with respect 
to operations Income from operations:

During the year, the Company achieved revenue 
from Operations of ` 3128.89 lakhs as against  
` 9,663.81 lakhs in the previous year. Loss before 
Tax was at Rs 95.95 Lakhs as against loss of ̀  361.89 
Lakhs in the previous year:
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Parameter 2024-25 2023-24 Change (%) Comments
Operating Profit Margin (%)

0.4% -0.8% 0.12%
Operating margins turned 
positive owing to effective cost 
management initiatives and 
enhanced project monitoring.

Net Profit Margin (%)
1.30% -4.60% 5.90%

Profitability improved 
significantly, supported by 
stronger cost efficiencies and 
prudent debt management.

Net Worth

The net worth of the Company as at 31st March 2025 is improved to ` 625.17 Lakhs as compared to `347.46 
Lakhs as at 31st March 2024. 

Human Resources

The company believes that human capital is the key contributor for business growth and competitiveness. 
This includes not only the employees of the Company, but the skilled labor engaged at project sites, through 
sub-contracting.

During the year, the Company achieved turnover with an employee strength of 67 as on year-end, comprising 
65 permanent employees and 2 non-permanent employees, compared to 154 employees in the previous 
year. The Company retained its skilled workforce and effectively redeployed them to meet the requirements 
of orders under execution and projects in the pipeline.

FOR & ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Place: Chennai	 G V MANIMARAN
Date: 13th August, 2025	 CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR
	 DIN: 09707546
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In compliance with Regulation 34 read with Schedule 
V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing 
Regulations”), as amended, the Company hereby 
presents its report on Corporate Governance. This 
report outlines the governance practices followed 
by the Company and covers the matters specified in 
the aforementioned regulation and schedule.

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE

Coromandel Engineering Company Limited (CECL) 
is firmly committed to upholding the highest 
standards of Corporate Governance and business 
ethics. The Company adopts best practices in 
governance, ensuring these are followed in both 
letter and spirit.

At the core of CECL’s Corporate Governance policy, 
there are five fundamental principles:

•	 An independent and effective Board of Directors

•	 Robust	audit processes and transparent 
reporting

•	 High levels of transparency

•	 Maximization of shareholder value

•	 Fulfillment of social responsibilities

CECL’s governance framework is built on key 
pillars such as transparency, internal controls, 
risk management, effective communication (both 
internal and external), and stringent safety and 
health standards. The Company continually strives 
for excellence in governance by empowering 
responsible officers to implement broad policies 
and maintain adequate review mechanisms.

CECL is deeply committed to its core values — 
integrity, passion, responsibility, quality, and 
respect — which guide its interactions with all 
stakeholders. These values form the foundation of 
its ethical and governance practices, reinforcing its 
reputation as a responsible and forward-looking 
corporate entity.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

As on 31st March 2025, the Company’s Board of 
Directors of the Company has an optimal mix of 
6 ( Six) Directors consisting of 1 (one) Executive 
Director, 2 (Two) Non-Executive Directors and 3 
(Three) Non-Executive, Independent Directors 
including one independent woman director with 
knowledge and experience in different fields viz., 
Engineering, Manufacturing, Finance, Legal and 
Business Management to strengthen the focus 
and quality of discussion at the Board level. The 
composition of the Board is in conformity with the 
provisions of SEBI Listing regulations as well as the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Rules 
made there under.

The Board reviews its strength and composition 
from time to time to ensure that it remains aligned 
with the statutory as well as business requirements.

The Company has received the requisite 
declarations from its Independent Directors 
confirming that they meet the criteria of 
independence prescribed both under the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations 
and that they have registered themselves in the 
databank maintained by the Indian Institute of 
Corporate Affairs and the Independent Directors 
have passed/ are exempted from passing the Online 
Proficiency Self-Assessment Test, as applicable. The 
Board at its meeting held on 20th May 2025 has 
taken on record the declarations received from 
the Independent Directors. In the opinion of the 
Board, the Non-executive Independent Directors 
of the Company fulfil the conditions specified in 
the Listing Regulations and are independent of 
the Management. The Independent Directors are 
not entitled to stock options. The Directors, other 
than Independent Directors, are liable to retire by 
rotation.

As on 31st March 2025, the number of other 
directorships and the number of positions held as 
Member/Chairperson of Committees of the Board 
of Directors along with the names of the other listed 
entities wherein the Director holds directorships 
are as follows:

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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Name of the Director Number of 
Directorships/ 

(Chairmanship) 
in Companies 
including CEC

Number of 
Committee 

Memberships / 
(Chairmanships) 

in Companies 
including CEC

Name of the other 
Listed Entities where 
directorship is held

Category of 
Directorship

Mr. G V Manimaran 
Chairman and Managing 
Director*

2(1) 2(0) - -

Dr. Ennarasu Karunesan 
Non-Executive & Non- 
Independent Director*

2(0) 1(1) - -

Mr. Baskaran
Non-Executive & Non- 
Independent Director*

8(0) 1(0) - -

Dr. Ravi Muthusamy Non-
Executive &
-Independent Director*

7(0) 1(1) 1.	 Tulsyan Nec
Limited
2.	 Swelect Energy 
Systems Limited

Non- Executive 
Independent 
Director

Mrs. R S Isabella
Non-Executive &
-Independent Director**

1(0) 2(0) - -

Mr. Nallusamy Elangovan 
Non-Executive, Non- 
Independent Director 
(Redesignated to Non- 
Executive & Independent
with effect from 31st 
January 2025)

1(0) 1(0) - -

Mr. Sabaretnam Singaram 
Managing Director (With 
effect from 24th May 
2024) (Resigned with 
effect from 25th October 
2024)

2 (0) - - -

Mr. Raman Ramkumar, 
Managing Director 
(Resigned with effect 
from 13th April 2024)

- - - -

Mr. Muthiah Nagalingam 
Non-Executive, 
Independent Director 
(Resigned with effect 
from 21st January 2025)

1(0) - - -
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* �Appointed as Additional Director on 12th November 2024 and as Director with effect from 28th January 2025

** Appointed as Additional director on 31st January 2025 and as Director with effect from 27th March 2025

Notes:
1.	 None of the Directors hold directorships in more than 20 companies, of which directorships in public 

companies does not exceed 10 in line with the provisions of Section 165 of the Act.
2.	 Pursuant to the provisions of Regulations 17A(1) of the Listing Regulations, none of the Directors 

hold directorships in more than 7 listed entities and none of the Independent Directors of the Com-
pany hold the position of Independent Director in more than 7 listed companies.

3.	 No Director holds Membership of more than 10 Committees of Board nor is a chairperson of more 
than 5 Committees across Board, of all public limited companies.

4.	 No Alternate Director has been appointed for any Independent Director.
5.	 The information provided above pertains to the following Committees in accordance with the pro-

visions of Regulation 26(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations: (i) Audit Committee and (ii) Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee.

6.	 The Committee Memberships and Chairmanships above exclude Memberships and chairmanships 
in private companies, foreign companies, high value debt listed entities and in Section 8 companies.

7.	 None of the Directors of the Company are related to each other.

Core Skills / Expertise / Competencies available with the Board
The Board comprises of qualified members who bring in the required skills, competence and expertise 
that allow them to make effective contributions to the Board and its committees. The Board members are 
committed in ensuring that the Board acts in compliance with the highest standard of Corporate Governance. 
In the table below, the specific areas of focus or expertise of individual Board members have been highlighted. 
In the absence of a mark against a member’s name does not necessarily mean that the member does not 
possess the corresponding qualification or skill.

The core skills/ expertise/ competencies required in the Board in the context of the Company’s Businesses and 
sectors functioning effectively as identified by the Board of Directors of the Company are tabulated below:

Ms. Srinivasan Sridevi Non 
– Executive, Independent 
Director (Resigned with 
effect from 14th December 
2024)

1(0) - - -

Mr. Asir Raja Selvan Non-Ex-
ecutive,
Independent Director (Re-
signed with effect from 21st 
January 2025)

1(0) 2(1) TTI Enterprises Lim-
ited

Non- Execu-
tive Indepen-
dent Director

Name of the Director Number of 
Directorships/ 

(Chairmanship) 
in Companies 
including CEC

Number of 
Committee 

Memberships / 
(Chairmanships) 

in Companies 
including CEC

Name of the other 
Listed Entities where 
directorship is held

Category of 
Directorship
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Name of the Director Area of Expertise
Financial 
Expertise

Technology/ 
Industrial 
expertise

Leadership Board Service 
& Governance

Business 
Development

Mr. G V Manimaran, 
Chairman & Managing 
Director

    

Dr. Ennarasu Karunesan
Non-Executive & Non-
Independent

    

Mr. Baskaran, 
Non-Executive & Non-
Independent

    

Mr. Nallusamy Elangovan,  
Non-Executive & 
Independent

  

Mrs. R S Isabella,  
Non-Executive &  
Independent 

  

Dr. Ravi Muthusamy
Non-Executive & 
Independent

  

Changes in the Board during the year 2024 -2025

There were significant changes in the composition of the Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnels 
of the Company during the financial year 2024-2025. The changes are tabled below:

S.No Name of the Director Appointment/Change in Designation/
Resig- nation

Date of Appointment/ 
Change in Designation /

Resignation

1 Mr. Raman Ramkumar Resignation as Managing Director 13/04/2024

2 Mrs. Akila Resignation as Company Secretary &  
Compliance Officer

31/05/2024

3 Mr. Anto Abhinash Appointment as Company Secretary &  
Compliance Officer

01/06/2024

4 Mr. Sabaretnam Singaram Redesignated as Managing Director
27/09/2024

5 Mr. Sabaretnam Singaram Resigned as Managing Director
25/10/2024

6 Mr. Anto Abhinash Resigned as Company Secretary &  
Compliance Officer

31/10/2024

7 Mr. G V Manimaran Appointment as Additional Director 12/11/2024
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8 Dr. Ravi Muthusamy Appointment as Additional Director 12/11/2024
9 Mr. Baskaran Appointment as Additional Director 12/11/2024

10 Dr. Ennarasu Karunesan Appointment as Additional Director 12/11/2024

11 Mr. AK Babu Ismath 
Razack Appointed as Chief Financial officer 14/12/2024

12 Mr. Ravichandran Perumal Resigned as Chief Financial officer 15/11/2024

13 Ms. Sridevi Srinivasan Resigned as Independent Director 14/12/2024

14 Mr. Muthiah Nagalingam Resigned as Independent Director 21/01/2025

15 Dr. Ravi Muthusamy Appointed as Independent Director 28/01/2025
16 Mr. Baskaran Appointed as Director 28/01/2025
17 Dr. Ennarasu Karunesan Appointed as Director 28/01/2025

18 Mr. G V Manimaran Appointed as Chairman & Managing Direc-
tor

28/01/2025

19 Mr. Asir Raja Selvan Resigned as Independent Director 21/01/2025

20 Mrs. R S Isabella Appointed as Additional Director 31/01/2025

21 Mr. Nallusamy Elangovan Redesignated as Independent Director 31/01/2025

22 Mrs. Sneha Jain Appointed as Company Secretary & Compli-
ance officer

31/01/2025

23 Mrs. R S Isabella Appointed as Independent Director 27/03/2025
24 Mr. Nallusamy Elangovan Appointed as Independent Director 27/03/2025

Board Meetings

The Board has a formal schedule of matters reserved 
for its consideration and decision. The Board meets 
at least once in a quarter to review the Company’s 
quarterly performance and financial results, and 
additional meetings are held to address specific 
needs and business requirements of the Company. 
The agenda is circulated well in advance to the 
Board members. The items in the agenda are backed 
by structured and comprehensive background 
information to enable the Board to take appropriate 
decisions. In addition to the information required 
under Part A of Schedule II of Sub- Regulation 7 
of Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations, the 
Board is also kept informed of major events/items 
and approvals are taken wherever necessary for 
making investments, ensuring adequate availability 
of financial resources. The Board also reviews the 
Board Meeting minutes and financial statements 
and also takes on record the minutes of Committee 
meetings.

The Company has established proper systems to 
enable the Board to review the compliance reports

of all laws applicable to the company as well as to 
assess the steps taken to rectify instances of non- 
compliance, if any.

The facility of video conferencing or other audio- 
visual means are provided to facilitate participation 
of Directors, who are unable to attend the meeting 
physically.

During the financial year ended 31st March 2025, 
the Board of Directors met Six (06) times on 24th 
May 2024, 12th August 2024, 12th November 2024, 
14th December 2024, 31st January 2025 and 22nd 
February 2025. The maximum gap between any two 
meetings was less than one hundred and twenty 
days. A separate meeting of the Independent 
Directors was held on 26th March 2025 without 
the attendance of non-independent directors and 
members of the management as required under 
Regulation 25(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 
and Schedule IV of the Act to discuss the matters 
specified therein.

The dates of the Board meetings and attendance at 
the meetings are as follows:
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Sl. No. Date of Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors present
1 24-05-2024 5 5
2 12-08-2024 5 5
3 12-11-2024 8 7
4 14-12-2024 8 8
5 31-01-2025 6 6
6 22-02-2025 6 6

The Board has unbridled and complete access to any information within the Company. The members of the 
Board have complete freedom to express their opinion on the agenda items and can discuss any matter at 
the meetings with the permission of the Chairman. The Company places before the Board all those details as 
required under Part A of Schedule II of Sub - Regulation 7 of Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations. A tentative 
meetings calendar of the Board/ Committees is circulated well in advance to help members plan and ensure 
meaningful participation in meetings. Detailed and structured agenda notes are sent to the Directors. All the 
information required for decision making are incorporated in the agenda. Those that cannot be included in 
the agenda are tabled at the meeting and are taken up with the permission of the Chairman and with the 
unanimous consent of the Directors present at the meeting. The management appraises the Board on the 
overall performance of the company at every board meeting. Legal issues, write-offs, provisions, purchase 
and disposal of capital assets are all brought to the notice of the Board. The Board reviews the performance, 
approves capital expenditure, sets the strategy that the company should follow and ensures financial stability. 
The Board reviews and takes on record the actions taken by the company on all its decisions periodically. The 
Board provides leadership, strategic direction and exercises appropriate control to ensure that the company 
is managed in a manner that enhances the performance of the company.

Attendance of each Director at Board Meetings and at the previous Annual General Meeting (AGM):
Sl. No. Name No. of Board 

Meetings Held
No. of Board 

meetings enti-
tled to attend

No. of Board 
Meetings 
attended

Attendance at the 
AGM held on 27th 
September 2024

1 Mr. G V Manimaran 6 4 4 Not Applicable
2 Mr. Baskaran Srinivasan 6 4 4 Not Applicable
3 Dr. Ennarasu Karunesan 6 4 4 Not Applicable
4 Dr. Ravi Muthusamy 6 4 3 Not Applicable
5 Mr. Nallusamy Elangovan 6 6 6 Yes
6 Ms. R S Isabella 6 2 2 Not Applicable
7 Mr. Muthiah Nagalingam 6 4 4 Yes
8 Ms. Srinivasan Sridevi 6 4 4 Yes
9 Mr. Asir Raja Selvan 6 4 4 Yes

10 Mr. Sabaretnam Singaram 6 2 2 Yes
11 Mr. Ramkumar R 6 0 0 Not Applicable

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR  INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

On their appointment, Independent Directors are familiarized about the Company’s business and operations. 
Interactions with senior executives are facilitated to gather insight specific to the Company’s operations. 
Detailed presentations are made available to appraise the Company’s history, current business plan and 
strategies. As part of the familiarization programme, a handbook is provided to all Directors, including 
Independent Directors, at the time of their appointment. The handbook provides a snapshot to the Directors 
of their duties and responsibilities, rights, process of appointment and evaluation, compensation, Board and 
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Committee procedures and expectations of various 
stakeholders. Presentations are made by the senior 
management at regular intervals covering areas 
like operations, business environment, budget, 
strategy and risks involved. Updates on relevant 
statutory, regulatory changes encompassing 
important laws/ regulation applicable to the 
Company are circulated to Directors. The details 
of familiarization programmes as above are also 
disclosed on the website of the Company at the 
link: https://coromandelengg.com/policies

Resignation of Independent Directors:

During the Financial Year, Ms. Sridevi Srinivasan, 
Mr. Asir Raja Selvan, Mr. Muthiah Nagalingam, 
Independent Directors of the Company have 
resigned before the expiry of their tenure and there 
is no other material reasons for their resignation.

Board Procedure

The Directors are appointed based on their 
qualifications and experience in varied fields 
as well as the business needs of the Company. 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
recommends the appointment of Directors to the 
Board. At the time of induction on the Board of 
the Company, a letter of appointment along with 
an invitation to join the Board of the Company is 
given to the directors and a Directors’ handbook 
comprising a compendium of the role, powers and 
duties to be performed by a director is given to 
the new Director. Presentations are also made to 
the new Director regarding the business and other 
details of the Company.

Number of shares and convertible instruments 
held by non- executive directors

During the financial year ending 31st March 2025, 
none of the Directors held any shares in the 
Company. The Company has not issued any

convertible instruments. However, the Company 
undertook an issuance of equity shares through 
preferential allotment on 22nd February 2025, 
wherein Mr. Baskaran, Non-Executive Director, 
was one of the proposed allottees and the shares 
were subsequently allotted to him on 8th May 2025, 
falling in the financial year 2025–26.

Board Committees

The Board currently has four Committees viz., 
Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
and Technical Committee. The terms of reference 
of the Committees of the Board are in compliance 
with the applicable provisions of the Companies 
act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations and are 
also reviewed by the Board from time to time. The 
Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the 
Committees of the Board.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has  been  constituted 
as required under Section 177 of the Act and 
Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations which 
acts as a link between Management, the statutory 
and Internal Auditors and the Board. The Audit 
Committee comprises of all Independent Directors.

The Committee met Six (6) times during the 
financial year ended 31st March 2025 on 24th May 
2024, 12th August 2024, 12th November 2024, 14th 
December 2024, 31st January 2025 and 26th March 
2025 and the time gap between the two meetings 
did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. Mrs. 
Sneha Jain, Company Secretary of the Company, 
acts as the Secretary to the Committee with 
effect from 31st January 2025. The composition of 
the Audit Committee as on 31st March 2025 and 
details of attendance for the Meetings of the Audit 
Committee are as under:

Name of the  Member Designation
Total number 
of Meetings 

held

Total Meeting 
entitled to 
Attended

Total Meetings
Attended

Dr. Ravi Muthusamy*@ Chairperson 6 3 3
Mrs. R S Isabella$ Member 6 2 2
Mr. Nallusamy Elangovan# Member 6 6 6
Dr. Ennarasu Karunesan# Member 6 2 2

*Appointed as Member on 12th Nov 2024 and @Designated as Chairman on 31st Jan 2025

$ Appointed as Member on 31st Jan 2025
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The terms of reference, inter alia, comprises the 
following:

1.	 Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting 
process and the disclosure of its financial 
information to ensure that the financial 
statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

2.	 Recommendation for appointment, 
remuneration and terms of appointment of 
auditors of the listed entity;

3.	 Approval of payment to statutory auditors for 
any other services rendered by the statutory 
auditors;

4.	 Reviewing, with the management, the annual 
financial statements and auditor’s report 
thereon before submission to the board for 
approval;

5.	 Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly 
financial statements before submission to the 
board for approval;

6.	 Reviewing, with the management, the 
statement of uses / application of funds raised 
through an issue, the statement of funds 
utilized for purposes other than those stated in 
the offer document / prospectus / notice and 
the report submitted by the monitoring agency 
and making appropriate recommendations to 
the board to take up steps in this matter;

7.	 Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s 
independence and performance, and 
effectiveness of audit process;

8.	 Approval or any subsequent modification of 
transactions of the Company with related 
parties;

9.	 Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and 
investments;

10.	Valuation of undertakings or assets of the 
Company, wherever it is necessary;

11.	Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk 
management systems;

12.	Reviewing, with the management, performance 
of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of 
the internal control systems;

13.	Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit 
function, if any, including the structure of 
the internal audit department, staffing and 

seniority of the official heading the department, 
reporting structure coverage and frequency of 
internal audit;

14.	Discussion with internal auditors of any 
significant findings and follow up there on;

15.	Reviewing the findings of any internal 
investigations by the internal auditors into 
matters where there is suspected fraud or 
irregularity or a failure of internal control 
systems of a material nature and reporting the 
matter to the board;

16.	Discussion with statutory auditors before the 
audit commences, about the nature and scope 
of audit as well as post-audit discussion to 
ascertain any area of concern;

17.	To look the reasons for substantial faults in 
the payment to the depositors, debenture 
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment 
of declared dividends) and creditors;

18.	To review the functioning of the whistle blower 
mechanism;

19.	Approval of appointment of Chief Financial 
Officer after assessing the qualifications, 
experience and background, etc. of the 
candidate;

20.	Consider and comment on rationale, cost- 
benefits and impact of schemes involving 
merger, demerger, amalgamation etc., on the 
Company and its shareholders.

The Audit committee mandatorily reviews the 
following:

1.	 Management discussion and analysis of 
financial condition and results of operations; 

2.	 Management letters / letters of internal control 
weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

3.	 Internal audit reports relating to internal 
control weaknesses;

4.	 Appointment,    removal     and     terms     of

5.	 remuneration of the Internal auditors;

6.	 Quarterly statement of deviation(s) including 
report of monitoring agency and annual 
statement of funds utilized for purposes other 
than those stated in the offer document/ 
prospectus/notice
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Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee has been constituted as required under Section 178 of the Act and 
Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations and comprises of three Members out of which two members are 
Non-Executive Directors and    one Independent Director. An Independent Director acts as the Chairperson 
of the Committee.

Name of the Member Designation Total number of 
Meetings held

Total Meeting 
entitled to 
Attended

Total Meetings 
Attended

Dr. Ennarasu Karunesan*     Chairperson 1 1 1
Mr. Baskaran Srinivasan $ Member 1 1 0
Mrs. R S Isabella# Member 1 1 1

*Appointed as Member and Chairman on 12th Nov 2024
$ Appointed as Member on 12th Nov 2024
# Appointed as Member on 31st Jan 2025

The terms of reference, inter alia, comprises the following:

Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the Company including complaints related to transfer/ 
transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/ 
duplicate certificates, general meetings etc;

Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders;

Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various services being 
rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent;

Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum of 
unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by 
the shareholders of the company.

Mrs. Sneha Jain, Company Secretary, is the Compliance officer of the Company with effect from 31st Jan 2025.

During the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025, the Company did not receive any complaints from the 
investors and there were no complaints pending for action.

KFin Technologies Limited (Formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited), is the Company’s Registrar 
and Share Transfer Agent (RTA). Their contact details are available in the General Shareholder Information 
section of the Report.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was constituted pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations and comprises of three members out of which are 
all non-executive with two independent directors. An Independent Director acts as the Chairperson of the 
Committee.

During the Financial Year ended 31st March 2025, Four meetings of the Committee were held on 24th May 
2024, 12th November 2024, 14th December 2024 and 31st January 2025.
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The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as on 31st March 2025 and details of 
attendance for the Meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as under: 

Name of the Member Designation Total number 
of Meetings 

held

Total Meeting 
entitled to 
Attended

Total Meetings
Attended

Mrs. R S Isabella* Chairperson 4 0 0
Mr. Baskaran Srinivasan $ Member 4 2 2
Mr. Nallusamy Elangovan# Member 4 4 4

*Appointed as Member and Chairman on 31st January 2025
$ Appointed as Member on 12th November 2024
# Appointed as Member on 29th December 2023

The terms of reference, inter alia, comprises the following:

1.	 Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 
director and recommend to the board of directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the directors, 
key managerial personnel and other employees;

2.	 For every appointment of an independent director, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
shall evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and on the basis of such 
evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required of an independent director. The 
person recommended to the Board for appointment as an independent director shall have the capabilities 
identified in such description.

3.	 Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board of directors;

4.	 Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;

5.	 Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior 
management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the board of directors their 
appointment and removal.

6.	 Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the 
report of performance evaluation of independent directors.

7.	 Recommend to the board all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management personnel.

Criteria for Performance Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Regulations 17 and 25 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee has devised a criteria for the evaluation of the performance 
of Directors, including Independent Directors. A structured questionnaire was prepared after taking into 
consideration inputs received from the Directors, covering various aspects of the Board’s functioning such 
as adequacy of the composition of the Board and its Committees, execution and performance of specific 
duties, obligations and governance. An indicative list of factors on which evaluation was carried out includes 
Attendance, preparedness for the Meeting, staying updated on developments, active participation at the 
meetings, constructive contribution, engaging with and challenging the management team without being 
confrontational or obstructionist, speaking one’s mind and being objective.

The annual performance evaluation of Directors including the Chairperson, Board and its Committees viz., the 
Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee has 
been carried out. The Performance evaluation of Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board 
of Directors without participation of the independent directors who are subject to the evaluation.
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Remuneration Policy

The Board through the Nomination and Remuneration Committee adopted a Remuneration policy pursuant to 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. This Remuneration Policy provides the framework for remuneration 
of members of the Board of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees of the Company. In 
view of the current financial performance of the Company, no commission is payable to the Directors.

The Non-Executive Directors are entitled for sitting fees for Board / Committee meetings attended by them.

Remuneration for the year 

Remuneration to Executive Directors.

The details of the remuneration paid to the Executive directors of the company during the financial year 
2024-25 is as under,

(` In Lakhs)

  S.
No.

Particulars of Remuner-
ation

Mr. Sabaretnam 
Singaram (resigned as 
Managing Directors on 

25th October 2024)

Mr. Ramkumar
(resigned as Man-
aging Directors on 

13th April 2024)

Mr. G V Manimaran
(appointed w.e.f 12th 

November 2024)

1. Salary (Including Sitting 
Fees)

30.62 - 1.00*

2. Benefits, Perquisites & 
Allowances

- - -

3. Commission - - -
4. Sweat Equity - - -
5. Stock Option - - -
6. Bonus - - -
7. Pension - - -
8. Total 6.36 - 1.00

*Sitting Fees paid to Executive Directors during the Financial Year.

Remuneration to Independent /Non-Executive Directors including pecuniary relationship:

During FY 2024-25, there were no pecuniary relationships/ transactions with any non-executive directors with 
the Company, apart from receipt of sitting fees by the non-executive directors.

(` In Lakhs)

Name of the Non-executive Director Sitting fees
Mr. Nallusamy Elangovan 2.00
Mr. Muthiah Nagalingam (resigned as on 21st January 2025) 1.30
Mr. Asir Raja Selvan (resigned as on 21st January 2025) 1.35
Mr. S Sridevi (resigned as on 14th December 2024) 0.70
Dr. Ravi Muthusamy 1.65
Mr. Baskaran 1.05
Dr. Ennarasu Karunesan 2.05
Mrs. R S Isabella 0.95

Apart from that as discussed above, the Company does not pay any remuneration to its non-executive 
directors. There are no other fixed components/performance linked incentives payable to the Directors of 
the Company. There are no service contracts/notice period/severance fee payable except with the terms 
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and conditions as may be decided by the board of directors. No stock options are granted to any of the non- 
executive directors.

The Company’s total compensation for Key Managerial Personnel/other employees consists of:

Fixed compensation variable compensation in the form of annual incentive benefits work related facilities 
and perquisites

The remuneration policy applicable to the members of the Board and Key Managerial personnel/other 
employees is available in the Company’s website https://coromandelengg.com/policies

Technical Committee

The Board of Directors, recognizing the importance of focused oversight on technical matters, has constituted 
a Technical Committee comprising Directors of the Company on 12th November 2024. The formation of this 
Committee is in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI LODR Regulations”), with the objective of providing 
strategic guidance and informed recommendations on key technical decisions impacting the Company’s 
operations and growth.

Name of the Member Designation Total number of 
Meetings held

Total Meeting 
entitled to Attended

Total Meetings 
Attended

Mr. Baskaran Srinivasan Chairperson 1 1 0
Dr. Ennarasu Karunesan Member 1 1 1
Dr. Ravi Muthusamy Member 1 1 1

The terms of reference, inter alia, comprises the following:

1.	 Reviewing and advising on the design, planning, and execution of construction projects.

2.	 Ensuring quality control and adherence to industry standards and regulatory requirements.

3.	 Evaluating and mitigating technical risks in project execution and delivery timelines.

4.	 Overseeing the selection and performance of vendors, contractors, and suppliers.

5.	 Assessing the feasibility of adopting advanced construction technologies and innovative practices.

6.	 Monitoring the effective utilization of materials, resources, and workforce to optimize cost and efficiency.

7.	 Advising on strategies to address environmental, health, and safety compliance in construction operations.

8.	 Approving technical budgets and all technical contracts and projects, and ensuring alignment with project 
objectives.

9.	 Reviewing post-completion performance and identifying lessons learned for future projects

Risk Management Committee

As per Regulation 21 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, the 
Company is not required to constitute Risk Management Committee since it is not falling under the top 1000 
listed entities determined on the basis of market capitalization in BSE Limited. 
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Particulars of Senior Management as at March 31, 2025:

Name of the Senior Management Personnel Category
Mr. Abdul Kader Batcha Babu Ismath Razack Chief Financial Officer
Ms. Sneha Jain Company Secretary and Compliance officer
Mr. Sethupathy R Chief Operating Officer
Mr. Perumalrajan Seeni Chief Technical Officer
Mr. Ramakrishnan Vice President – New Ventures
Mr. GaneshKumar Associate Vice President – Technical & Operations

Meeting of Independent Directors

The Independent Directors of the Company had met on 26th March 2025 as required under Regulation 25 of 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and Schedule IV of the Act to discuss the matters specified therein to review the 
performance of non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole and the Chairman of the Company and 
had assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the company management 
and the Board.

General Body Meetings

The location, date and time of Annual General Meeting held during the last 3 years are given below: 

For the 
financial 

year ended 

Venue Date and time Details of special resolution passed

2024 76th Annual General 
Meeting was held through 

Video Conferencing/ 
Other Audio- Visual 

Means`

Friday, 27th 
September 2024 at 

11.00 A.M

Approval for Change in designation of  
Mr. Sabaretnam Singaram from Whole 
time Director and Chief Operating Officer 
to Managing Director of the Company

2023 75th Annual General 
Meeting was held through 

Video Conferencing/ 
Other Audio- Visual 

Means`

Friday, 14th July 2023 
at 10.00 A.M

No Special Resolutions were passed 

2022 74th Annual General 
Meeting was held through 

Video Conferencing/ 
Other Audio- Visual Means

Wednesday, 3rd 
August 2022 at 

09.30 A.M

No Special Resolutions were passed 

Postal Ballot

During the year, the Company sought approval of the shareholders by way of Postal ballot, the details of 
which are given below:

Postal Ballot 
Notice Date

Resolution 
date

Description of Special resolution passed Voting Results and 
Scrutinisers’ Report

28/03/2024 18/05/2024 Item no. 1: Appointment of Ms. S Sridevi (DIN: 
09634057) as an Independent Director of the 
Company.

https://drive.google.com/
file/d/1T3yoBaAcbBsT0nrV-
nGN68Rs-Z-w04OQ/view

Item no. 2: Appointment of  
Mr. M. Asir Raja Selvan (Din: 07586210) as an 
Independent Director of the Company.
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12/11/2024 28/01/2025 Item no. 4: Appointment of Dr. Ravi Muthusamy 
(DIN: 08066520) as Director (Non-Executive, 
Independent) of the Company.

https://drive.google.com/
file/d/14OCh2gffuont2ltBk_
g4uqdj5wql3sBa/view

Item no. 5: Appointment of Mr. G V Manimaran 
(DIN: 09707546) as Chairman & Managing 
Director of the Company and Fixation of 
remuneration.

22/02/2025 27/03/2025 Item no. 1: Issue of 67,22,722 Equity Shares on 
the Preferential basis to Promoter and Non-
Promoter Category.

https://drive.google.
com/file/d/1zvx95tq-
IYOtl7hBZxkqD-B3yulfvuws/
viewItem no. 2: Appointment of Ms. R Stella Isabella 

(DIN: 06871120) as a Director (Non-Executive 
Independent) of the Company.
Item no. 3: Appointment of Mr. Nallusamy 
Elangovan (DIN: 03293596) from Non-
Executive, Non-Independent Director to 
Non-executive, Independent Director of the 
Company.
Item no. 4: To make investments, give loans, 
guarantees and security in excess of limits 
specified under Section 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

Details of  voting  pattern for Special Resolution:

Postal 
Ballot 
Notice date 

Resolution 
Nos.

Votes in favour of the Resolution Votes against the Resolution
Number 
of 
Members 
voted

Number of 
valid Votes cast 
(shares)

% of total 
number of 
valid votes 
cast

Number of 
Members 
voted

Number 
of valid 
Votes 
cast 
(shares)

% of 
total 
number 
of valid 
votes 
cast

28/03/2024 Item No.1 14 2,43,67,389 99.99 2 26 0.00
Item No.2 14 2,43,67,389 99.99 2 26 0.00

12/11/2024 Item No.4 12 2,43,64,631 99.99 1 25 0.00
Item No.5 12 2,43,64,631 99.99 1 25 0.00

22/02/2025 Item No.1 8 64,59,952 99.99 2 51 0.00
Item No.2 14 2,43,66,234 99.99 1 50 0.00
Item No.3 13 2,43,66,233 99.99 2 51 0.00
Item No.4 11 2,43,66,226 99.99 4 58 0.00

	

All the resolutions were passed with the requisite majority.

Procedure adopted for Postal Ballot 
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a. E-voting facility 

In compliance with Regulation 44 of the Listing 
Regulations, Sections 108, 110, and other 
applicable provisions of the Act read with the Rules 
issued thereunder and the General Circulars issued 
in this regard by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
(“MCA”), the Company provided electronic voting 
facility to all its members.

The Company had engaged the services of KFin 
Technologies Limited (Formerly known as KFin 
Technologies Private Limited), for the purpose 
of providing electronic voting facility to all its 
members.

b. Circulation of Postal Ballot Notice

The Postal Ballot Notice was sent to the members in 
electronic form at their email addresses registered 
with the Depositories/Kfin Technologies Limited, 
the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent.

The Company also published a notice in the 
newspapers declaring the details of completion of 
dispatch, e-voting details, and other requirements 
in terms of the Act read with the Rules issued 
thereunder and the Secretarial Standards issued 
by ICSI. Voting rights were reckoned on the paid-up 
value of shares of the Company registered in the 
names of the shareholders as on the cut-off date. 
The notice of aforesaid Postal Ballots is available on 
the Company’s website at https://coromandelengg. 
com/postal-ballot .

c. Details of Scrutinizer

Mr. Balu Sridhar, M. No. F5869, CP No. 3550 of M/s. 
A K Jain & Associates, Company Secretaries, was 
appointed as Scrutinizer for the postal ballot notice 
dated 28th March 2024.

Apart from the above-mentioned Notice, Company 
appointed Ms. Vidhya Sivakumar (M. No. 17092, CP 
No. 7282), of M/s. Vidhya & Associates, Company 
Secretaries, as the Scrutinizer for carrying the 
process of scrutinizing the votes cast through 
electronic means in a fair and transparent manner.

d. Postal Ballot voting results

The Scrutinizer submitted their report to the 
Chairman & Managing Director, after the completion 
of scrutiny and the consolidated results of the voting 
by Postal Ballot were then announced. The voting 
results pursuant to Regulation 44(3) of the Listing 
Regulations and Section 108 of the Act read with 
the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014, and Scrutinizer’s Report on remote 
e-voting were placed on the Company’s website 
at https://coromandelengg. com/postal-ballot and 
were also available on the stock exchange.

The details of the previous postal ballots are 
available on the Company’s website at https://
coromandelengg.com/postal-ballot 

Credit Rating:

The Company haven’t obtained any credit rating or 
revised its rating during the Financial Year 2024-25.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Board has laid down a Code of Conduct 
(Code), for all the Board members and the Senior 
Management of the Company, and the code is 
posted on the website of the Company https://
coromandelengg.com/policies .

An annual declaration regarding compliance with 
the code is obtained from every person covered by 
the code of conduct and a certificate to this effect, 
signed by Mr. G V Manimaran, Managing Director, 
forms part of this report.

Prevention of Insider Trading

The Company has framed a code of conduct 
for prevention of insider trading based on SEBI 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
2015 as amended with a view to regulate trading 
in securities by the Directors and designated 
employees of the Company. This code is applicable 
to all Directors / Officers / Designated Employees. 
The code requires pre-clearance for dealing in 
the Company’s shares and prohibits the purchase 
or sale of Company’s shares by the Directors and 
the designated employees while in possession of 
Unpublished Price Sensitive Information (UPSI) 
in relation to the Company and during the period 
when the trading window is closed. All the Directors 
and Senior Management Personnel have confirmed 
compliance with the code.

The Board has also formulated a policy containing 
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procedures for conduct of inquiry in case of leakage 
of UPSI or suspected leakage of UPSI as a part of the 
Code. The Board had also reviewed the Company’s 
Code for practices and procedures for fair disclosure 
of unpublished price sensitive information and had 
also framed a policy for determination of ‘Legitimate 
Purposes’ as a part of this Code. The Company 
Secretary is responsible for implementation of the 
Code. The Company has in place an online system 
for monitoring the compliance of the Code by its 
designated employees.

Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has adopted the whistle blower 
mechanism as per the Listing Regulations with the 
objective to provide employees, customers and 
vendors, an avenue to raise concerns, in line with 
the Company’s commitment to the highest possible 
standards of ethical, moral and legal conduct of 
business, its commitment to open communication 
and to provide necessary safe guards for protection 
of employees from reprisals or victimization of 
whistle blowing in good faith. The Audit Committee 
reviews the functioning of whistle blower 
mechanism on a quarterly basis. The policy also 
lays down the process to be followed for dealing 
with complaints and in exceptional cases, also 
provides for direct appeal to the Chairman of the 
Audit Committee. The details of establishment of 
such mechanism are disclosed by the Company on 
its website and in the Board’s Report. It is hereby 
affirmed that no person has been denied access to 
the Audit Committee.

Mr. M. Prasanth, HR- Head has been appointed 
as the Ombudsperson, who will deal with the 
complaints received from Customers and Vendors 
and Mr. Perumalrajan Seeni, Chief Technical 
Officer of the Company has been appointed as the 
Ombudsperson who will deal with the complaints 
received from the Employees. The policy is 
available on the website of the Company at https:// 
www.coromandelengg.com/PDF/202324/Policies/ 
Policy_WhistleBlower_04Mar2024_new.pdf

Disclosures

Related Party Transactions

During the year under review,

i.	 All RPTs entered into by the Company were 
approved by the Audit Committee and were in 
the ordinary course of business and at arm’s 
length. The Audit Committee also granted prior 
omnibus approval for RPTs which would be 
in the ordinary course of business and on an 
arm’s length that are repetitive in nature and 
also for unforeseen transactions, in line with 
the Policy on Dealing with and Materiality of 
Related Party Transactions and the applicable 
provisions of the Act read with the Rules 
issued thereunder and the Listing Regulations 
(including any statutory modification(s) and/or 
re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in 
force).

ii.	 The Audit Committee reviewed on a quarterly 
basis, the details of RPTs, entered into by the 
Company pursuant to the omnibus approval 
granted.

iii.	 The Company has entered into material RPTs 
with the Companies/trust in which promoter 
group is interested.

iv.	 The RPTs undertaken by the Company were in 
compliance with the provisions set out in the 
Act read with the Rules issued thereunder and 
relevant provisions of the Listing Regulations.

v.	 The business rationale for the transactions 
with related parties and details of the same 
form part of the Board’s Report and Notes to 
financial statements of this Integrated Annual 
Report.

vi.	 Pursuant to Regulation 23(9) of the Listing 
Regulations, the Company had filed the half 
yearly reports on related party transactions 
with the stock exchanges on which the equity 
shares of the Company are listed.

Reclassification of the entity forming part of the 
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Promoter(s) Group of the Company

The Company, pursuant to requests received from the following persons or entities forming part of the 
Promoter Group, has processed their reclassification from the ‘Promoter Group’ category to the ‘Public’ 
category in accordance with the provisions of the Listing Regulations.

Name of entity Shares 
held

Approval 
from Board 
of Directors

Submission of 
application with the 

stock exchanges

Approval 
from stock 
exchange

Umayal R - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
A Vellayan - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Lalitha Vellayan - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
V Narayanan - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
V Arunachalam - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
A Venkatachalam - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Meyyammai Venkatachalam - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
MV. AR Meenakshi - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
M M Murugappan - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Meenakshi Murugappan - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
M M Veerappan - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
M M Muthiah - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
M A Alagappan - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Arun Alagappan - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
M A M Arunachalam - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
AM Meyyammai - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Lakshmi Chockalingam - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
M A Alagappan (Holds shares in the 
capacity as kartha of M A  Alagappan 
HUF)

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

M M Murugappan (Holds shares in the 
capacity as kartha of M M Muthiah HUF)

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

E.I.D. Parry (India) Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Parry Infrastructure Company Private 
Limited

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

Dare Ventures Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Ambadi Investments Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Parry Agro Industries Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Ambadi Enterprises Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Murugappa Management Services 
Limited

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

Cholamandalam Home Finance Limited 
(formerly known as Cholamandalam 
Distribution Services Limited)

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
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Name of entity Shares 
held

Approval 
from Board 
of Directors

Submission of 
application with the 

stock exchanges

Approval 
from stock 
exchange

Chola Insurance Distribution Services 
Private Limited (formerly known as Chola 
Insurance Services Private Limited)

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

Chola Business Services Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Kartik Investments Trust Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Cholamandalam Financial Holdings 
Limited (formerly known as TI Financial 
Holdings Limited)

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

Carborundum Universal Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Murugappa Educational & Medical 
Foundation

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

M A Alagappan Holdings Private Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
AMM Vellayan Sons P Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
MM Muthiah Sons Private Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
MM Muthiah Research Foundation - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
M A Murugappan Holdings LLP - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
MA.Alagappan Grand Children Trust 
(Arun Alagappan & A A Alagammai holds 
shares on behalf of the Trust)

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

Arun Murugappan Children's Trust (MAM 
Arunachalam & Sigapi Arunachalam 
holds shares on behalf of the Trust)

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

Sigapi Arunachalam (Holds shares in 
the capacity of trustee of Murugappan 
Arunachalam Children Trust)

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

M M Muthiah Family Trust (M M 
Murugappan and M M Muthiah holds 
shares on behalf of the Trust)

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

M M Veerappan Family Trust (M 
M Murugappan and Meenakshi 
Murugappan holds shares on behalf of 
the Trust)

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

M V Muthiah Family Trust (M M 
Venkatachalam and M V Muthiah holds 
shares on behalf of the Trust)

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

Lakshmi Venkatachalam Family Trust 
(M M Venkatachalam and Lakshmi 
Venkatachalam holds shares on behalf of 
the Trust)

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

Saraswathi Trust (M V Subbiah, S 
Vellayan, M V Seetha Subbiah holds on 
behalf of the Trust)

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
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Name of entity Shares 
held

Approval 
from Board 
of Directors

Submission of 
application with the 

stock exchanges

Approval 
from stock 
exchange

Shambho Trust (M V Subbiah, S Vellayan 
holds on behalf of the Trust)

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

M V Subramanian Family Trust (M M 
Venkatachalam and M V Subramanian 
holds shares on behalf of the Trust)

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

M V Subbiah (Holds shares in the capacity 
as Kartha of HUF)

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

Lakshmi Ramaswamy Family Trust (AA 
Alagammai & Lakshmi Ramaswamy holds 
shares on behalf of the trust)

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

AR Lakshmi Achi Trust - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
M V Subbiah - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
M V Seetha Subbiah - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Sivagami Natesan - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Valli Subbiah - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
M V Murugappan Jointly Mr. M A 
Alagappan and Mr. M M Murugappan

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

Valli Muthiah - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
S Vellayan - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Kanika Subbiah - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Karthik Subbiah - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Kabir Subbiah - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Valli Annamalai - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Vasantha Vellayan - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Nagalakshmi Arunachalam - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Anannya Lalitha Arunachalam - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Arun Venkatachalam - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
M Valliammai - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
M M Seethalakshmi - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Solachi Ramanathan - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
M M Venkatachalam - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Lakshmi Venkatachalam - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
M V Muthiah - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Niranthara Alamelu Jawahar - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
M V Subramanian - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Lakshmi Ramaswamy - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Valli Alagappan - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
A Keertika Unnamalai - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Master Pranav Alagappan - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
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Name of entity Shares 
held

Approval 
from Board 
of Directors

Submission of 
application with the 

stock exchanges

Approval 
from stock 
exchange

Master Dhruv Murugappan Arunachalam - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Vedhika Meyyammai Arunachalam - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Uma Ramanathan - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Bollampallay Rishika Reddy - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Ahana Lalitha Narayanan - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
A A Alagammai - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Sigapi Arunachalam - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Master Krishna Murugappan Muthiah - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
MA Alagappan (Holding in the capacity as 
Karta of AMM Arunachalam HUF)

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

M M Venkatachalam HUF - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Nila Lakshmi Muthiah - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Parry America Inc - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Parrys Investments Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Parrys Sugar Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Parry Agrochem Exports Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Coromandel International Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Alimtec S.A. - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Coromandel Chemicals Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
CFL Mauritius Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Kan and More Private Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Coromandel Australia Pty Ltd - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Sabero Organics America SA - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Sabero Argentina SA - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Sabero Organics Philippines Asia Inc. - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Coromandel Agronegocios De Mexico 
S.A. DE C.V.

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

Coromandel Brasil Ltda (Limited Liability 
Company)

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

Yanmar Coromandel Agrisolutions 
Private Limited

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

Tunisian Indian Fertilizer S.A., Tunisia - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Foskor (Pty) Limited, South Africa - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
US Nutraceuticals LLC - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Parry Sugars Refinery India Private 
Limited

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

Algavista Greentech Private Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
La Bella Botanics LLC - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
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Name of entity Shares 
held

Approval 
from Board 
of Directors

Submission of 
application with the 

stock exchanges

Approval 
from stock 
exchange

Coromandel International (Nigeria) 
Limited

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

Parry International DMCC - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
New Ambadi Estates Private Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Parry Enterprises India Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Parry Murray and co Ltd. UK - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Tube Investments of India Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Financiere C 10 - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Sedis, SAS - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Sedis Company Ltd. - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Sedis GmbH - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Great Cycles (Private) Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Creative Cycles (Private) Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Shanthi Gears Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Cholamandalam Securities Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Cholamandalam Investment and Finance 
Co. Limited

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

CherryTin Online Private Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Cholamandalam MS General Insurance 
Company Limited

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

Cholamandalam MS Risk Services Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Chola People and Marketing Services 
Private Limited (formerly known as Chola 
People Services Private Limited)

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

TI Absolute Concepts Private Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
CUMI America Inc. - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Net Access India limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Southern Energy Development 
Corporation Limited

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

Sterling Abrasives Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
CUMI (Australia) Pty Ltd - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
CUMI Middle East FZE - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
CUMI International Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Volszhsky Abrasives Works - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Foskor Zirconia Pty Limited, South Africa - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
CUMI Abrasives and Ceramics Company 
Ltd, China

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

CUMI Europe s.r.o - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Wendt (India) Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
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Name of entity Shares 
held

Approval 
from Board 
of Directors

Submission of 
application with the 

stock exchanges

Approval 
from stock 
exchange

Murugappa Morgan Thermal Ceramics 
Limited

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

CIRIA India Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Kadamane Estates Company - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Yelnoorkhan Group Estates - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Murugappa & Sons (M.V.MURUGAPPAN, 
M A Alagappan and M M Murugappan 
holds shares on behalf of the Firm)

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

AMM Foundation - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
M V Seetha Subbiah Benefit Trust (S 
Vellayan & A Vellayan holds shares on 
behalf of the Trust)

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

Valli Subbiah Benefit Trust (S Vellayan & 
A Vellayan holds shares on behalf of the 
Trust)

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

V S Bhairavi Trust (M V Subbiah & Kanika 
Subbiah holds shares on behalf of the 
Trust)

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

K S Shambhavi Trust (M V Subbiah & S 
Vellayan holds shares on behalf of the 
Trust)

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

Meenakshi Murugappan Family Trust 
(M M Murugappan and Meenakshi 
Murugappan holds shares on behalf of 
the Trust)

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

M M Venkatachalam Family Trust 
(M M Venkatachalam and Lakshmi 
Venkatachalam holds shares on behalf of 
the Trust)

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

M M Murugappan Family Trust (M 
M Murugappan and Meenakshi 
Murugappan holds shares on behalf of 
the Trust)

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

A Vellayan (Holds shares in the capacity 
as Karta of HUF)

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

A Venkatachalam (Holds shares in the 
capacity as Karta of HUF)

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

M A M Arunachalam (in the capacity of 
Karta of HUF)

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

Coromandel Mali Sasu, West Africa - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
CG Power and Industrial Solutions 
Limited

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

Pluss Advanced Technologies Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
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Name of entity Shares 
held

Approval 
from Board 
of Directors

Submission of 
application with the 

stock exchanges

Approval 
from stock 
exchange

Pluss Advanced Technologies B.V., 
Netherlands

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

CUMI AWUKO Abrasives GmbH - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Murugappa Water Technology and 
Solutions Private Limited

- 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24

Rhodius Abrasives GmbH - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
TI Clean Mobility Private Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Cellestial E-Mobility Private Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Cellestial E-Trac Private Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Payswiff Technologies Private Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Payswiff Solutions Private Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Payswiff Services Private Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Payswiff PTE Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
RHODIUS Nederland B.V. - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
RHODIUS S.A.R.L., France - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
RHODIUS Korea INC., South Korea - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
RHODIUS SOUTH AMERICA Ltda, Brazil - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
IPLTech Electric Private Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Moshine Electronics Private Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Lotus Surgicals Private Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
3XPER Innoventure Limited	 - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
MAVCO Investments Private Limited	 - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
TIVOLT Electric Vehicles Private Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Jayem Automotives Private Limited - 13/02/24 16/02/24 20/09/24
Vellachi Murugappan 1,81,755 27/11/23 19/02/24 28/01/25
Valli Arunachalam 1,60,956 27/11/23 19/02/24 28/01/25
Valli Arunachalam, as Karta of  
M V Murugappan HUF

68,910 27/11/23 19/02/24 28/01/25

The Company has made necessary disclosures on the material developments in this regard to the stock 
exchanges for public dissemination in terms of the Listing Regulations and the updated on its website under 
the Tab https://coromandelengg.com/stock-exchange-intimation. 

Statutory Compliances, Penalties and Strictures

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Stock Exchanges / SEBI and statutory authorities 
on all matters related to capital markets during the last three years. However, Company has been levied a 
penalty for a sum of ̀  1,05,000/- (exclusive of GST) by the Bombay Stock Exchange, for delay in submitting the 
financial statements in PDF format as per Regulation 30 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 within the prescribed 
timeline. Subsequently, the Company initiated a waiver application 2nd June 2024 under Case No. 205405 
and also paid the fine on 11th April 2025 and currently the waiver petition is pending for review before BSE 
Limited.
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Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory requirements:

During the Financial Year 2024-2025, the Company is in compliance with all the mandatory requirements as 
applicable to them.

Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risks and hedging activities

Exposure of the listed entity to commodity and commodity risks faced by the entity throughout the year: 
Total exposure of the listed entity to commodities – Nil

Exposure of the listed entity to various commodities - Nil

Commodity risks faced by the listed entity during the year and how they have been managed.

The Company is not exposed to any material commodity price or foreign exchange risks and no hedging 
activity is considered necessary to mitigate the said risks. Price escalation risk in materials used in ordinary 
course of business like Cement/ Steel etc. is mitigated through agreement with clients while signing the 
contracts.

Disclosure relating to fee paid to statutory auditor

During the year, the Company has made the following payments to M/s. CNGSN & Associates, Chartered 
Accountants, Statutory Auditors of the Company.

No services have been availed, and no payment has been made in respect of the firms/entities covered under 
network firm/network entity of which the Statutory Auditor is a part.

Particulars Nature of  Service  Payee details Amount (Rs. In Lakhs)

Statutory 
auditors

Statutory audit
CNGSN & Associates, Chartered 

Accountants

6.00
Tax audit 1.50

Other Services 1.00
Out of Pocket Expenses 0.35

Payment in respect of the non-audit services provided by the Statutory Auditors to the Company is made only 
with the approval of the Audit Committee as required under Section 144 of the Companies Act, 2013.

CEO and CFO Certification

In terms of Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations, the Chairman & Managing Director and Chief Financial 
Officer have given the annual certification on financial reporting and internal controls to the Board.

The Chairman & Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company have also given quarterly 
certification on financial results, while placing the financial results before the Board, in terms of Regulation 
33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Accordingly, the Chief 
Financial Officer and Managing Director have certified the Board, inter alia, the accuracy of financial statements 
and adequacy of internal controls for the financial reporting purpose for the year ended March 31, 2025.

Practicing Company Secretary’s certificate on corporate governance

A certificate from Ms. Vidhya Sivakumar of M/s. Vidhya & Associates, a Practicing Company Secretary (M.No.: 
A17092 and CoP No.: 7282), confirming compliance with Regulation 34(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations 
pertaining to Corporate Governance forms an integral part of this Report.
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Practicing Company Secretary’s certificate on the 
director’s disqualification

Pursuant to the provisions of the Schedule V 
of the Listing Regulations, the Company has 
obtained a certificate from Ms. Vidhya Sivakumar 
of M/s. Vidhya & Associates, a Practicing Company 
Secretary (M.No.: A17092 and CoP No.: 7282) 
confirming that none of the Directors of the Board 
of the Company have been debarred or disqualified 
from being appointed or continuing as Directors of 
Company by the SEBI / Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
or any other statutory authority. The Certificate 
forms part of this report.

Compliance with Corporate Governance Norms

The Company has complied with the mandatory 
requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance 
as stipulated in the Listing Regulations. The 
Company has submitted the compliance reports 
in the prescribed format to the stock exchange for 
every quarter during the Financial Year ended 31st 
March 2025. The certificate of compliance with the 
conditions of corporate governance as stipulated 
in Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 forms part of this Report.

The other non-mandatory requirements of the 
Listing Regulations to a certain extent have been 
adopted by the Company.

Means of Communication

Transparency and effective communication are 
fundamental elements of corporate governance 
which promotes stakeholder relationships. In 
contemplation of achieving that objective, the 
company employs multiple channels to maintain 
transparency and disseminate information to the 
shareholders and the investors.

As per the requirement of Regulation 47 of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the financial results and major 
announcements like Notice of general meetings, 
Book Closure etc. are normally published in daily 
newspapers viz., Business Standard (English) and 
Makkal Kural (Tamil).

The Company’s website address is: https:// 
coromandelengg.com/ . The website contains basic

information about the Company and such other 
details as required under the Listing regulations. 
The Company ensures periodical updation of its 
website. The Company has designated the email- id 
cscecl@cec.coromandel-group.com to enable the 
shareholders to register their grievances.

Details of recommendation of any committee of 
the Board which are not accepted by the Board

The Board of Directors accepted all the 
recommendations(s) of the Committees of the 
Board during the Financial Year ended March 31, 
2025.

Details of loans and advances in the nature of 
loans to firms/ companies in which the Directors 
are interested

During the year under review, the Company has 
not granted any loans/advances in the nature of 
loans to firms/companies in which Directors are 
interested.

Details of material subsidiaries of the listed entity; 
including the date and place of incorporation 
and the name and date of appointment of the 
statutory auditors of such subsidiaries

The Company does not have any subsidiary (ies).

Disclosure of complaints received under Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

During the year ended 31st March 2025, the 
Company has not received any Complaints under 
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 
and no Compliant is pending for action.

Disclosures with respect to demat suspense 
account/ unclaimed suspense account:

The Company does not have any shares lying in 
the demat suspense account/unclaimed suspense 
account and accordingly the disclosures are not 
applicable.

Disclosure of certain types of agreements binding 
listed entities:

During the financial year ended 31st March 2025, 
the Company has not entered into any such 
agreements binding the Company.
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General Shareholder Information

CIN L74910TN1947PLC000343
Name of the Company Coromandel Engineering Company Limited
Registered Office Bascon Futura, No 10/2, Old No.56L, Venkatanarayana Road, T.Nagar, 

Chennai- 600017
Name of the Stock Exchange BSE Limited
Scrip Code 533167
ISIN INE312J01012

Date of the AGM 18th September 2025
Time of the AGM 11.00 A.M
Venue of the AGM The AGM shall be conducted through Video Conferencing or Other Audio-

Visual Means in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013, Rules and the framework issued by the Ministry of Corporate 
affairs and the Securities and Exchange Board of India in this regard.

Financial Year 01st April 2024 to 31st March 2025
Date of Book Closure 11th September 2025 to 18th September 2025
Dividend payment date Company has not declared any dividend for the financial year
The name and address of 
each stock exchange(s)
at which the listed entity’s 
securities are listed and a 
confirmation about payment 
of annual listing fee to each 
of such stock exchange(s):

Company has listed its equity shares on Bombay Stock Exchange Limited 
(BSE) and has also remitted the annual listing fee for the financial year 
2025-26.

In case the securities are 
suspended from trading, the 
director’s report shall explain 
there as on thereof:

During the financial year ended 31st March 2025, Company shares has not 
been suspended from trading.

Registrar to an issue and 
share transfer agent

M/s. KFin Technologies Limited (Formerly known as KFin Technologies 
Private Limited) 
Address: Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Financial District, Nanakramguda, 
Hyderabad – 500 032 
Tel : +91-40-67162222/+91-40-7961 1000 
Email : einward.ris@kfintech.com 
Website: www.kfintech.com

a. Share transfer system:

Pursuant to SEBI circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/ CIR/2022/8 dated January 25, 2022 on 
Issuance of Securities in dematerialized form in case of Investor Service Requests and the Listing Regulations 
as amended in 2022 vide Gazette Notification no. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2022/66 dated January 24, 2022, it has 
been decided that listed companies shall henceforth issue the securities in dematerialized form only while 
processing the service request for Issue of duplicate securities certificate; Claim from Unclaimed Suspense 
Account; Renewal / Exchange of securities certificate; Endorsement; Sub-division/ Splitting of securities 
certificate; Consolidation of securities certificates/folios; Transmission and Transposition.

The securities holder/claimant shall submit duly filled up Form ISR-4 hosted on the website of the Company 
and the Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA). The RTA / Issuer Companies shall verify and process the service 
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requests, issue a ‘Letter of confirmation’ in lieu of physical share certificate(s), which shall be valid for a period 
of 120 days within which the securities holder/claimant shall make a request to the Depository Participants 
(DPs) for dematerializing the said securities. The RTA / Issuer Companies shall issue a reminder after informing 
the securities holder/claimant to submit the demat request as above and in case no such request has been 
received within the aforesaid period, they shall credit the securities to the Suspense Escrow Demat Account 
of the Company.

Market Price:

Month High Price Low Price No. of Shares

Apr-24 63.36 52.5 220183

May-24 63.36 55.38 52250

Jun-24 54.86 49.64 41521

Jul-24 69.95 57.56 245037

Aug-24 66.46 58.47 173212

Sep-24 61.4 50.4 97020

Oct-24 64.47 50 162891

Nov-24 68.91 57 88444

Dec-24 62 49.38 73328

Jan-25 58.49 41.52 235305

Feb-25 62.32 44.25 329562

Mar-25 59.72 49.2 56815
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b. Distribution of shareholding:

Shareholding pattern as on 31st March 2025

Category No. of Shareholders No of Shares percentage

Promoters 4 2,43,70,346 73.33

Mutual Funds - - -

Banks / Fin Inst./ Insurance/ Govt. - - -

Foreign Institutional Investors - - -

Corporates 29 4,72,423 1.42

Individuals / HUF 3,075 82,72,713 24.89

NRIs / OCBs 28 99,278 0.30

IEPF 1 18,838 0.06

TOTAL 3137 3,32,33,598 100.00

Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March 2025

Slab of Shareholding (Rs.) No of 
Shareholders

% to No. of 
Shareholders

No of Shares 
held

% to Paid-up 
Capital

Upto 5000 2908 92.70 1405541 4.23

5,001 to 10,000 85 2.71 644383 1.94

10,001 – 20,000 60 1.91 886525 2.67

20,001- 30,000 20 0.64 498531 1.50

30,001 -40,000 14 0.45 499677 1.50

40,001-50,000 16 0.51 726372 2.19

50,001-1,00,000 19 0.61 1398809 4.21

Above 1,00,001 15 0.48 27173760 81.77

Total 3137 100.00 33233598 100.00
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c. Dematerialization of shares and liquidity.

As on 31st March 2025, the details of the shares of the Company held in physical and demat form are given 
below:
Particulars No. of shareholders No of Shares %
Shares held in physical form 780 34,528 0.10
Shares held in Demat form 3299 3,31,99,070 99.90
A.  NSDL 1581 2,96,30,693 89.16
B.  CDSL 1718 35,68,377 10.74

4079 3,32,33,598 100.00

d. �outstanding Global Depository Receipts or American Depository Receipts or Warrants or any convertible 
instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity-

    There are no outstanding GDRs / Warrants and Convertible Instruments as at 31st March 2025.

e. plant location:  The Company does not have any manufacturing plant.

f. Address for correspondence: 

Address for Correspondence For all matters relating to Investor Relations
For any shareholders’ assistance, the Company 
Secretary can be contacted at the following address:
Ms. Sneha Jain, 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
Coromandel Engineering Company Ltd 
Bascon Futura, No 10/2, Old No.56L, 
Venkatanarayana Road, T.Nagar, Chennai-600017 
Phone : 044 - 25341513 
E-Mail: cscecl@cec.coromandel-group.com

KFin Technologies Limited (Formerly known as KFin 
Technologies Private Limited) 
Address: Selenium Building, Tower B, Plot 31-32, 
Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally, 
Hyderabad, Rangareddi, Telangana - 500 032
Tel: 91-40-23420815 to 23420824 
Email : einward.ris@kfintech.com 
Website: www.kfintech.com

g. �list of all credit ratings obtained by the entity along with any revisions thereto during the relevant 
financial year, for all debt instruments of such entity or any fixed deposit programme or any scheme or 
proposal of the listed entity involving mobilization of funds, whether in India or abroad: The company 
haven’t obtained any credit rating or revised its rating during the financial year 2024-2025.

h. Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit

    �Mrs. Vidhya Sivakumar of M/s. Vidhya & Associates, Practising Company Secretary, Chennai, carried out 
reconciliation of share capital audit every quarter to reconcile the total admitted capital with National 
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total 
issued capital. The audit confirms that the total issued / paid - up capital is in agreement with the aggregate 
total number of shares in physical form and the total number of dematerialized shares held with NSDL and 
CDSL.
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FOR & ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Place: Chennai	 G V MANIMARAN
Date: 13th August, 2025	 CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR
	 DIN: 09707546

i.  Details of shares held by Non- Executive Directors as on 31st March 2025

Name of the Member Designation
Mrs. R S Isabella NIL
Mr. Baskaran Srinivasan * NIL
Mr. Nallusamy Elangovan NIL
Dr. Ravi Muthusamy NIL
Dr. Ennarasu Karunesan NIL

*Mr Baskaran Srinivasan did not hold any shares as on 31st March 2025. However subsequent to the allotment 
of equity shares through preferential Basis on 8th May 2025, he holds 50,000 Equity Shares.

Nomination Facility

The Shareholders may avail themselves of the nomination facility under Section 72 of the Companies Act, 
2013. The nomination form (Form SH.13) along with instruction, will be provided to the members on request. 
In case the members wish to avail of this facility, they are requested to write to the Company’s Registrars, KFin 
Technologies Limited (Formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited).

Investors are advised to avail this facility especially investors holding securities in single name, to avoid the 
process of transmission by law. For investors holding shares held in electronic form, the nomination has to be 
conveyed to their Depository participants directly, as per the format prescribed by them.
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CERTIFICATE FROM CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR 
AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

[See Regulation 17(8) read with  Schedule II of Listing Regulations]

The Board of Directors
Coromandel Engineering Company Limited
Bascon Futura, No 10/2, Old No.56L
Venkatanarayana Road, T. Nagar
Chennai-600017

We, G V Manimaran, Chairman and Managing Director and AK Babu Ismath Razack Chief Financial Officer of 
the Company hereby certify that:

A.	 We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March 2025 
and that to the best of their knowledge and belief:

(1)	 these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading;

(2)	 these statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity’s affairs and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B.	 There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during 
the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

C.	 We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and 
that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to 
financial reporting and we have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the 
design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps they have taken 
or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

D.	 We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that there have been no:

(1)	 significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

(2)	 significant changes in accounting policies during the year and other than those have been disclosed 
in the notes to the financial statements; and

(3)	 instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, 
of the management or an employee having a significant role in the listed entity’s internal control 
system over financial reporting.

FOR & ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Place: Chennai	 AK Babu Ismath Razack	 G V MANIMARAN
Date: 20th May, 2025	 Chief Financial Officer 	 CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR
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To
The Members of
Coromandel Engineering Company Limited,

This is to confirm that the Board has laid down a code of conduct for all Board members and senior 
management of the Company. The code of conduct has also been posted on the website of the Company. It 
is further confirmed that all the Directors and senior management personnel of the Company have affirmed 
compliance with the code of conduct of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2025, as envisaged in 
Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the Listing Regulations.

DECLARATION OF CODE OF CONDUCT

On behalf of the Board

Place: Chennai	 G V MANIMARAN
Date: 13th August, 2025	 Chairman & Managing Director
	 DIN: 09707546
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Pursuant to Regulation 34 (3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause (10) (i) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended

The Members
COROMANDEL ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED
CIN: L74910TN1947PLC000343
Bascon Futura, New No. 10/2, Old No. 56L,
Venkatanarayana Road, T. Nagar, Chennai – 600 017

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors 
of COROMANDEL ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED (CIN: L74910TN1947PLC000343) having its Registered 
Office at Bascon Futura, New No. 10/2, Old No. 56L,Venkatanarayana Road, T. Nagar, Chennai – 600 017 (here-
inafter referred to as “The Company”) produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this 
certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34 (3) read with Schedule V Part-C Sub clause 10 (i) of Securities 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

In our opinion and to the best of my knowledge and according to the verifications (including Director 
Identification Number (DIN) Status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) and based on such examination as well as 
information and explanations furnished to me, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary 
for the purpose of issue of this certificate and based on such verification as considered necessary, I hereby 
certify that none of the Directors as stated below on the Board of the Company as on 31st March 2025 have 
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies by the Securities 
Exchange Board of India/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other statutory authority..

S.NO DIN NAME OF THE DIRECTOR DATE OF APPOINTMENT
1. 09707546 MANIMARAN 12/11/2024
2. 00200432 ENNARASU KARUNESAN 12/11/2024
3. 01918525 BASKARAN 12/11/2024
4. 08066520 RAVI MUTHUSAMY 12/11/2024
5. 06871120 RAJENDRAN STELLA ISABELLA 31/01/2025
6. 03293596 NALLUSAMY ELANGOVAN 29/12/2023

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/ continuity of, every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 
management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on my verification. This 
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness 
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

For Vidhya & Associates 
Practicing Company Secretaries

Vidhya Sivakumar
M. No.: 17092| COP: 7282

Date: 8th August, 2025	 Peer Review No.: I200TN553900
Place: Chennai 	 UDIN: A017092G000969329
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The Members
COROMANDEL ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED
CIN: L74910TN1947PLC000343
Bascon Futura, New No. 10/2, Old No. 56L,
Venkatanarayana Road, T. Nagar, Chennai – 600 017

I have examined all relevant records of Coromandel Engineering Company Limited, (CIN: 
L74910TN1947PLC000343), having its Registered Office at Bascon Futura, New No. 10/2, Old No. 56L, 
Venkatanarayana Road, T. Nagar, Chennai – 600 017, for the purpose of certifying compliance of the conditions 
of Corporate Governance under Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of Regulation 46(2) and 
para C, D and E of Schedule V and Regulation 34 (3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 as amended (hereinafter called “SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015”) for the financial year 
ended 31st March, 2025. I have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of my 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of certification. 

The responsibility for ensuring compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance rests with the 
management of the Company. My review was confined to the examination of the procedures and practices 
adopted by the Company to ensure such compliance. This review does not constitute an audit of the financial 
statements of the Company, nor does it represent an expression of opinion thereon.

Based on my examination of the relevant records, and on the explanations and information provided to me, 
I hereby certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as prescribed 
under Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of Regulation 46(2), and paras C, D and E of Schedule V, 
read with Regulation 34(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025.

This Certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE

PLACE: CHENNAI
DATE  : 8th August, 2025

Vidhya Sivakumar
Vidhya & Associates

Practicing Company Secretary
M. No.: 17092| COP: 7282

Peer Review No.: I200TN553900
UDIN: A017092G000969296
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Report on the audit of Standalone Financial 
Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone 
Financial Statements of COROMANDEL 
ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED (“the 
Company”), which comprises the Balance Sheet 
as at 31st March 2025, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),  the 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement 
of Cash Flows for the year then ended and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the 
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”)  in the manner so required and give a 
true and fair view in conformity with the  Indian  
Accounting  Standards prescribed under  Section  
133  of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, 
(“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at 31st March 2025, the loss and total 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its 
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our 
responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India together with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the  Standalone 
Financial Statements under the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with these requirements and the 
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
COROMANDEL ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED

we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to the outstanding statutory dues 
to Government authorities. Delays were observed 
in payment of Goods and Service Tax amounting 
to `1,08,93,788 including interest thereon and in 
payment of Tax Deducted at Source amounting to 
`54,64,310, both of which were subsequently paid. 
The amount of ` 3,70,277 towards Employees’ 
Provident Fund contributions including interest 
remains unremitted by the company. Our opinion 
is not modified in this regard. 

MSME dues including interest amounting to  
` 7,26,40,633 remain unpaid beyond the due dates. 
Our opinion is not modified in this regard. 

We draw attention to the outstanding long-term 
loan from IDFC First Bank. During FY 2024–25, 
the loan repayments were not made as per the 
scheduled due dates and amounts specified in the 
repayment schedule and paid subsequently. Our 
opinion is not modified in this regard.

We draw attention to the revaluation of Plant & 
Machinery carried out during the quarter ended 
31.03.2025, resulting in an increase of ̀ 3,17,09,228 
in the carrying value of assets and corresponding 
impact on Other Equity. Our opinion is not modified 
in this regard.

Due to the voluminous nature of transactions 
undertaken by the entity, we have not conducted 
comprehensive verification of the Goods and 
Services Tax (GST) and Input Tax Credit (ITC) claims. 
However, based on our review of the internal audit 
report and related records, we noted instances 
of mismatched credit, including cases where ITC 
pertaining to the State of Tamil Nadu was claimed 
under the GST registration of the State of Odisha. 
Our opinion is not modified in this regard.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our 
professional judgement, were of most significance 
in our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
of the current period. These matters were 
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addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined thematters 
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
A) �Existence and impairment of Trade 

Receivables

Trade Receivables are significant to the 
Company’s financial statements. The 
Collectability of trade receivables is a key element 
of the company’s working capital management, 
which is managed on an ongoing basis by its 
management. Due to the nature of the Business 
and the requirements of customers, various 
contract terms are in place which impacts 
the timing of revenue recognition. There is a 
significant element of judgement. Given the 
magnitude and judgement involved in the 
impairment assessment of trade receivables, 
we have identified this as a key audit matter.

We performed audit procedures on existence of trade 
receivables, which included substantive testing of 
revenue transactions, obtaining trade receivable external 
confirmations and testing the subsequent payments 
received. Assessing the impact of trade receivables 
requires judgement and we evaluated management’s 
assumptions in determining the provision for impairment 
of trade receivables, by analyzing the ageing of 
receivables, assessing significant overdue individual trade 
receivables and specific local risks, combined with the 
legal documentations, where applicable.

In calculating the Expected Credit Loss as per Ind AS 109 – 
“Financial Instruments”, the company   has also considered 
the estimation of probable future customer default and 
has taken into account an estimation of its possible effect.

We tested the timing of revenue and trade receivables 
recognition based on the terms agreed with the 
customers. We also reviewed, on a sample basis, terms of 
the contract with the customers, invoices raised, etc., as a 
part of our audit procedures.

Furthermore, we assessed the appropriateness of the 
disclosures made in note 10 to the financial statements.

B) �Revenue recognition (IND AS 115)

The application of the standard on recognition 
of revenue involves significant judgement 
and estimates made by the management 
which includes identification of performance 
obligations contained in contracts, 
determination of the most appropriate method 
for recognition of revenue relating to the 
identified performance obligations, assessment 
of transaction price and allocation of the 
assessed price to the individual performance 
obligations. In case of Fixed Price Contracts 
Revenue is recognized using the Percentage of 
Completion computed as per Input method. 
There   exists an inherent risk and presumed 
fraud risk around the accuracy and existence of 
revenues. These contracts may involve onerous 
obligations which requires critical assessment 
of foreseeable losses to be made by the Group.

Audit procedure involved review of the company’s IND AS 
115 implementation process and key judgements made 
by management, evaluation of customer contracts in 
light of IND AS 115 on sample basis and comparison of 
the same with management’s evaluation and assessment 
of design and operating effectiveness of internal controls 
relating to revenue recognition.

Based on the procedures performed, it is concluded that 
management’s judgements with respect to recognition 
and measurement of revenue in light of IND AS 115 is 
appropriate.

Furthermore, the appropriateness of the disclosures 
made in note 23 to the financial statements was assessed
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C) �Recognition and measurement of deferred 
taxes

The recognition and measurement of deferred 
tax items requires determination of differences 
between the recognition and the measurement 
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses in 
accordance with the Income Tax Act and other 
applicable tax laws including application of ICDS 
and financial reporting in accordance with IND 
AS.

This involves significant calculations requiring 
detailed knowledge of applicable tax laws.

The key matter was addressed by performing audit 
procedures which involved assessment of underlying 
process and evaluation of internal financial controls 
with respect to measurement of deferred tax and re-
performance of calculations and assessment of the items 
leading to recognition of deferred tax in light of prevailing 
tax laws and applicable financial reporting standards on 
sample basis.

Based on the representation provided by the management, 
the deferred tax assets are being recognized by the 
company and accounted for.

Furthermore, disclosures are made in note 7 to the 
financial statements.

D) �Contingent Liability
Assessment of Provisions for taxation, litigations 
and claims: As at 31st March 2025 Coromandel 
Engineering Company Limited had disputed 
dues to the tune of ` 407.49 lakhs.

The Audit addressed this Key Audit Matter by reviewing 
correspondence with tax Authorities.

Discussing significant litigations and claims with the 
Company’s Internal Legal Team.

Reviewing previous judgements made by relevant tax 
Authorities and opinions given by Company’s advisors.

Assessing the reliability of the past estimates of the 
management.

Based on the procedures performed, it is concluded that 
the management’s assessment of the outcome of pending 
litigations and claims is appropriate.

Furthermore, the appropriateness of the disclosures 
made in note 30 to the financial statements was assessed.

E) �Accuracy of Unbilled Revenues in Civil 
Contracts:

Unbilled Revenue in Civil Contracts operations 
is a critical estimate to determine the revenues. 
This estimate has a high risk of uncertainty as it 
requires consideration of progress of the work 
done, efforts till date and efforts to complete the 
remaining contract performance obligations. 

Audit Procedure involved evaluating the design of the 
Internal Controls relating to recording of efforts incurred 
and estimation of efforts incurred to complete the 
performance obligations.

Performed analytical Procedure and test of details for 
reasonableness of incurred and estimated efforts.

The audit procedures performed did not lead to 
identification of any material misstatement with respect 
to recognition and measurement of unbilled revenue.
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F) Inventory WIP:

Management judgement is required to establish 
the carrying value of inventory particularly in 
relation to determining the appropriate level of 
provisions in relation to obsolete and Surplus 
items.

The judgement reflects that inventory is 
held to support company’s operations which 
results in the company holding inventory for 
extended periods before utilization. In cases of 
disputes with land owners we have relied on 
Management Representation.

Physical Verification of Inventory was conducted as on 
31st March 2025. With respect to the Net Realizable Value, 
principles of IndAS–2 (Inventories) has not been complied 
as the Net Realizable Value of Inventories could not be 
determined due to the nature of the industry and hence 
inventories in books are recoded at weighted average 
cost basis. However, this policy of accounting inventory at 
weight average cost basis has been consistently followed 
by the entity. With respect to the Net Realizable value 
of Inventory the company has provided Management 
Representations that there is no significant impact as all 
contracts are based on fixed prices.

Future salability of inventory was assessed based on past 
track records.

Based on the audit procedure performed, no material 
discrepancies were identified.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial 
Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Company’s management and Board of 
Directors are responsible for the other information. 
The other information comprises the information 
included in the Company’s Annual Report but does 
not include the financial statements and our report 
thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements 
does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the Standalone Financial 
Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit 
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information, we are required to report 
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone  
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible 
for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to 
the preparation of these Standalone Financial 
Statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance, total 

comprehensive income, changes in equity and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with 
the rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 
and application of appropriate implementation 
and maintenance of accounting policies; making 
judgements and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the Standalone Financial 
Statement that give a true and fair view and are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, 
management is responsible for assessing the 
Comny’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or 
has no realistic alternative but to do so.



COROMANDEL ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2566

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for 
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the Standalone Financial Statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we 
exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We 
also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud 
is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control. 

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control 
relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the 
Company has adequate internal financial 
controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management. 

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of 
management’s use of the going concern basis 

of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that 
a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to 
the related disclosures in the Standalone 
Financial Statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern. 

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the Standalone Financial Statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the 
Standalone Financial Statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner 
that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 
standalone financial statements that, individually or 
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic 
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
standalone financial statements may be influenced. 
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work 
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to 
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements 
in the Standalone Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with 
governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with 
a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and 
to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those 
charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the 
audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of 
the current period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public 
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disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 
should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s 
Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by 
the Central Government of India in terms of 
sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act(here 
in after referred to as the “Order”) and on 
the basis of such checks of the books and 
records of the Company as we considered 
appropriate and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, we give in the 
“Annexure A” , a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to 
the extent applicable

2.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Companies 
Act,2013, we report that:

(a)	We have sought and obtained all the 
information and explanations which to 
the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b)	In our opinion, proper books of account 
as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books 

(c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit 
and Loss(including other comprehensive 
income), Statement of  Changes in the 
Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt 
with by this Report are in agreement with 
the books of account 

(d)	In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone 
Financial Statements comply with the 
IND AS specified under Section 133 of the 
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e)	On the basis of the written representations 
received from the directors as on 31st 
March, 2025 and taken on record by the 
Board of Directors, none of the directors 
is disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting 
of the Company and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate Report in “Annexure B”. 

(g)	With respect to the other matters to 
be included in the Auditor’s Report in 
accordance with the requirements of 
section197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

	 In our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the remuneration 
paid by the Company to its directors 
during the year is in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

(h)	With respect to the other matters to 
be included in the Auditor’s Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as 
amended, in our opinion and to the best 
of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us:

i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact 
of pending litigations on its financial 
position in its Standalone Financial 
Statements as referred to in Note 
No. 30  to the Standalone Financial 
Statements; 

ii.	 The Company did not have any long-
term contracts including derivative 
contracts as at 31st March, 2025; 

iii.	There were no amounts required to be 
transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company 
for the year ended 31st March, 2025. 

(i)	 Management has represented that, to the 
best of its knowledge and belief, other than 
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, 
no funds  have been advanced or loaned 
or invested (either from borrowed funds 
or share premium or any other sources 
or kind of funds) by the company to or in 
any other person(s) or entity(is), including 
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified 
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in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 
of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) 
or provide any guarantee, security or the 
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(j)	 Management has represented that, to the 
best of its knowledge and belief, other than 
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts,  no 
funds have been received by the company 
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the company 
shall, whether,  directly or indirectly, lend 
or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries, and

(k)	Based on the audit procedures adopted 
by us, nothing has come to our notice 
that has caused us to believe that the 
representations made by the management 

under sub clause (i) and (ii) above, contain 
any material misstatement.

(l)	 The Company has not declared any Dividend 
during the year

(m)	Based on our examination which included 
test checks, the Company, in respect of 
financial year commencing on April 01, 
2023, has used an accounting software 
for maintaining its books of account which 
has a feature of recording audit trail (edit 
log) facility and the same has operated 
throughout the year for all relevant 
transactions recorded in the software. 
Further, during the course of our audit, we 
did not come across any instance of audit 
trail feature being tampered with reporting 
under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rule, 2014 on preservation 
of audit trail as per statutory requirements 
for record retention is applicable for the 
Financial year ended March 31, 2025. 
(Refer Note.53 to the Standalone Financial 
Statements).

	 For CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP
	  Chartered Accountants
	  F.R.No.004915S

	 Sonali Khatod M 
Place: Chennai	  Partner
Date: 20.05.2025	  Membership No 254938

UDIN : 25254938BMOYTD3191
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The Annexure referred to in our Independent 
Auditor’s Report to the members of the 
Coromandel Engineering Company Limited on 
the Standalone Financial Statements for the year 
ended 31st March 2025, we report that: 

i.	 In respect of its Property, Plant & Equipment:

(a)	 (A) The Company has maintained proper 
records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of 
Property, Plant & Equipment to the best of 
our knowledge and on the basis of available 
information.

	 (B) The Company has maintained proper 
records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of 
Intangible Asset to the best of our 
knowledge and on the basis of available 
information. 

ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(b)	 The Company has a regular program of 

physical verification of its Property, Plant 
& Equipment by which Property, Plant 
& Equipment are verified in a phased 
periodical manner designed to cover all 
the items over a period of three years. 
In accordance with this program, certain 
Property, Plant & Equipment were verified 
during the year and no discrepancies were 
noticed on such verification. In our opinion 
this periodicity of physical verification is 
reasonable having regard to the size of the 
Company and nature of its assets.

(c)	 According to the information and 
explanations given to us, and on the 
basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, the title deeds of all the 
immovable properties disclosed in the 
financial statements are held in the name 
of the Company.

(d)	 The company has revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year. The revaluation is 
based on the valuation by registered valuer. 

Class of Asset Revaluation 
performed 
by Registered 
Valuer (Yes/No)

Net Carrying 
Value before 
Revaluation (`)

Net Carrying 
Value after 
Revaluation

Change in 
Value

% 
change

Plant & Machinery Yes 95,52,551 4,11,26.779 3,15,74,228 331%

(e)	 The company does not hold any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) 
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, clause i(e) of Para 3 of Companies 
(Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable.

ii.

(a)	 Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the management and 
in our opinion the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate; 
discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were not noticed.

(b)	 According to the records of the Company and information and explanations given to us, the company 
has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate from banks 
or financial institution on the basis of security of current assets; the quarterly returns or statements 
filed by the company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of 
account of the Company.

iii.	 (a)	� In our opinion and according to the explanations given to us, during the year the company has 
not provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided 
security to any other entity [not applicable to companies whose principal business is to give loans]. 
Accordingly, clause (iii(a)), (iii(b)), & (iii(c)) of Para 3 of Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not 
applicable.
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iv.	� In our opinion and according to the explanations 
given to us there are no loans,     investments, 
guarantees and securities provided by the 
Company as specified under Sections 185 and 
186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the 
provisions of the paragraph 3(iv) of the order 
are not applicable to the Company.

v.	� In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the Company has 
not accepted any deposits or amounts which 
are deemed to be deposits from the public 
within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 or any 
other relevant provisions of the Act and rules 
framed thereunder, and hence reporting under 
clause (v) of the Order is not applicable.

vi.	� The Central Government has prescribed the 
maintenance of cost records under Section 
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
prescribed accounts and records have been 
made and maintained. 

vii.	 In respect of statutory dues:

a)	 According to the records of the Company 
and information and explanations given to 
us, the Company is regular in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues including 
Goods and Service tax, provident fund, 
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, 
sales-tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty 
of customs, duty of excise, value added 
tax, Goods and service tax, cess and any 
other statutory dues with the appropriate 
authorities. There are no undisputed 
statutory dues outstanding for more than 
six months, except the following: 

SI. 
No.

Name of 
the 

Statute
Nature of 

Dues
Amount  

(₹ in 
Lakhs)

1 I n c o m e 
Tax TDS 36.72

2
Employee 
Provident 
Fund

PF Show 
Cause Notice 3.7

b)	 As at 31st March 2025 according to the records of the Company, the following are the particulars of 
the disputed dues:

SI. 
No

Name of the 
Statute

Nature of 
Dues

Amount 
Disputed 

(` in Lakhs)

Amount 
paid under 

protest 
(` in Lakhs)

Forum where 
Pending

1 Goods and 
Service Tax

Odisha – GST 
Tran 1 credit 

reversal
5.43

-
Deputy 

Commissioner of 
CT & GST, Ganjam, 
Odisha (FY 2017-

2018)

2
Customs Excise 

and Service 
Tax Act

Kerala – VAT 5.6
0.66

Assistant 
Commissioner 

Commercial Tax 
officer 

Ernakulam

3 Goods and 
Service Tax

TN / GST - FY 
2017-18 5.65 -

Assistant 
Commissioner, TN 

GST

4 Goods and 
Service Tax

AP / GST - FY 
2017-18 24.10 -

Assistant 
Commissioner, AP 

GST
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5 Goods and 
Service Tax

TN / GST - FY 
2018-19 55.66 -

Deputy Commercial 
Tax Officer, TN.

6 Goods and 
Service Tax

AP / GST - FY 
2018-19 96.52 1.48

Assistant 
Commissioner (ST), 

Visakhapatnam

7 Goods and 
Service Tax

AP / GST - FY 
2019-20 3.86 -

Assistant 
Commissioner (ST), 

Visakhapatnam

8 Goods and 
Service Tax

AP / GST - FY 
2020-21 7.57 -

Assistant 
Commissioner (ST), 

Visakhapatnam

9 Goods and 
Service Tax

AP / GST - FY 
2021-22 1.48 -

Assistant 
Commissioner (ST), 

Visakhapatnam

10 Goods and 
Service Tax

TE / GST- FY20-
21 9.76

- Assistant 
Commissioner, 

Telangana

11 Goods and 
Service Tax

TN / GST 
-FY20-21 54.72 -

Assistant 
Commissioner, 

Tamil Nadu

12 Goods and 
Service Tax

TN / GST 
-FY20-21 85.13 	 -

Deputy 
Commissioner, 

Tamil Nadu

13 Suit filed by 
the Vendor 52.01 - Court of Telangana

Total 407.49 2.14

viii.	 In our opinion, the company has 
no transactions that have not been 
recorded in the books of accounts and 
no unrecorded income was disclosed or 
surrendered as income during the year 
in the Tax assessments under the Income 
Tax,1961. Accordingly, clause (viii) of Para 
3 of Companies (Auditors Report) Order 
2020 is not applicable.

ix.	 Based on our audit procedures and 
according to the information and 
explanations given to us by the 
management, we are of the opinion 
that the Company has not defaulted in 
repayment of loans or borrowings to any 
lenders.

	 (a) According to the records of the Company 
and information and explanations given 
to us, the company is not a declared 
willful defaulter by any bank or  financial 
institution or other lender.

	 (b) According to the records of 
the Company and information and 
explanations given to us, term loans were 
applied for the purpose for which the loans 
were obtained; if not, the amount of loan 
so diverted and the purpose for which it is 
used may be reported.

	 (c) According to the records of the Company 
and information and explanations given 
to us, the funds raised on short term 
basis have been utilised for short term 
requirements only. They were not applied 
for long term requirements.

	 (d) In our opinion, the company has not 
taken any funds from any entity or person 
on account of or to meet the obligations 
of its subsidiaries, associates or joint 
ventures. Accordingly, clause (ix(e)) of 
Para 3 of Companies (Auditors Report) 
Order 2020 is not applicable.
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	 (e) In our opinion. the company has 
not raised loans during the year on the 
pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, 
joint ventures or associate companies. 
Accordingly, clause (ix(f)) of Para 3 of 
Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 
is not applicable	

x.	 (a)To the best of our knowledge and 
according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company 
has not raised any money by way of initial 
public offer or further public offer.

	 (b) During the financial year, the Company 
obtained shareholders’ approval on 27th 
March 2025 for the issuance of 67,22,722 
equity shares by way of preferential 
allotment. Pursuant to this approval, an 
allotment of 16,49,840 equity shares was 
made on 8th May 2025 in the financial 
year 2025–26.

xi.	 (a) In our opinion and according to the 
information and explanations given to 
us, no fraud by   the Company or on the 
Company has been noticed or reported 
during the year.

	 (b) In our opinion, report under sub-
section (12) of section 143 of Companies 
Act and form ADT-4 is not required to be 
filed by the auditors as clause xi (a) is not 
applicable. Accordingly, clause (xi(b)) of 
Para 3 of Companies (Auditors Report) 
Order 2020 is not applicable.

	 (c) According to the information and 
explanation given to us, the company has 
not received whistle-blower complaints 
during the year. Accordingly, clause (xi(c)) 
of Para 3 of Companies (Auditors Report) 
Order 2020 is not applicable.

xii.	 In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi 
Company. Accordingly, clause (xii(a), xii(b), 
xii(c) of Para 3 of Companies (Auditors 
Report) Order 2020 are not applicable.

xiii.	 All transactions with the related parties 
are in compliance with sections 177 and 
188 of Companies Act where applicable 
and the details have been disclosed in the 
financial statements, etc., as required by 
the applicable accounting standards.

xiv.	 (a) In our opinion and according to the 
information and explanation given to us, 
the company has an internal audit system 
commensurate with the size and nature of 
its business.

	 (b) In our opinion and according to the 
information and explanation given to us, 
the reports of the Internal Auditors for the 
period under audit were considered.

xv.	 ln our opinion and according to the 
information and explanations given to 
us, the Company has not entered into 
any non-cash transactions with directors 
or persons connected with the Directors. 
Accordingly, clause (xv) of Para 3 of 
Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 
is not applicable.

xvi.	 (a) & (b) In our opinion and according to 
the information and explanations given 
to us, the Company is not required to 
be registered under Section 45-lA of 
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 
Accordingly, clause (xvi(a) and xvi (b)) of 
Para 3 of Companies (Auditors Report) 
Order 2020 are not applicable. 

	 (c) & (d) In our opinion and according 
to the information and explanations 
given to us, the company is not a Core 
Investment Company (CIC) as defined in 
the regulations made by the Reserve Bank 
of India. Accordingly, clause (xvi(c) and 
xvi(d)) of Para 3 of Companies (Auditors 
Report) Order 2020 is not applicable.

 xvii. 	 In our opinion and according to the 
information and explanations given to us 
the company has incurred cash losses in 
the financial year and in the immediately 
preceding financial year. 

	 Accordingly, clause (xvii) of Para 3 of 
Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 
is applicable and the following are the 
cash losses incurred: 

Financial Year Amount (Rs in lakhs)
2023-24 200.52
2024-25 66.09

xviii.	 Statutory auditor has not resigned during 
the year, Accordingly, reporting under 
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clause (xviii) of Para 3 of Companies 
(Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not 
applicable.

xix.	 According to the information and 
explanations given to us and on the basis 
of the financial ratios disclosed in notes 
42 to the financial statements, ageing and 
expected dates of realization of financial 
assets and payment of financial liabilities, 
other information accompanying the 
financial statements, our knowledge of 
the Board of Directors and management 
plans and based on our examination of 
the evidence supporting the assumptions, 
nothing has come to our attention, which 
causes us to believe that any material 
uncertainty exists as on the date of the 
audit report that Company is not capable 
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date 
of balance as and when they fall due within 
a period of one year from the balance 
sheet date. We, however, state that this is 

not an assurance as to the future viability 
of the Company. We further state that our 
reporting is based on the facts up to the 
date of the audit report and we neither 
give any guarantee nor any assurance that 
all liabilities falling due within a period of 
one year from the balance sheet date, will 
get discharged by the Company as and 
when they fall due.

xx.	 (a) In our opinion and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, 
the company is not obliged to transfer 
the unspent amount to a Fund specified 
in Schedule VII to the Companies Act. 
Accordingly, clause (xx(a) and xx(b)) of 
Para 3 of Companies (Auditors Report) 
Order 2020 are not applicable

xxi.	 In our opinion, the company does 
not prepare consolidated financials. 
Accordingly, clause (xxi) of Para 3 of 
Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 
is not applicable.

	 For CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP
	  Chartered Accountants
	  F.R.No.004915S

	 Sonali Khatod M 
Place: Chennai	  Partner
Date: 20.05.2025	  Membership No 254938

UDIN : 25254938BMOYTD3191
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(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on Other 
Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of the 
Independent Auditor’s Report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting under Clause(i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting of COROMANDEL 
ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED (“the 
Company”) as of 31st March 2025 in conjunction 
with our audit of the   Standalone Financial 
Statements of the Company for the year ended 
on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal 
Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). 
These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively  for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence 
to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds 
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation 
of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance 
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued 
by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under 
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls, both issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards 
and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls 
over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to 
obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding 
of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating 
the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the Standalone 
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over 
financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability  

ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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of financial reporting and the preparation of 
Standalone Financial Statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A Company’s internal 
financial control over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) 
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of 
the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary 
to permit preparation of Standalone Financial 
statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the Company are being 
made only in accordance with authorizations 
of management and directors of the Company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s 
assets that could have a material effect on the 
Standalone Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial 
control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies 
or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us, 
the Company has, in all material respects, an 
adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial 
controls over financial reporting were operating 
effectively as at 31st March  2025, based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

	 For CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP
	  Chartered Accountants
	  F.R.No.004915S

	 Sonali Khatod M 
Place: Chennai	  Partner
Date: 20.05.2025	  Membership No 254938

UDIN : 25254938BMOYTD3191
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BALANCE SHEET
 (` in lakhs)

 Particulars  Note No.  As at 31.03.2025  As at 31.03.2024 
 A  ASSETS 

  1  Non-current assets 
 (a)  Property, Plant and Equipment  4 a  411.70   205.44 
 (b)  Right of use Assets 4 b  -   -
 (c)  Capital work-in-progress   -   -
 (d)  Intangible assets 4 c  10.11   -
 (e)  Financial Assets  

  (i)   Investments  -   -
 (ii) Trade receivables   -
 (iii)   Other Financial Assets  6 1.00   100.00 

 (f)  Deferred tax assets (net) 7  1,087.68  1,029.74 
 (g)  Other non-current assets  8  365.00   365.00 

 Total Non - Current Assets  1,875.50  1,700.18 
  2  Current assets  

 (a) Inventories 9  1,012.53  1,257.44 
 (b) Financial Assets  

  (i) Investments  -   -
 (ii) Trade receivables 10  2,412.72  1,790.63 
 (iii) Cash and cash equivalents and bank balances 11  33.56 2.42 
 (iv)  Other Financial assets 12  197.10   186.16 

 (c) Other current assets 13  2,087.96  2,702.23 
 Total Current Assets  5,743.88  5,938.88 
 Total Assets ( 1+2 )  7,619.38  7,639.05 

 B  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
  1  Equity  

 (a) Equity Share Capital 14  3,323.36  3,323.36 
 (b)  Other Equity excluding non-controlling interests  ## 14 a (2,934.41) (2,975.90)
 (c) Other Equity- Revaluation Gain 14b  236.22   -

 Total equity  attributable  to owners of the Company  625.17  347.46 
 Liabilities 

  2  Non-current liabilities 
 (a) Financial Liabilities 

 (i)    Preference Capital 15  -   -
 (ii)   Borrowings 16  1,120.00   630.84 
 (iii)  Trade payables   -   -

17   -   -
 (b) Provisions 18  87.87  74.63 
 (c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net)  -   -
 (d) Other non-current liabilities  -   -

 Total Non - Current Liabilities  1,207.87  705.47 
  3  Current liabilities 

 (a) Financial Liabilities 
 (i)  Borrowings 19  1,139.34  1,037.01 
 (ii)  Trade payables - Micro & Small Enterprise 20  566.42   581.68 
 (iii)  Trade payables -  Others 20  2,281.22  2,799.77 
 (iv) Other financial liabilities  21  1,642.11  1,566.26 

 (b) Provisions  -   -
 (c) Other current liabilities 22  157.25   601.41 

 Total Current Liabilities  5,786.35  6,586.13 
 Total Equity and Liabilities (1+2+3)  7,619.38  7,639.06 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date	 For & on Behalf of the Board
For CNGSN & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
F.R.No.004915S
Sonali Khatod M	 Ennarasu Karunesan	 G V Manimaran
Partner	 Director	 Chairman & Managing Director
Membership No.254938	 DIN: 00200432	 DIN: 09707546
UDIN : 25254938BMOYTD3191

Chennai	 Sneha Jain	 A K Babu Ismath Razack  
20th May, 2025	 Company Secretary	 Chief Financial Officer



77COROMANDEL ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
 (` in lakhs)

 Particulars  Note  For the year ended 
 Mar 31, 2025 

 For the Year ended 
 March 31, 2024 

I  Revenue from Operations 23  3,128.89  9,663.81 
II  Other Income 24   1.88  3.97 
III  Total Revenue ( I + II ) 3,130.77 9,667.78 
IV  Expenses 

 (a)  Materials consumed 25 748.44  4,026.04 
 (b)  Changes in Inventories 26   -   -
 (c)  Sub-contracting Expenses 756.75  3,566.29 
 (d)  Employee Benefit Expenses 27 690.56  984.62 
 (e)  Finance Cost 28 299.07  301.83 
 (f)  Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses  4 108.99  161.37 
 (g)  Other Expenses 29 622.92  1,010.73 
 (h)  Total Expenses 3,226.75  10,050.88 

V  Profit/(loss) before exceptional items (III-IV)   (95.98)  (383.10)
VI  Exceptional income - waiver of Preference Dividend -  21.21 
VII  Profit/(loss) after exceptional items (V-VI) (95.98)  (361.89)
VIII  Tax expense/(gain) 

 (1)   Current tax - -
 (2)   Deferred tax (137.46)  77.85 

IX  Net Profit/(loss)  after tax   41.49 69.64  (439.73)
X Add:  Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) 28.15 

Items that will not be reclassifed to Profit or Loss
(a)      changes in revaluation surplus   315.74 

 Tax Impact on above   (79.52)
 (b)     �Remeasurements of the defined benefit liabilities / asset- 

Revaluation of Fixed Assets 
- -

 (c)      Equity instruments through other comprehensive income - -

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit 
or Loss

- -

Add:  Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss)
Items that may be reclassifed to Profit or Loss

Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified to Profit or 
Loss

- -

 Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) Total 236.22 -

XI  Total Comprehensive Income 277.71  (439.73)

XII  Earnings per equity share (Rs) 
 (1) Basic  0.12 (1.32)
 (2) Diluted  0.12 (1.32)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date	 For & on Behalf of the Board
For CNGSN & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
F.R.No.004915S
Sonali Khatod M	 Ennarasu Karunesan	 G V Manimaran
Partner	 Director	 Chairman & Managing Director
Membership No.254938	 DIN: 00200432	 DIN: 09707546
UDIN : 25254938BMOYTD3191

Chennai	 Sneha Jain	 A K Babu Ismath Razack  
20th May, 2025	 Company Secretary	 Chief Financial Officer



COROMANDEL ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2578

 (` in lakhs)
A. Equity Share Capital -  Refer Note no 14

Balance as at  March 31, 2023  3,323.36 

Balance as at  March 31, 2024  3,323.36 

Balance as at  March 31, 2025  3,323.36 

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus
Items of Other 
Comprehensive 

Income
Total

Capital 
Reserve

General 
Reserve

Investment 
Allowance 

Reserve
Securities
Premium

Retained 
earnings

Reserve 
for equity 

instruments

Balance at end of the year - March 31, 2023 7.24 629.43 - 2440.80 (8449.26) - (5371.79)

Loss for the year (439.73) - (439.73)

Other Comprehensive income for the year - - -

Total Comprehensive income for the year (439.73) - (439.73)

Reduction of Preference Share Capital 2835.63

Balance at end of the year - March 31, 2024 7.24 629.43 2440.80  (6053.36) - (2975.90)

Loss for the year

Other Comprehensive income for the year

Total Comprehensive income for the year

Reduction of Preference Share Capital

Balance at end of the year - March 31, 2025 7.24 629.43 2440.80 (6011.89) -  (2935.41)

B. Statement of changes in other Equity - Refer Note no 14a

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date	 For & on Behalf of the Board
For CNGSN & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
F.R.No.004915S
Sonali Khatod M	 Ennarasu Karunesan	 G V Manimaran
Partner	 Director	 Chairman & Managing Director
Membership No.254938	 DIN: 00200432	 DIN: 09707546
UDIN : 25254938BMOYTD3191

Chennai	 Sneha Jain	 A K Babu Ismath Razack  
20th May, 2025	 Company Secretary	 Chief Financial Officer
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
 (` in lakhs)

Particulars  For the Year ended 
 Mar 31, 2025 

 For the Year ended 
 March 31, 2024 

Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit/ (Loss)  before tax as per Statement of  Profit & Loss  (95.98) (383.10)
Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 108.99 161.37
Finance Cost 299.07 301.83
Interest Income   1.88 (3.03)
Dividend Income -   -
Exceptional income - waiver of pref dividend
Provision for doubtful debts no longer required -   -
(Profit) / Loss on sale/W.off of assets (Net) (172.03)  237.92   -  460.17 

Operating Profit  before working capital changes  141.94 77.07 
Adjustments for :

Trade and other Receivables   (15.65)   (446.15)
Inventories  244.91 107.71
Trade and other Payables (533.80)   (304.54) 1,456.91  1,118.48 

Cash Generated from Operations   (162.60)  1,195.55 
Direct Taxes Refund/(Paid)(Net) (123.15)
Dividend paid   - -
Net Cash from/(used) in Operating Activities   (162.60)  1,072.40 

Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment 0.00 (19.52)
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment  172.03   -
Sale of investment -   -
Interest income  (1.88)  3.03 
Dividend Received -   -
Waiver of Preference dividend -   21.22 

Net Cash from Investing Activities 170.15 4.73 

Cash flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from Preference Issue -   -
Loans availed/(repaid) (Net)  140.05   (774.38)
Finance Charges (116.45)   (301.83)

Net Cash from/(used in)  Financing Activities 23.60 (1,076.20)

Net increase/ (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 31.14   0.93 

Opening balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents   2.42   1.49 

Closing balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 33.56   2.42 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date	 For & on Behalf of the Board
For CNGSN & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
F.R.No.004915S
Sonali Khatod M	 Ennarasu Karunesan	 G V Manimaran
Partner	 Director	 Chairman & Managing Director
Membership No.254938	 DIN: 00200432	 DIN: 09707546
UDIN : 25254938BMOYTD3191

Chennai	 Sneha Jain	 A K Babu Ismath Razack  
20th May, 2025	 Company Secretary	 Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT SHOWING THE APPLICABLE KEY   ACCOUNTING   STANDARDS   UNDER 
IND AS WITH RELATED ACCOUNTING POLICY AND NOTES REFERENCES FOR THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ind AS No Description Accounting 
Policy No

Note No

2 Inventories 3.8 9

7 Cash and Cash Equivalents 3.16 11

10 Event after the reporting period 41

12 Income tax 3.13 7

16 Property, Plant and Equipment 3.3 4a

18 Revenue 3.9 23, 34

19 Employee benefits 3.12 39

24 Related party disclosures 38

33 Earnings per share 3.15 35

37 Provisions, Contingent liabilities and assets 3.14 6,18,21,30

38 Intangible assets 3.6 4 c

107 Financial instruments - Disclosures 3.17 40

108 Operating segments 3.18 36

113 Fair value measurements 3.1 40

115 Revenue from Contracts 3.9 23,34

116 Leases 3.4 4 b
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

CORPORATE INFORMATION

�Coromandel Engineering Company Limited (CEC) 
was incorporated as a Public Limited Company 
in the year 1947 and the Equity Shares of the 
Company are listed in BSE Ltd. CEC is in the business 
of Construction and Property Development.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED IND AS

The financial statements have been prepared 
in accordance with Ind AS notified under the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 
2015.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation and presentation of 
Financial Statements

The financial statements have been prepared and 
presented in accordance with the Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) as prescribed by the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and 
Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). 
The financial statements are presented in Indian 
Rupees (INR), which is also the functional currency. 
The financial statements have been prepared 
under the historical cost convention, except for 
certain financial instruments that are measured at 
fair values at the end of each reporting period, as 
explained in accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value 
of the consideration given in exchange for goods 
and services. Fair value is the price that would 
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability in an ordinary transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date, regardless 
of whether that price is directly observable or 
estimated using another valuation technique. In 
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, 
the company takes into account the characteristics 
of the asset or liability if market participants would 
take those characteristics into account when pricing 
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair 
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes 
in these financial statements is determined on such 

a basis, except for leasing transactions that are 
within the scope of Ind AS 17, and measurements 
that have some similarities to fair value but are not 
fair value, such as net realizable value in Ind AS 2 or 
value in use as in Ind AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair 
value measurements are categorized into level 1, 
2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs 
to the fair value measurements are observable 
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value 
measurements in its entirety, which are described 
as follows:

a) �Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in 
active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
that the entity can access at the measurement 
date;

b) �Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices 
included within level 1, that are observable for 
the asset or liability , either directly or indirectly;

c) �Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the 
asset or liability;

3.2 Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements requires 
the management to make estimates, assumptions 
and judgements that affect the reported amount of 
assets and liabilities , income and expenses. Actual 
amounts could differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed 
on an on going basis.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized 
prospectively.

Judgements are made in applying accounting 
policies that have the most significant effects on the 
amounts recognized in the financial statements.

3.3 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are valued at 
historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost 
includes related taxes, duties, freight, insurance 
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etc. attributable to acquisition and installation 
of assets and borrowing costs incurred up to the 
date of commencing operations. Impairment loss 
is recognised, where applicable; when the carrying 
value of fixed assets exceeds its market value or the 
value in use, whichever is higher.

3.4 Leases: Right-of-use asset and Lease liabilities

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and 
a corresponding liability at the date at which the 
leased asset is available for use by the company. 
Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially 
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities 
include the net present value of the fixed payments 
(including in-substance fixed payments), less any 
lease incentives receivable.

The lease payments are discounted using the 
interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot 
be readily determined, the lessee’s incremental 
borrowing rate is used. Lease payments are 
allocated between principal and finance cost. The 
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the 
lease tenure.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising 
the following:

•	 the amount of the initial measurement of lease 
liability

•	 any lease payments made at or before the 
commencement date less any lease incentives 
received

•	 any initial direct costs, and

•	 restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over 
the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease 
term on a straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases of 
property, plant and office equipment and all leases 
of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-
line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term 
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months 
or less.

3.5 Depreciation

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided as per 
revised useful life contained in Schedule II of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

3.6 Intangible Assets and amortization

Intangible assets (computer software) acquired 
separately are carried at cost less accumulated 
amortization. Amortization is recognized on a 
straight- line basis over their estimated useful life 
as determined under Schedule II of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

3.7 Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Company had made an 
irrevocable election on instrument by instrument 
basis, pertaining to investment in equity 
instruments, to present the subsequent changes in 
fair value in other comprehensive income .

Dividend on these investments is recognized when 
the Company’s right to receive the dividend is 
established and recognized in profit and loss in 
“other income” head..

3.8 Inventories

Materials at site are valued at cost on Weighted 
Average Method. Work- in- Progress in respect of 
contracts till attaining a reasonable progress level 
and in property development, till significant risks 
and rewards of ownership are

transferred, is valued at cost plus proportionate 
overheads. Unsold land is valued at cost. 

3.9 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that is 
probable that the economic benefits will flow to 
the Company and the revenue can be measured, 
irrespective of when the payment is being made. 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the billing 
whether received or to be received, net of taxes 
collected on behalf of the Government.

i.	 Revenue in respect of Construction Contracts, 
is recognised on percentage of completion 
method.
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 ii.	 In case of Property development, Percentage 
of completion is arrived at as the proportion of 
costs incurred (including directly attributable 
borrowing costs) up to the Balance Sheet date 
to the estimated total project costs.

iii.	 In case of indivisible works contracts, revenues 
are recognized on percentage completion 
method, synchronised to the billing schedules 
agreed by the customers.

iv.	 Revenue in respect of billed and unbilled 
contracts/property development in progress 
includes recognised profits based on percentage 
of completion and retention on bills. Provision 
for expected losses is made irrespective of 
percentage of completion.

v.	 Revenue from Property Development activity is 
recognised when significant risks and rewards 
of ownership in the land and/ or building are 
transferred to the customers.

vi.	 Bill raised for value of work done in respect 
of completed and ongoing contracts including 
retention on bill is disclosed as proceeds on 
contracts.

vii.	 Sale of goods is recognized when the goods are 
delivered and titles have passed.

viii.	Sales are recorded net of trade discounts/ 
rebates exclusive of taxes collected on behalf 
of Government.

3.10 Other Income

i.	 Dividend Income from investments is 
recognized when the right to receive payment 
has been established.

ii.	 Interest Income from a financial asset is 
recognized and accrued on time proportion 
basis.

iii.	 Insurance claims are accounted on the basis 
of claims admitted and to the extent amount 
recoverable can be measured reliably.

3.11 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the 
acquisition or construction of assets that 
necessarily takes substantial period of time to get 
ready for intended use are treated as part of the 
cost of such assets. Borrowing costs attributable 
to unsold properties that are under development 
are inventorised and charged to revenue as and 
when they are sold. All other borrowing costs are 
recognized in profit and loss in the period they are 
incurred.

3.12 Employee Benefits

Short term

Short term employee benefits, including 
accumulated compensated absences, are 
recognized as an expense as per the Company‘s 
scheme, based on expected obligations on 
undiscounted basis.

Long term

i.	 Leave encashment

	 This is recognized at the present value of the 
estimated future cash outflows expected to be 
made by the Company in respect of services 
provided by the employees upto the reporting 
date.

ii.	 Provident Fund 

	 Contributions are made to the Company’s 
Employees Provident Fund Trust in accordance 
with the fund rules. The interest rate payable 
by the trust to the beneficiaries every year is 
notified by the Government. The company has 
an obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, 
between the return from the investments of 
the trust and the notified interest rate.

	 The company is in the process of surrendering 
all the trust accounts of PF to the Employees 
Provident Fund (EPF), thus employee 
contribution hereafter being directly remitted 
to EPF.
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iii.	 Superannuation

	 This is defined contribution plan. Fixed 
contributions to the Superannuation Fund 
administered by trustees and managed by Life 
Insurance Corporation of India are charged 
to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The 
Company has no further obligations for future 
superannuation benefits other than its annual 
contributions and recognizes such contributions 
as an expense in the year incurred.

iv.	 Gratuity

	 The Company makes annual contributions to 
a Gratuity Fund administered by trustees and 
managed by Life Insurance Corporation of 
India (LIC). Liability for future gratuity benefits 
is accounted based on actuarial valuation, 
as at the Balance Sheet date, determined by 
independent Actuary.

Remeasurement,comprising actuarial gains and 
losses, the effect of the changes to asset ceiling (if 
any) and the return on plan assets (excluding net 
interest), is recognized in Other Comprehensive 
income in the period in which they occur and this 
is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost 
is recognized in profit or loss in the period of plan 
amendment.

3.13 Taxation

Provision for current tax is made based on the 
liability computed in accordance with the relevant 
tax rates and tax laws. Current income tax assets 
and liabilities are measured at the amount expected 
to be received or payable to taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences 
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities 
in the financial statements and corresponding tax 
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. 
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized 
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax 
assets are generally recognized for all deductible 
tax differences to the extent that it is probable that 
taxable profit will be available against which those 
deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured 
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the 
year when the asset is realized or liability is settled, 
based on tax rates and tax laws that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting 
date.

3.14 Provisions & Contingent Liabilities/ Assets:

Provisions are recognized for known liabilities that 
can be measured where the Company has a present 
obligation as a result of past event. It is probable 
that the Company will be required to settle the 
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of 
the amount of obligation.

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed for possible 
obligation which will be confirmed only by future 
events not wholly within the control of the 
Company or present obligations arising from past 
events where it is not probable that an outflow of 
resources will be required to settle the obligation 
or a reliable estimate of the amount of the 
obligation cannot be made. Contingent assets are 
not recognized in the financial statements.

3.15 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing 
the profit / (loss) after tax by the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the 
year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by 
dividing the profit / (loss) after tax as adjusted for 
dividend, interest and other charges to expenses 
or income related to the dilutive potential equity 
shares by the weighted average number of equity 
shares considered for basic earnings per share and 
the weighted average number of equity shares 
including those which could have been issued 
on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity 
shares.

3.16 Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, 
whereby the profit/ (loss) and tax is adjusted for the 
effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any 
deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts 
or payments. The Cash flows from operating, 
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investing and financing activities of the Company 
are segregated based on available information.

For this purpose, cash comprises of cash on hand 
and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents 
are short term balances with original maturity of 
three months or less from the date of acquisition, 
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible 
into known amounts of cash and which are subject 
to insignificant risk of changes in value.

3.17 Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized where 
the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instruments. They are initially 
measured at fair value.

All regular purchases or sale of financial assets are 
recognized or derecognized on a trade date basis. 

All recognized financial assets are subsequently 
measured in their entirety at either amortised cost 
or fair value, depending on the classification of the 
financial assets.

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Company 
are classified as either financial liabilities or equity 
in accordance with the substance of the contractual 
arrangements and the definition of financial 
liabilities and equity instrument.

3.18 Operating cycle

Based on the nature of activities of the Company 
and the normal time between acquisition of assets 
and their realization into cash/cash equivalents, the 
operating cycle has been determined as 12 months 
for the purpose of classification of its assets and 
liabilities.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 31st MARCH 2025

NOTE 4 a PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  (` in lakhs)

Carrying amounts of: As at 
31.03.2025 31.03.2024 31.03.23 

Plant and equipment 396.53 177.31 318.05
Furniture and fittings 8.01 1.35 1.56
Vehicles 0.05 0.10 0.14
Office Equipment 3.13 2.24 3.74
Computers 3.98 11.38 12.62
Software & Licensing 0.00 13.06 0.00

Total 411.70 205.44 336.11

Office 
Buildings 

Plant and 
equipment 

Furniture 
and 

Fittings 

Software & 
Licensing 

Vehicles Office 
Equipment 

Computers Total 

Cost or deemed cost
Balance at April 1, 2023 23.11 3,925.69 3.18   - 6.40 32.59  68.02 4,058.99 
Additions  6.75   16.00 7.96   30.71 
Disposals   -
Balance at March 31, 2024 23.11 3,932.44 3.18   16.00 6.40 32.59  75.98 4,089.70 
Revaluation 315.96 315.96 
Additions   -  7.61   2.18  9.79 
Disposals   143.09   16.00 159.09 
Balance at March 31, 2025 23.11 4,105.32  10.79   - 6.40 34.77  75.98 4,256.37 

Office 
Buildings 

Plant and 
equipment 

Furniture 
and 

Fittings 

Software & 
Licensing 

Vehicles Office 
Equipment 

Computers Total 

Accumulated depreciation and 
impairment
Balance at April 1, 2023 23.11 3,608.04 1.62   - 6.27 28.85  55.40 3,722.88 
Depreciation expense 147.47 0.21  2.94 0.04   1.51 9.20 161.37 
Eliminated on disposals   -
Balance at March 31, 2024 23.11 3,755.51 1.83  2.94 6.31 30.36  64.60 3,884.25 
Depreciation on Revaled Asset   -   8.04   -  8.04 
Depreciation expense   88.33  0.96  2.94  0.04   1.28   7.40 100.95 
Eliminated on disposals   143.09   -  5.88   - - - 148.97 
Balance at March 31, 2025 23.11 3,708.79 2.79  0.00 6.35 31.64  72.00 3,844.26 

Office 
Buildings 

Plant and 
equipment 

Furniture 
and 

Fittings 

Software & 
Licensing 

Vehicles Office 
Equipment 

Computers Total 

Carrying amount
Balance at April 1, 2023 - 317.65 1.56   - 0.13   3.74  12.62 336.11 
Additions -  6.75  -   16.00  -   - 7.96   30.71 
Disposals -   -  -   -  -   -  -   -
Depreciation expense - 147.47 0.21  2.94 0.04   1.51 9.20 161.37 
Balance at March 31, 2024 - 176.93 1.35   13.06 0.09   2.23  11.38 205.45 
Additions -   - 7.61   -  -   1.62  -  9.23 
Disposals - 143.09  -   -  -   -  - 143.09 
Depreciation expense   96.37 0.96  2.94 0.04   1.28 7.40 108.98 
Balance at March 31, 2025   -   396.53  8.01   (0.00)  0.05   3.13   3.98  412.10 
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 (` in lakhs)

NOTE 4 B RIGHT OF USE ASSETS
The  company has adopted Ind AS 116 retrospectively from April 1, 2019, however the Company does not have any lease 
or right of use asset    for a tenure exceeding 12 months and hence there is no impact on account of adoption of  AS 116.

NOTE 4 C INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Carrying amounts of :
As at

31.03.2025 31.03.2024 31.3.2023

Software & Licensing 10.11 - 11.20

Note  5
Trade Receivables 

 As at 

 31.03.2025  31.03.2024 

a) Unsecured, considered good -  -

b) Doubtful  79.11   79.11 

Less: Provision for doubtful receivables  79.11   79.11 

-  -

a)  Trade receivables are generally due between  30 days to  60 days  based on submission and certification of invoices.
b)  �Credit risk is  managed  at client and  contract level. At the time of entering into contracts,  the credit period is 

mutually agreed and varies from contract to contract.
c)  The Company has evaluated on contract to contract basis for computing credit loss allowance, if any, for the receivables.
d)  Some trade receivables may be past due over 365 days without being impaired considering the certainty of realisation

Note 6
Other Financial Assets

 As at 

 31.03.2025  31.03.2024 

a) Bank Deposits with more than 12 months 1 100.00 

  1   100.00 

The Plant and Equipment assets are revalued as a whole, in place and asa part of of an operating business and are stated at revalued 
amounts.There was a gain on revaluation assetsvwas Rs. 315.96 lakhs which is added to the P&E assets. The disclosure details are as 
below:

a) The effective date of revaluation is 28th February, 2025
b) An Independent valuer was involved in connducting the revauation.
c) For each revalued class of property , plant and equipment , the carrying amount that would have been recognized and the assets 
had been carried under the cost model is Rs.
d)The revaluation surplus has been presented including the change for the period and any restrictions on the distribution of balance 
to the shareholders.

Assets pledged as security
Property, Plant and Equipment have been pledged as security for  loan from Bank.
Capitalised borrowing cost :
No Borrrowing cost has been  capitalised on property, plant and equipment for the year ended 31st March  2024 & 31st March 2025
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 (` in lakhs) Note  7
 Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability)  Net

 As at 

 31.03.2025  31.03.2024 

a) Timing Difference

  -  Depreciation 13.20  40.61 

  - Expenses allowed on payment basis 110.36 0.54 

  - Provision for doubtful receivables and advances  22.01  22.01 

b) Unabsorbed Business losses 942.11 966.58 

  1,087.68   1,029.74 

Deferred tax liabilities are the amounts of income taxes payable in future periods in respect of taxable temporary 
differences.

Deferred tax assets are the amounts of income taxes recoverable in future periods in respect of: 

(a) deductible temporary differences; 
(b) the carry forward of unused tax losses; and 
(c)  the carry forward of unused tax credits.

Particulars Balance as at Recognised in Balance as at 

31.03.2024 Profit & loss Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

31.03.25

Breakup for deferred tax assets (net):

Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes 40.61   -27.41  - 13.20

Expenses allowed on payment basis 0.54 109.82  - 110.36

Allowances for doubtful receivables and advances 22.01  - 22.01

Carry forward of unused tax losses (Net) 966.58 -24.47 - 942.11

1,029.74   57.95   -  1,087.69 

Particulars Balance as at Recognised in Balance as at 

01.04.2024 Profit & loss Other 
Comprehensive  

Income

31.03.2024

Breakup for deferred tax assets (net):

Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes 106.36 -65.75 - 40.61

Expenses allowed on payment basis 12.64 -12.1 - 0.54

Allowances for doubtful receivables and advances 22.01  -  - 22.01

Carry forward of unused tax losses (Net) 966.58  -  - 966.58

1,107.59 -77.85 - 1,029.74

The Company elected to exercise the option under Section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the 
Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019. The full impact on account of remeasurement of Deferred Tax Assets and 
Liabilities due to revised rates, have been recognised  in the statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 
2020.
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 (` in lakhs)
Note  8
Other Non Current Assets

 As at 

 31.03.2025 31.03.2023

Advance for properties 365.00 365.00 

Less : Provision for doubtful advances -  -

  365.00   365.00 

Note  9
Inventories

 As at 

 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

a) Raw Materials at cost 108.78 353.69

b) Work-in-Progress at cost 903.75 903.75

c) Finished Apartments at cost - -

1,012.53 1,257.44 

a. The method of valuation of inventories has been stated in Note No. 3.8

b. �The above inventories are expected to be recovered in the normal operating cycle of the Company

Note  10
Trade Receivables (Unsecured)

As at 
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Unsecured - Considered good
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the 
due date of payment

(a) Unsecured, considered good - -
Doubtful -  -

Less: Provision for doubtful debts -  -
 - -

Other Receivables
(b) Unsecured,  considered good 2,491.83  1,869.74 

Doubtful
Less: Provision for doubtful debts -79.11 -79.11

2,412.72 1,790.63

Total (a + b) 2,412.72 1,790.63
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 (` in lakhs)

Note11
Cash and Cash equivalents and Bank balances

 As at 

 31.03.2025  31.03.2024 

a) Cash on hand 1.13 0.55 

b) Current Account balance with Banks 32.44 1.87 

 Total 33.56 2.42 

Restricted balances

c)  Margin Money - For Bank Guarantees - -

TOTAL 33.56 2.42 
During the year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions on investing and financing activities.

a) Trade receivables are generally due between  30 days to  60 days  based on submission and certification of invoices.
b) Credit risk is  managed  at client and  contract level. At the time of entering into contracts,  the credit period is

mutually agreed and varies from contract to contract.
c) The Company has evaluated on contract to contract basis for computing credit loss allowance, if any, for the 

receivables.
d) Ageing of Trade receivables as follows:

Trade Receivables ageing as on 31st Mar 2025:

 Outstanding for following period from due date of payment  

Particulars Less than 6 
months

6 months 
- 1 year

1-2 
years

2-3 
years

More than 
3 years

Total

(i) Undisputed trade receivables- Considered good   1,252.00  1,160.72  -  -  - 2,412.72 

(iv) Disputed trade receivables - Considered good 

(v) Undisputed - Doubtful

(vi) Disputed -Doubtful

Trade Receivables ageing as on 31st Mar 2024

 Outstanding for following period from due date of payment  

Particulars Less than 6 
months

6 months 
- 1 year

1-2 
years

2-3 
years

More than 
3 years

Total

(i) Undisputed trade receivables- Considered good   1,790.60  -  - 1,790.60 

(iv) Disputed trade receivables - Considered good   -  -  -  -  - -

(v) Undisputed - Doubtful   -  -  -  -  - -

(vi) Disputed -Doubtful   -  -  -  -  - -
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 (` in lakhs)
Note12
Other Financial Assets

 As at 
 31.03.2025  31.03.2024 

a) Deposits 197.10 186.16 
  197.10   186.16 

Note13
Other Current Assets

 As at 
 31.03.2024  31.03.2024 

Loans and Advances to  suppliers  and subcontractors 180.17 209.63 
Unbilled Contract in progress 1,280.70 1,745.40 
Advance Tax & TDS receivable 217.14 196.11 
Balance with Statutory Authorities 400.36 426.94 
Others 9.60 124.14 

  2,087.96   2,702.23 

Note  14
Equity Share Capital  

Authorised

Equity Shares

4,00,00,000 (01 April 2024  & 31 March 2025 : 4,00,00,000) equity shares of 
Rs.10 each

4,000.00 4,000.00

4,000.00 4,000.00

 Issued   

Equity Shares

3,32,77,278 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 3327.73 3327.73

3,327.73 3,327.73

 Subscribed and Paid Up   

Equity Shares

3,32,33,598  Equity shares of Rs. 10 each  3,323.36 3,323.36

3,323.36 3,323.36

# -  Issued Equity Share Capital includes 43680 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each issued on Rights basis, kept in 
abeyance due to a pending legal issue
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a.  Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the reporting period;

Equity Shares 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

At the beginning of the period 3,32,77,278 3,32,77,278

Outstanding at the end of the period 3,32,77,278 3,32,77,278

a. The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity 
shares is entitled to one vote per share. 

b. The dividend, if proposed by the Board of Directors, is subject to approval of the shareholders in the ensuing 
annual general meeting. 

c. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets 
of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. 

d. There is no change in issued and paid up share capital during the year. However, Company has obtained 
Shareholders approval vide postal ballot notice dated 22nd February 2025 for the issue of 67,22,722 equity shares on 
preferential basis.

b.  Terms/rights attached to equity shares :

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity 
shares is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend, if proposed by the Board of Directors, is subject to approval 
of the shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders 
of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential 
amounts. 

Notes forming part of Financial Statements

  c. Shares in the company held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent shares

S No Name of the Shareholder As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.12.2024 As at 31.03.2023

No. of 
Shares 

held

% of 
Holding 

No. of 
Shares 

held

% of 
Holding 

No. of 
Shares 

held

% of 
Holding 

1 Mr. Sundeep Anand Jegath Rakshagan 8408420 25.3 8408421 25.3 - -

2 Accord Distillers & Brewers Private Limited 6458334 19.43 6458334 19.43 - -

3 Teyro Labs Private Limited 4880370 14.69 4880370 14.69 - -

4 Jam Hotels and Resorts Private Limited 4623222 13.91 4623222 13.91 - -

 (` in lakhs)

d. Shareholding of Promoters and Promoters group

S.No Name of Promoter No of 
shares

% of Total 
Shares

% of changes 
during the 

year

1 Mr. Sundeep Anand Jegath Rakshagan 84,08,421 25.3 Nil

2 M/s. Accord Distillers & Brewers Private Limited 64,58,334 19.43 Nil

3 M/s. Teyro Labs Private Limited 48,80,370 14.69 Nil

4 M/s. Jam Hotels and Resorts Private Limited 46,23,222 13.91 Nil
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Note  14 a
Other Equity excluding non-controlling interest 

 As at 
31.03.2025

As at
31.03.2024

a) Capital Reserve    7.24  7.24 

b) General Reserve

As Per last Balance Sheet  629.43 629.43 

Add : Transfer from Statement of Profit and Loss   -    -  

Add : Transfer from Investment allowance reserve  -    -  

  629.43   629.43 

Investment Allowance Reserve  -    -  

c) Securities Premium Account   2,440.80  2,440.80 

d) Retained earnings :

Balance as per last financial statement  -6,053.38  -5,613.63 

Add : Net profit/(Loss) after tax for the year  41.49   -439.73 

Appropriations :

 Less : Transfer to General Reserve   -    -  

Balance available for Appropriation    -6,011.89   -6,053.36 

 -2,934.41   -2,975.89 

e) Other Equity:

Revaluation Gain with tax impact  236.22   - 

Total  (a+b+c+d+e)  -2,698.19   -2,975.89 

Capital Reserve  includes the amounts received as Capital subsidy from Government of Tamil Nadu and those arising out 
of amalgamation in earlier years	

General Reserve is a free reserve, retained from Company's profits and can be utilised upon fulfilling certain conditions   
in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013	

Securities Premium account represents the premium received towards allotment of 16,47,390 Rights issue shares in 
2008-09	and 2,99,38,818 Rights issue shares in 2013-14 , net of utilisation for permitted purposes under Companies 
Act. 	

Balance will be utilised in accordance of provisions of Section 52 and Section 68 of the Companies Act.	

Balance in Retained earnings , when positive, can be distributed by the Company as dividends to its equity shareholders,   
in compliance of the Companies Act and depending on the financial position and dividend policy of the Company.	

Reserve for equity instruments represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on the revaluation of equity instruments 
measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive income.	
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S. 
No. 

Promoters’ Name Number of shares held Changes 
during the 

year

% of change 
during the 

year
As on 

31st March 2025
31st March 2024

1.         Sundeep Ananad Jegathrakshagan 8408420 25.3 8408420 25.3 - -

2.         Accord Distillers And Brewers Private 
Limited 

6458334 19.43 6458334 19.43 - -

3.         Teyro Labs Private Limited 4880370 14.69 4880370 14.69 - -

4.         JAM Hotels And Resorts Private Limited 4623222 13.91 4623222 13.91 - -

5.         Vellachi Murugappan - - 181755 0.55 181755 0.55

6.         M V Murugappan - - 68910 0.21 68910 0.21

7.         Valli Arunachalam - - 160956 0.48 160956 0.48

Total 2,43,70,346 73.33 2,47,81,967 74.57 4,11,621 1.24

Note  15
Preference Capital

As at 
31.03.2025

 As at 
31.03.2024

Authorised

32,00,000(01 April 2021 : 32,00,000) preference shares of Rs.100 each 3,200.00 3,200.00

a.  Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the reporting period;

At the beginning of the period  -  28,35,630 

Issued during the period  -   - 

Redeemed during the period  -  28,35,630 

Outstanding at the end of the period  -  - 

Note  16
Long Term Borrowings

As at 
 31.03.2025

 As at 
31.03.2024

Secured

Term Loan from Non Banking Financial Institution -  - 

(Secured by charge on the PPE Assets of the Company)

Unsecured

Term Loan from  Bank -  

(Secured by charge on the PPE Assets of the Company 125.00  630.84 

Term Loan from Others 995.00  - 

1,120.00 630.84
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Other Financial Liabilities

As at  As at 

 31.03.2025  31.03.2024 

Liability towards fixed dividend on Preference Shares -  - 

 -  - 

Note 18
Long Term Provisions

As at 
 31.03.2025

 As at 
31.03.2024

a) Provision for Employee benefits 87.87  74.64 

b) Provision for taxation -  - 

  87.87   74.64 

The movement in provision for employee benefits reflects the net additional provision made/settlements during the 
respective periods

Note  19
Short Term Borrowings

As at 
 31.03.2025

 As at 
31.03.2024

a) Cash Credit from Banks 804.34  835.87 

b) Working Capital Loan from Banking Institution - 

(Secured against charge on the present and future current assets)  201.13 

c) Short term loan from Non Banking Financial Company -  - 

(Secured against charge on the present and future current assets 

of Property Development Business ) 

d) Current maturities of long term borrowings

UnSecured

e) Unsecured Loans -Others 335.00

1,139.34 1,037.01

Note  20
Trade Payables

As at 
 31.03.2025

 As at 
31.03.2024

For Goods and Services

a) Dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises (Note 31) 566.42  581.68 

b) Dues of Others 2,281.22  2,799.77 

2,847.64 3,381.45
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a) Ageing of Trade Payable as follows:

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Less than 
1 year

1 - 2 
years

2-3 
years

More 
than 

3 years

Total

As at March 31, 2025

(i) MSME - Undisputed   227.41  314.46  19.68  4.87   566.42 

(ii) Others - Undisputed   554.55   1,172.82   430.41   123.44   2,281.22 

(iii)  MSME - Disputed  -   -  -  -   - 

(iv) Others- Disputed  -   -  -  -   - 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Less than 
1 year

1 - 2 
years

2-3 
years

More 
than 

3 years

Total

As at March 31, 2024

(i) MSME - Undisputed   556.96  24.72  -  -  581.68 

(ii) Others - Undisputed   2,423.02  201.68   87.56  87.51  2,799.77 

(iii)  MSME - Disputed  -   -  -  -   - 

(iv) Others- Disputed  -   -  -  -   - 

Note  21
Other Financial Liabilities

 As at 
 31.03.2025

 As at 
31.03.2024

Secured

a) Current maturities of long term borrowings -  - 

Unsecured

a) Outstanding Liabilities 70.06  1,434.90 

b) Interest Payable 223.92   - 

c) Provision for Employee Benefits 90.41  9.55 

d) Other payables including provisions 1,257.73  121.80 

 1,642.11  1,566.26 
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Note  22
Other Current Liabilities

As at 
 31.03.2025

As at
31.03.2024

a) Advance from customers-PDD -  - 

b) Advance from Customers 145.449  579.82 

c) Statutory Liabilities 11.80   - 

Other Statutory Liabilities (Dr.) 0.00  21.57 

157.25 601.40

Note  23
Revenue from Operations

For the year ended

 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

 Sale of Services

a)   Proceeds on contract 2,956.86 9,587.87

b) Gain from Sale of Fixed Assets 89.54  - 

Other Operating revenues

c)   Scrap and Sundry Sales 82.49  75.94 

3,128.89 9,663.81

Note  24
Other Income

For the year ended 

 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

a) Interest Income 1.82  3.03 

b) Interest on Income Tax Refund -  - 

c) Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets -  - 

d) Insurance Claim -  - 

e) Miscellaneous receipts 0.06  0.94 

  1.88   3.97 

Note  25
Materials consumed 

For the year ended 

 31.03.2025 31.03.24

a) Opening stock of Raw Materials 353.69  461.40 

b) Add: Purchases 503.53  3,918.33 

857.22 4,379.72

c) Less: Closing stock of Raw Materials 108.78 353.69

748.44 4,026.03
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Note  26
Changes in Inventories 

For the year ended 

 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

a)  Opening stock of

  Work-in-progress 903.75  903.75 

  Finished goods  -   - 

b)  Purchase 

c)   Closing stock of

  Work-in-progress  903.75  903.75 

  Finished goods  -   - 

  (Increase)/ Decrease  -   - 

Note 27
Employee Benefit Expenses

For the year ended 

 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

a) Salaries, wages and bonus 538.28 860.15

b) Contribution to provident and other funds 128.66 83.32

c) Staff welfare expenses 23.62 41.15

690.56 984.62

Note  28
Finance Cost

For the year ended 

 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

a) Interest expenses 299.07 263.35

b) Fixed dividend on Preference Shares - 21.21

c) Processing fees and others 0.00 17.27

299.07 301.83
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Note  29
Other Expenses

For the year ended 

 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

a) Transport & freight 56.89  93.96 

b) Power & fuel 16.31  16.86 

c) Rent 83.47  63.72 

d) Rates and taxes 41.95  4.71 

e) Repairs and maintenance 

 - Buildings

 - Plant and  Machinery   1.90  21.78 

 - Others  12.66  20.92 

f) Plant hire charges  84.07  360.56 

g) Insurance  25.45  50.50 

h) Professional and consultancy charges  99.80  190.09 

i) Travelling expenses  49.62  64.29 

j) Communication and Postage expenses  32.10  30.37 

k) Security & Watchward  47.02  63.41 

l) Advertisement, Exhibition and Sales Promotion expenses  11.48  3.49 

m) Printing and Stationery   0.80  8.06 

n) Bank Charges   8.75  0.17 

o) Payment to Auditors (see Note 32)   8.85  9.48 

p) Directors Sitting Fees  12.25  7.73 

q) Miscellaneous expenses 3.64  0.67 

r) Bad Debts 25.92   - 

  622.92  1,010.75 

Contingent liability

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be

executed on capital account not provided for Nil  Nil 

 

a Guarantees issued by the Company's  bankers

for which the Company has given counter guarantees.

(Net of guarantees for which liability exists in the 

books of account) Nil  1,783.66 

b Letter of credits issued by the Company’s bankers

for which the Company has given counter guarantees  Nil  Nil 

Note  30
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Estimated liability on account of certain taxes and duties not provided for

a) Kerala VAT for 2011-12 - tax on disputed turnover  5.60   5.60 

and interest thereon (Rs 0.66 Lacs paid, appeal filed)

b) GST - Odisha 5.43   5.43 

Interest for the TRAN 1 credit reversal. The Deputy Commissioner of CT & GST 
Ganjam- 2 circle Odissa issued a show cause notice for Rs. 5.43 lakhs on 25.10.2021 
with the order passed on 10.12.2021 and after the appeal was dismissed on 
28.06.2023, a further appeal to the appellate tribunal has been filed .

c) Suit filed by the Vendor in the court of Telangana 52.01   52.01 

USR No. WPUSR84448/2023 Filing Date 30/08/2023 Status : Pending for Scrutiny

d) Suit filed by the Vendor against the Company in the court of Madurai high Court  
(CMA  (MD)  840 of 2022

 -   6.00 

Dispute is amicably settled between the parties through the peocess conciliation 
and settlement of Rs. 1.60 lakhs made to the contractor on 02.06.2023 

Ref. CMA(MD)No. 840 of 2022  Before the Madras Bench of Madras High Court 
Dt. 25.02.2025, the miscellanous  appeal is disposed as there was settlement as 
stated above.

e) TN / GST - FY 2017-18

On 30.12.2023 The Deputy Commercial Tax Officer, TN , issued an order for 
4,997.35 lakhs under section 73 of the TNGST 2017, which was partially rectified to 
Rs. 2,135.93 lakhs on 10.01.2024. Awrit petiona challenging this order was filled on 
22.01.2024 resulting in the High Court squashing the assesment and reminding it 
for consideration on 08.02.2024

  -  2,135.93 

On 08.02.2024 the impugned assesment is squashed matter is remanded for 
reconsideration and the assessing officer directed to issue a fresh assessment 
order within a period of two months from the date of receipt of a company of this 
order. The revised notice is issued on 22.05.2024. We have replied to the revised 
notice under revised order is passed and tax of Rs. 2,40,286 Rs. paid on 17.12.2024

f) TN / GST - FY 2017-18

On 30/12/2023, the Deputy Commercial Tax Officer, TN issued an order for Rs. 5.65 
lakhs under section 73  of the TNGST 2017 for excess ITC claimed under reverse 
charge mechanism, with an appeal filed on 01/03/2024

5.65   5.65 

Appeal to Appellate Authority is filed against the proceedings of the Deputy State 
Tax Officer (ST) on 01/03/2024.

Hearing appeared on 15.03.2024 and waiting for next hearing.
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g) TN / GST - FY 2018-19

On 29/04/2024, the Deputy Commercial Tax Officer, TN , issued an order for Rs. 
55.66 lakhs under section 73 of the TNGST 2017 for ITC discrepancies, with an 
appeal yet to be filed.

 55.66   55.66 

Request for rectification order filed on 17.07.2024 with the details of ITC 
reconciliation.

h) AP / GST - FY 2017-18

On 29/12/2023, the Assistant Commissioner (ST) Andhra Pradesh, issued an 
order for Rs. 24.10 lakhs under section 73 of the APGST Act 2017 due to ITC 
mismatches, with an appeal filed on 26/03/2024

 24.10   24.10 

Appeal to Apellate Authorities filed on 26/03/2024 against order dated 
29/12/2023  which stands dismissed and appeal order is passed on 10/07/2024, 
an appeal to the Apellate Tribunal I yet to be filed as Tribunal I is not formed.

i) AP / GST - FY 2018-19

 96.52   96.52 

On 23/04/2024, The Assistant Commissioner(ST), Visakhapatnam, issued a 
rectification order under section 161 of SGST and CGST Acts for Rs. 96.52 
lakhs, with Rs. 1.48 lakhs already paid, and an appeal is pending. Assistant 
Commissioner (ST) on 22.07.2024.

j) AP / GST - FY 2019-20

On 10/05/2024 the Assistant Commissioner (ST), Visakapatnam issued an order 
for Rs. 3.86 laks uner Section 73 APGST Act 2017 for ITC discrepancied , with an 
appeal still pending. Appeal to Appellate Authority is under progress against the 
proceedings of the Assistant Commissioner(ST)

 3.86   3.86 

k) AP / GST - FY 2020-21

On  09/05/2024 , Assistant Commissioner (ST), Visakhapatnam issued an order 
for Rs. 7.57 lakhs under Section 73 AP GST Act 2017 for ITC discrepancies, with an 
appeal yet to be filed. Appeal to Appellate Authority is under progress against the 
proceedings of the Assistant Commissioner (ST)

 7.57   7.57 

l) AP / GST - FY 2021-22

On 09/05/2024, the Assistant Commissiuoner (ST), Visakhapatnam issued an 
order order under section 73 APGST Act 2017 for Rs. 1.48 lakhs concerning ITC 
discreoancies between GSTR 2A and GSTR 3b . An appeal against this order is 
pending. Appeal to Appellate Authority is yet to be filed against the proceedings 
of the Assistant Commissioner (ST)

 1.48   1.48 
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m) TN / GST -FY 2020 -21

Order under sec 73  Appeal filed with Deputy Commissioner (CT) on 26/11/2024. 
Pending further submission during  personal hearings, Vakalath to be changed

 85.13   - 

n) TN / GST - FY 2020 -21

Order under Sec 73 Appeal filed on 23/5/2025  waiting for personal heariing.  54.72   - 

o) TE-GST-FY 2020-21

Appeal filed on 29.05.2024 DRC07 Order Dt. 25.02.2025  9.76   - 

p) PF  -Show Cause Notice

The company received a show Cause Notice from the Regional PF Commissioner- 
I , Chennai, on 30/08/2023 for compliance violations. Following the company's 
response, the Commissioner directed on 29/01/2024 that the company recoup 
losses of Rs. 1,06,60,151.

  -   106.60 

Out of this we paid back Rs. 25 lakhs on 5th  Nov. 2024 , we are in the process of 
surrendering all the trust accounts of PF to the EPF and also we will reconcile and 
pay the balance recoupment loss amount in due course. Provision is made for the 
balance due on recoupment loss in the year 2024-'25

Note  31
  Principal amount dues to Micro, Small and Medium 

  enterprises in respect of suppliers from whom 

  intimation received on their status under MSME  Dev

  Act, 2006 (Refer Note 20). This is based on information 566.42   581.68 

  collected by management and relied upon by Auditors

Note  32
Auditor's Remuneration (included in Note 29)

  Statutory audit fees 6.00   6.00 

  Tax audit fees 1.50   1.40 

  Other services 1.00   1.84 

  Out of pocket expenses 0.35   0.23 

8.85   9.47 

As at

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
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Note  33
Turn over

Contract Revenue 3,068.4 9,587.87

Service Income - -

Scrap & Sundry Sales 62.37 75.94

3,130.77 9,663.81

Note  34
Disclosure relaing to Contracts

Contract revenue recognised 3,048.29 9,587.90

Contract Cost Incurred 2,263.60 8,916.90

Advances received 146.5 579.82

Retention 457.61 493.66

Dues from customers 1,280.70 1.376.08

Note  35
Basic/ Diluted Earning Per Share

Profit/ Loss attributable to the Equity Shareholders  277.71   (493.73)

No.of Adjusted Equity Shares Outstanding during the year 3,32,33,598 3,32,33,598

Nominal value of Equity Share (Rs.) 10 10

Basic Earning Per Share(Rs.)  0.12   (1.32)

Diluted Earning Per Share(Rs.)  0.12   (1.32)

Note  36
As the Company's business activity falls within a single significant business segment, 

viz. "Construction ", no separate segment reporting as per Accounting Standard 108  -   - 

is disclosed.

Note  37
Expenditure in Foreign Currency  -   - 

As at

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
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As at

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Note  38
Related Party 
M/s Bhaarath Medical College and Hospital- Promoter Group
M/s Accord Distillers & Brewers Pvt Ltd – Promoter
M/s. Unnmaii Financial Services Pvt ltd - Director or his relative is interested
M/s. Sameera Estates Private Limited - Director or his relative is interested
Key Management Personnel
Mr. G V Manimaran, Chairman & Managing Director (with effect from 12th
November 2024) 
Mr. Abdul Kader Batcha Babu Ismath Razack Chief Financial Officer (with effect from 
14th December 2024
Mr. R. Sethupathy Chief Operating Officer ( With effect from 14 th December 2024)
Mrs. Sneha Jain, Company secretary  (with effect from 31st January 2025)
Mr. Ramkumar, Managing Director(Resigned with effect from 13th April 2024)
Mr. Sabaretnam Singaram, Managing Director Resigned with effect from 25th 
October 2024)

Mr. Ravichandran Perumal, CFO (Resigned with effect from 15th November 2024) 
Mr Anto Abinash E, Company Secretary (Resigned with effect from 31st October
2024)
Ms. Akila, Company Secretary (Resigned with effect from 31st May 2024)

Transactions with Related parties
M/s Bhaarath Medical College and Hospital – Sale/Rendering of Services 813.39 158.86
M/s Accord Distillers & Brewers Pvt Ltd- Sale/Rendering of Services 200 53.1
M/s. Bharath Institue of Higher Education and Research - Sale/Rendering of Services 200.95 -
M/s. Unnmaii Financial Services Pvt ltd 320 -
M/s. Sameera Estates Private Limited 87.40 -
Mr. G V Manimaran, Chairman & Managing Director (with effect from 12th
November 2024) 

 1.00   - 

Mr. Abdul Kader Batcha Babu Ismath Razack Chief Financial Officer (with effect from 
14th December 2024

8.71   - 

Mr. R. Sethupathy Chief Operating Officer ( With effect from 14 th December 2024) 8.38  ` 
Mr. Sabaretnam Singaram, MD  with effect from 13th February 2024 30.62   7.14 
Mr. Ravichandran Perumal, CFO (Resigned with effect from 15th November 2024) 19.02   6.46 
Mr Anto Abinash E, Company Secretary (Resigned with effect from 31st October
2024)

3.56   - 

Ms. Akila, Company Secretary (Resigned with effect from 31st May 2024)  0.50   - 
Name of Non-executive Director
Ennarasu Karunesan, Director (with effect from 12th November 2024)  2.05   - 
Baskaran, Director (with effect from 12th November 2024)  1.05   - 
Ravi Muthusamy, Independent Director (with effect from 12th November 2024)  1.65   - 
Nallusamy Elangovan, Independent Director (with effect from 31st Jan 2025)  2.00   - 
Rajendran Stella Isabella,Independent Director (with effect from 31st January 2025)  0.95   - 
Asir Raja Selva, Independent Director (Resigned with effect from 21st January 2025)  1.35   0.10 
Muthiah Nagalingam, Independent Director (Resigned with effect from 21st January 
2025) 

 1.30   0.80 

Srinivasan Sridevi, Independent Director (Resigned with effect from 14th December 
2024) 

 0.70   0.20 
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Note   39  
Employee Benefits   

a) Defined Contribution plans :

The Company operates defined contribution retirement benefit plans for all qualifying employees. The assets of the 
plans are held separately from those of the Company under the control of trustees.  When any employee leaves the 
plans before full vesting of contributions,the contributions payable by the Company are reduced by the amount of 
contributions forfeited by said employee.

Contribution to Provident fund and Other funds under defined contribution plans are as follows :

 2024-25  2023-24 

Amount recognised in Profit and Loss for the year 52.00 52.14

b) Defined benefit plans :

The Company offers funded defined benefit plans for employees. Under the plans, the employees are entitled to 
post-retirement benefits amounting to 57.69% of last drawn monthly salary for each year of completed service until 
retirement age or resignation, subject to having specified years of service with the Company. The defined benefit  plans 
are administered by separate funds, independent of the Company.

The above plans expose the Company to actuarial risks such as Investment, Interest rate, salary and longevity risk. 
These risks typically arise out of movement in market yields, interest rate movements, rate of increase in salary of 
participants and their tenure with the Company.  Some of the risks are partially offset by  counter gains of the fund.

No other Post-retirement benefits are provided to the employees.

The actuarial valuation of the plan assets and present value of defined benefit obligation were carried out as at  
31st March, 2025 by a certified actuary of the Institute of Actuaries of India. The present value of defined benefit  
obligation and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit 
method.

31-03-2025 31-03-2024

PRESENT VALUE OF OBLIGATION 61.88 63.17

[GRATUITY WITH NO MONETARY CEILING]

I.  PRINCIPAL ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS[Expressed as weighted averages]

  Discount Rate 6.90% 7.00%

  Rate of increase in compensation levels 16.00% 7.00%

  Attrition Rate 3.00% 5.00%

  Expected rate of return on Plan Assets 7.00% 7.00%

II.  CHANGES IN THE PRESENT VALUE OF THE OBLIGATION (PVO) 

PVO as at the beginning of the period 63.17 53.31

Interest Cost 4.26 3.59

Current service cost 5.25 5.7

Past service cost   -   - 

Benefits paid and Charges deducted -4.69 -6.7

Actuarial loss/(gain) on obligation (balancing figure) -6.11 7.28

PVO as at the end of the period 61.88 63.17
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31-03-2025 31-03-2024

III. CHANGES IN THE FAIR VALUE OF PLAN ASSETS - RECONCILIATION OF 
OPENING AND CLOSING BALANCES:

Fair value of plan assets as at the beginning of the period 11.04 15.65

Expected return on plan assets 0.71 0.92

Contributions 3 1.06

Benefits paid and Charges deducted -4.69 -6.7

Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets [balancing figure] -0.18 0.1

Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the period 9.88 11.03

IV.  ACTUAL RETURN ON PLAN ASSETS

Expected return on plan assets 0.71 0.92

Actuarial gain (loss) on plan assets -0.18 0.1

Actual return on plan assets 0.53 1.02

V.  ACTUARIAL GAINS AND LOSSES RECOGNIZED

Actuarial gain (loss) for year - obligation -50.29 -7.27

Actuarial gain (loss) for year - plan assets 0.18 0.1

Subtotal -50.11 -7.17

Actuarial (gain) / loss recognized -5.92 7.17

Unrecognized actuarial gains (losses)  at the end of the period   - 

VI.  AMOUNTS RECOGNISED IN THE BALANCE SHEET AND RELATED 
ANALYSES

Present value of the obligation 61.88 63.17

Fair value of plan assets 9.88 11.03

Amount determined under para 63 of Ind AS19 -52 52.13

Net Defined Benefit Liability recognized in the balance sheet -52 52.13

Present value of future reduction in contribution under para 65 of Ind AS 19   -   - 

Net Defined Benefit Asset recognised under para 64 of Ind AS19   -   - 

VII. EXPENSES RECOGNISED IN THE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS:

Current service cost 5.25 5.7

Net Interest on Net Defined Benefit Obligations 3.54 2.66

Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognised during the period   -   - 

Past service cost   -   - 

Expenses recognized in the statement of profit and loss 8.79 8.37

VIII.  AMOUNT RECOGNIZED FOR THE CURRENT PERIOD IN THE STATEMENT 
OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME [OCI]

Actuarial (gain)/loss on Plan Obligations -50.29 7.28

Difference between Actual Return and Interest Income on Plan Assets- (gain)/
loss

0.18 -0.1

Effect of Balance Sheet asset limit   -   - 

Amount recognized in OCI for the current period -50.11 7.17

IX.  MOVEMENTS IN THE LIABILITY RECOGNIZED IN THE BALANCE SHEET

Opening net liability adjusted for effect of balance sheet limit 52.13 37.65
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31-03-2025 31-03-2024

Amount recognised in Profit and Loss 2.86 8.36

Amount recognised in OCI 0 7.17

Contribution paid -3 -1.05

Closing net liability 52 52.13

X.  AMOUNT FOR THE CURRENT PERIOD

Present Value of obligation 61.88 63.17

Plan Assets 9.88 11.03

Surplus (Deficit) -52 -52.13

Experience adjustments on plan liabilities -(loss)/gain -0.53 1.02

Impact of Change in Assumptions on Plan Liabilities-(loss)/gain -8.3

Experience adjustments on plan assets -(loss)/gain 0   (0)

XI.  MAJOR CATEGORIES OF PLAN ASSETS (AS PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL PLAN 
ASSETS)

Government of India Securities 0.00% 0.00%

State Government Securities 0.00% 0.00%

High Quality Corporate Bonds 0.00% 0.00%

Equity shares of listed companies 0.00% 0.00%

Property 0.00% 0.00%

Special Deposit Scheme 0.00% 0.00%

Funds managed by Insurer 100.00% 100.00%

Others  (to specify) 0.00% 0.00%

Total 100.00% 100.00%

XII.  ENTERPRISE'S BEST ESTIMATE OF CONTRIBUTION DURING NEXT YEAR NA NA

Note   40
Financial Instruments   

a) Capital management
For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, securities  premium and all 
other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital 
management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company's approach on capital management are a) Protecting the ability to continue as a going concern, so that 
return to shareholders and benefits to other stakeholders can be continuously provided b) Maintain capital structure in 
such a manner to minimise the weighted average cost of capital.

Debt to Equity Ratio

Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Debt (including Preference Capital)  2,259.34  1,667.85 

Equity   625.17   347.47 

Debt to Equity ratio  3.61  4.80 

Covenants relating to various loans have been adhered to as on  March 31, 2023.
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 (` in lakhs)b) Categories of financial instruments

Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

i) Financial assets

Measured at fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) - mandatorily 
measured

- -

Measured at Amortised cost

- cash and bank balances  33.56  2.42 

 - Other financial assets  2,610.82  2,076.79 

Measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

 - Investments in equity instruments designated at initial recognition   -   - 

ii) Financial liabilities (including borrowings/preference capital and 
payables)

 5,629.09  6,615.56 

c) Financial risk management objectives
Based on the Company's activities,  it is exposed to  market risk,  liquidity risk and credit risk.  The following  
explains the manner in which the Company manages the risk.

i) Market risk arising from interest rate movement on long term borrowings are monitored through trend and 
sensitivity analysis and managed through negotiations

ii) Liquidity risk on account of  borrowings and other liabilities are monitored through cash flow analysis and 
managed through having adequate sanctioned undrawn funded and non funded facilities.  This addresses the 
financial liabilities portion.

iii) Credit risk on account of  trade receivables and financial assets measured at amortised cost are measured 
through ageing analysis, counter party risk analysis and financial analysis, managed through review of credit 
limits, follow up and secured mode of payment.

The Company does not have any risk associated with foreign currency transactions or  price risk from current 
investments.

Fair Value measurements

The Company measures some of the financial assets and liabilities at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The 
following gives the information on how the fair valuation is done :

Financial assets and financial liabilities Fair value as at Fair value

31.03.2025 31.03.2024 Hierarchy

Investments in quoted/actively traded equity instruments at FVTOCI - - -

Investments in other equity instruments at FVTOCI - - -

There were no changes in the fair value hierarchy levels in the above periods.
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 (` in lakhs)
Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value , but requiring fair value 
disclosures

Financial assets held at amortised cost : Carrying value as at Fair value 
Hierarchy

Fair value 

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Non-Current Financial Assets

Receivables   -   - Level 2 No Change

Current Financial Assets

Receivables  2,412.72  1,790.63 Level 2 No Change

Deposits 197.10 186.16 Level 3 No Change

Non current financial liabilities

Borrowings  1,120.00   630.84 Level 2 No Change

Preference Capital   -   - Level 2 No Change

Other financial liabilities   -   - Level 2 No Change

Current financial liabilities

Borrowings  1,139.34 1,037.01 Level 2 No Change

Trade payables  2,847.64 3,381.45 Level 2 No Change

Other financial liabilities  1,642.11  1,566.26 Level 3 No Change

NOTE 41
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the financial year, the Company undertook certain events impacting its capital structure 
and financial position:

1. Preferential Issue of Equity Shares
The Company proposed the issue of 66,72,722 equity shares of face value `10 each at a price of `40.05 per share 
(including a premium of `30.05 per share) on a preferential basis to certain identified allottees from both Promoter 
and Non-Promoter groups. The proposal was approved by the shareholders through postal ballot on March 27, 2025, 
and in-principle approval was received from BSE Limited on April 23, 2025. Pursuant to these approvals, the Company 
allotted 16,49,840 equity shares aggregating to `6,60,76,092 on 8th May 2025, and listing approval for the same was 
received from BSE Limited on July 16, 2025.

2. Sub-division of Preference Shares
The Company approved the sub-division of each preference share of face value `100 into ten preference shares of face 
value `10 each, to facilitate greater flexibility in capital structuring.

3. Reclassification of Authorized Share Capital
The authorised share capital of the Company was reclassified from `72,00,00,000 divided into 4,00,00,000 equity 
shares of `10 each and 3,20,00,000 preference shares of `10 each, to `72,00,00,000 divided into 5,20,00,000 equity 
shares of `10 each and 2,00,00,000 preference shares of `10 each. Accordingly, Clause V of the Memorandum of 
Association was amended.
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 (` in lakhs)
Note 42
RATIOS:

Particulars Numerator Denominator As at 31 
Mar- 25

As at 31 
Mar- 24 Variance

Reason for 
variance 
(where 

variance>25%
a) Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 99% 90% 9%
b) Debt- Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholders 

Equity
11.19 4.80 639% Decrease due 

to decrease in 
Current Liability

c)Debt Service 
Coverage Ratio 

Earning available for 
debt srvice (PAT+ 
Depreciation& 
amortization + Loss 
on sale of fixed 
assets+other non 
cash adjustments 
+ Any non cash 
operating expenses)

Debt service 
(Interest & 
Lease Payments 
+ Principal 
repayments

0% 0% 0% NA

d) Return on Equity 
Ratio

Profit available for 
Equity Shareholders( 
PAT-Preference 
Dividend)

Average 
Shareholder's 
Equity

1% - 1% Profit during 
last year.

e)Inventory turnover 
ratio

COGS or Sales Average Inventory 3.10 7.37 -427%

f)Trade Receivable 
turnover ratio

Net credit sales(net 
of sales returns)

Average accounts 
receivable

1.3 5.16 -386%

g) Trade Payable 
turnover ratio

Net credit 
purchases(net of 
purchase returns)

Average trade 
payables

1.90 2.92 -102% Purchase has 
come and 
payable is 
increased on 
account of non 
availablity new 
bank limits 
and reduction 
in contracts 
income

h)Net capital turnover 
ratio

Net Sales (net of 
sales)

Working Capital 
Current Assets- 
Current Liabilities

-73.72 -14.93 (58.79) Trade payable 
amount has 
been decresed 
further 
declained in 
net capital 
turnover.

i)Net Profit Ratio PAT Net Sales (net of 
sales)

0.01 -0.05 0.06 Increase in 
profit.

J)Return on Captal 
Employed

PBIT Capital employed 
( Tangible 
networth+ 
Total debt+DTL) 
Tangible Networth 
= Total assets-
Intangible assets- 
Total liabilities)

-0.012 -0.19 18% Improvement 
over previous 
year, Increase in 
operating profit 
margin
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NOTE 43
No proceeding has been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the 
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

NOTE 44
The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender.

NOTE 45
The Company has not had any transactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act,2013 or 
Section 560 of the Companies Act,1956

NOTE 46
There are no charges or satisfaction pending to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory time 
limit

NOTE 47
The Company does not have any layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with 
the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

NOTE 48
The Company does not have any transaction not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

NOTE 49
The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the year.

NOTE 50
Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium:

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person/(s) or entity/(ies), including foreign 
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The Company has not received any fund from any person/(s) or entity/(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) 
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

a.  Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.
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NOTE 51
The Company does not have any Core Investment Companies in the group.

NOTE 52
APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Financial statements were reviewed and recommended by the Audit committee and has been approved by the 
Board of Directors in their respective meeting held on 20th May 2025.

NOTE 53
The company maintains proper books of account as required by the law. The books of account are also electronically 
maintained by the company. The backup is maintained in servers located in India. The accounting software has the 
feature of recording audit trail of each and every transaction.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date	 For & on Behalf of the Board
For CNGSN & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
F.R.No.004915S
Sonali Khatod M	 Ennarasu Karunesan	 G V Manimaran
Partner	 Director	 Chairman & Managing Director
Membership No.254938	 DIN: 00200432	 DIN: 09707546
UDIN : 25254938BMOYTD3191

Chennai	 Sneha Jain	 A K Babu Ismath Razack  
20th May, 2025	 Company Secretary	 Chief Financial Officer
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ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

ITEM NO. 1 – ADOPTION OF FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 
2025

To consider and if deemed fit, to pass, the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

To receive, consider and adopt the Board’s Report 
and the Audited Financial Statements of the 
Company for the financial year ended 31st March 
2025 and the Report of the Auditors’ thereon.

ITEM NO. 2 - RE-APPOINTMENT OF DR. ENNARASU 
KARUNESAN (DIN: 00200432) AS NON-EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY LIABLE TO RETIRE BY 
ROTATION:

To consider and if deemed fit, to pass, the following  
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 152(6) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and Article 17.26 of the 
Articles of Association of the Company, Dr. Ennarasu 
Karunesan (DIN: 00200432) who retires by rotation 
in the Annual General Meeting and being eligible 
offers himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby 
re-appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the 
Company  liable to retire by rotation.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

ITEM NO. 3 - APPOINTMENT OF M/S. NITHYA 
GOKUL & ASSOCIATES AS SECRETARIAL AUDITORS 
FOR THE CONSECUTIVE TERM OF 5 YEARS (FROM 
2025-26 TO 2029-30).

To consider and if deemed fit, to pass, the following  
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution 

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 204 and other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rule 9 of 
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 read with 
Regulation 24A and other applicable regulations 
of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

NOTICE OF THE SEVENTY SEVENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Notice is hereby given that the Seventy Seventh Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of 
COROMANDEL ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED will be held on Thursday, the 18th of September 2025 at 
03.00 P.M. I.S.T through Video Conferencing (”VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact the 
following business:

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, (Listing Regulations), [including 
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) 
thereof for the time being in force] and based on 
recommendation of Audit Committee of Directors 
and the Board of Directors, M/s Nithya Gokul & 
Associates, Practicing Company Secretary, (FCS 
No.9221, CP No. 10804; Peer Review No. 3662/2023) 
be and is hereby appointed as Secretarial Auditor 
of the Company, to hold office for a term of 5 (five) 
consecutive years commencing from FY 2025-26 to 
FY 2029-30 to undertake Secretarial Audit of the 
Company, on such remuneration plus applicable 
taxes, travel and actual out-of-pocket expenses, as 
may be mutually agreed upon between the Board 
of Directors of the Company and the Secretarial 
Auditor from time to time. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of 
the Company (including its Committee thereof) be 
and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, 
matters and things as may be necessary, expedient 
and desirable for the purpose of giving effect to this 
resolution.

ITEM NO. 4 - TO APPROVE MATERIAL RELATED 
PARTY TRANSACTIONS WITH SRI LAKSHMI 
AMMAL EDUCATIONAL TRUST

To consider and if deemed fit, to pass, the following  
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulations 2(1)
(zc), 23(4) and other applicable regulations 
of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the related 
rules framed thereunder (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the 
time being in force) and other applicable laws/
statutory provisions, if any, and the Company’s 
Policy on Related Party Transactions, each as 
amended from time to time, the consent of 
the Members be and is hereby accorded to the 
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Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter 
referred to as the ‘Board’, which term shall be 
deemed to include any Committee constituted/
empowered/to be constituted by the Board from 
time to time to exercise its powers conferred 
by this resolution) to continue with the existing 
contract(s)/arrangement(s)/transaction(s) and/
or enter into and/or carry out new contract(s)/ 
arrangement(s)/transaction(s) (whether by way 
of an individual transaction or transactions taken 
together or series of transactions or otherwise), 
as detailed in the Explanatory Statement, to be 
entered into and/or carried out and/or continued 
between / amongst Coromandel Engineering 
Company Limited (‘Company)’ and/or Sri Lakshmi 
Ammal Educational Trust (‘Trust’) along with the 
educational institutions and organizations affiliated 
under the said Trust, related party of the Company, 
on such terms and conditions as may be agreed 
upon between the Company and/or Company 
with Trust, for an aggregate value not exceeding 
` 200,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two Hundred Crores 
Only) from 77th Annual General Meeting [the date 
of passing of this resolution] till the date of 78th 
Annual General Meeting, as per the details set out 
in the explanatory statement annexed to this notice 
and subject to such contract(s)/arrangement(s)/ 
transaction(s) being carried out at arm’s length and 
in the ordinary course of business of the Company. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is 
hereby authorized to do and perform all such acts, 
deeds, matters and things, as may be necessary 
and expedient, including finalizing the terms 
and conditions, methods and modes in respect 
thereof and finalizing and executing necessary 
documents, including contract(s), agreement(s) 
and such other documents, file applications and 
make representations in respect thereof and seek 
approval from relevant authorities, including 
Governmental authorities in this regard and deal 
with any matters, take necessary steps as the Board 
may, in its absolute discretion deem necessary, 
desirable or expedient, to give effect to this 
resolution and to settle any question that may arise 
in this regard and incidental thereto, without being 
required to seek any further consent or approval of 
the Members or otherwise to the end and intent 

that the Members shall be deemed to have given 
their approval thereto expressly by the authority of 
this resolution. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is 
hereby authorised to delegate all or any of the 
powers herein conferred, to any Director(s) or Chief 
Financial Officer or Company Secretary or any other 
Officer(s)/Authorised Representative(s) of the 
Company, to do all such acts and take such steps, as 
may be considered necessary or expedient, to give 
effect to the aforesaid resolution. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the 
Board, or any person so authorized by the Board, 
in connection with any matter referred to or 
contemplated in the foregoing resolution, be and 
are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed in all 
respects.

ITEM NO. 5 - TO APPROVE MATERIAL RELATED 
PARTY TRANSACTION LIMITS WITH UNNMAII 
FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED 

To consider and if deemed fit, to pass, the following  
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulations 2(1)
(zc), 23(4) and other applicable regulations 
of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the related 
rules framed thereunder (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the 
time being in force) and other applicable laws/
statutory provisions, if any, and the Company’s 
Policy on Related Party Transactions, each as 
amended from time to time, the consent of the 
Members be and is hereby accorded to the Board 
of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred 
to as the ‘Board’, which term shall be deemed to 
include any Committee constituted/empowered/
to be constituted by the Board from time to time 
to exercise its powers conferred by this resolution) 
to enter into and/or carry out arrangement(s)/
transaction(s) (whether by way of loan(s), inter-
corporate deposit(s), advance(s) or any other form 
of borrowing), whether secured or unsecured, with 
Unnmaii Financial Services Private Limited, a related 
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party of the Company, for an aggregate amount not 
exceeding ` 10,00,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Crores 
only), during the period commencing from the 
conclusion of the 77th Annual General Meeting till 
the conclusion of the 78th Annual General Meeting, 
on such terms and conditions as may be mutually 
agreed between the Company and the said related 
party.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT such borrowing(s)/
advances may exceed the threshold of ten percent 
(10%) or such other limit as may be specified 
under the SEBI Listing Regulations, of the annual 
consolidated turnover of the Company, as per 
the last audited financial statements, and may be 
treated as material related party transactions.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is 
hereby authorized to do and perform all such acts, 
deeds, matters and things, as may be necessary 
and expedient, including finalizing the terms 
and conditions, methods and modes in respect 
thereof and finalizing and executing necessary 
documents, including contract(s), agreement(s) 
and such other documents, file applications and 
make representations in respect thereof and seek 
approval from relevant authorities, including 

Governmental authorities in this regard and deal 
with any matters, take necessary steps as the Board 
may, in its absolute discretion deem necessary, 
desirable or expedient, to give effect to this 
resolution and to settle any question that may arise 
in this regard and incidental thereto, without being 
required to seek any further consent or approval of 
the Members or otherwise to the end and intent 
that the Members shall be deemed to have given 
their approval thereto expressly by the authority of 
this resolution. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is 
hereby authorised to delegate all or any of the 
powers herein conferred, to any Director(s) or Chief 
Financial Officer or Company Secretary or any other 
Officer(s)/Authorised Representative(s) of the 
Company, to do all such acts and take such steps, as 
may be considered necessary or expedient, to give 
effect to the aforesaid resolution. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the 
Board, or any person so authorized by the Board, 
in connection with any matter referred to or 
contemplated in the foregoing resolution, be and 
are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed in all 
respects.

On behalf of the Board

Place: Chennai	 G V MANIMARAN
Date: 13th August, 2025	 Chairman & Managing Director
	 DIN: 09707546
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1.	 The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 
102 read with Section 110 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) setting out the material 
facts and reasons in respect of the resolution as 
set out above, is annexed hereto and forms part 
of this Notice.

2.	 General instructions for accessing and 
participating in the 77th AGM through VC Facility 
and voting through electronic means including 
remote e-Voting:

The 77th Annual General meeting (AGM) of the 
company will be held over Video Conferencing 
(“VC”) in compliance with framework issued 
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs through 
its Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 
read with Circular No. 14/2020 dated April, 
08, 2020 , Circular no. 17/2020 dated April 13, 
2020, Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 
2021, Circular No. 21/2021 dated December 
14, 2021, Circular No. 02/2022 dated May 
5, 2022, Circular No. 10/2022 dated 28th 
December, 2022, Circular No.9/2023 dated 
25th September 2023,  SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/ 
CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020, Circular 
no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD21/CIR/P/2021/11 
dated 15th January, 2021, Circular no. SEBI/ 
HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 13, 
2022 and Circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD- 2/P/
CIR/2023/4 dated January 5, 2023 and SEBI/
HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/133 dated 
October 3, 2024 (“Circulars”) in compliance 
with this Circulars issued by the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India in this regard. The 
deemed venue for the 77th AGM shall be the 
Registered Office of the Company from where 
the Company Secretary of the Company would 
be convening and attending the AGM.

Since the AGM is being held over video 
conferencing where physical attendance of 
members in any case has been dispensed, a 
member entitled to attend and vote at the 
meeting will not be eligible to appoint proxies 
to attend the meeting instead of him/her. 

Accordingly, the proxy form and attendance slip 
are not attached to this notice and the resultant 
requirement for submission of proxy forms does 
not arise.

3.	 The Register of Members and the Share Transfer 
Books of the Company shall remain closed from 
Thursday, 11th September 2025 to Thursday, 
18th September 2025 (both days inclusive), for 
the purpose  of Annual General Meeting.

4.	 Corporate members intending to attend the 
Meeting are requested to send to the Company 
a certified scanned copy of the Board Resolution 
authorizing their representatives to attend the 
AGM through VC and vote on its behalf. The said 
resolution/ authorization shall be sent to the 
following e-mail address vidhyacsoffice@gmail.
com with a copy marked to evoting@kfintech.
com.

5.	 Members may note that the VC Facility provided 
by KFin Technologies Limited (Formerly 
known as KFin Technologies Private Limited) 
allows participation of up to 1,000 Members 
on a first-come-first-served basis. The large 
shareholders (i.e. shareholders holding 2% or 
more shareholding), promoters, institutional 
investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, 
the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors, 
etc. can attend the 77th AGM without any 
restriction on account of first-come first- served 
basis, in accordance with the circulars issued by 
MCA in this regard.

6.	 The Member’s log-in to the Video Conferencing 
platform using the remote e-voting credentials 
shall be considered for record of attendance 
at the AGM and members attending the AGM 
through VC shall be counted for the purpose of 
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the 
Act.

7.	 Since the AGM will be held through VC, the 
Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.

NOTES
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8.	 The register of Directors’ and Key Managerial 
Personnel and their shareholding maintained 
under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
the register of contracts or arrangements 
in which the Directors are interested under 
Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and all 
other documents referred to in the notice will 
be available for inspection in electronic mode. 
Members can send an email for this purpose to 
cscecl@cec.coromandel-group.com.

9.	 Dispatch of Postal Ballot Notice through 
electronic mode

	 In accordance with the provisions of the 
circulars, this Notice is being sent through 
email only to Members whose email IDs are 
registered with KFin Technologies Limited 
(“KFin”), Registrar and Share Transfer Agent 
(“RTA”) of the Company, National Securities 
Depository Limited (“NSDL”) and / or Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”) 
(collectively referred to as Depositories or  
NSDL / CDSL) as at close of business hours on 
Friday, 22nd August 2025, (“cut-off date”). As 
per the Circulars, physical copies of the Notice, 
postal ballot forms and pre-paid business reply 
envelopes are not being sent to Members for 
this Postal Ballot. Members are requested to 
provide their assent or dissent through remote 
e-voting only. In respect of those members 
who have not registered their e-mail IDs, the 
Company has mentioned the documents to be 
provided to KFin hereunder.

	 Members may note that the Notice will be 
available on the Company’s website https://
coromandelengg.com/annual-report, website 
of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited (“BSE”) 
and the National Stock Exchange of India 
Limited (“NSE”) at www.bseindia.com and www.
nseindia.com respectively and on the website of 
KFin at https://evoting.kfintech.com.

10.	Registration of e-mail ID

Members who have not registered their email 
IDs are requested to do so at the earliest. 
Members holding shares in:

-	 Electronic mode can register their email ID 
by contacting their respective Depository 
Participant(s) (“DP”). 

-	 Physical mode can register their email ID 
with the Company or KFin. Requests can 
be emailed to cscecl@cec.coromandel-
group.com or einward.ris@kfintech.com 
or by registering with the first holder 
PAN at https://kprism.kfintech.com/
signup. Existing users can login through 
KPRISM (https://kprism.kfintech.com/). All 
updation has to be done through ISR Forms 
as prescribed by SEBI.

11.	Members whose names appears in the Register 
of Members / List of Beneficial Owners as on the  
cut-off date only i.e., Wednesday, 10th 
September 2025 shall be entitled to vote on the 
resolution set out in this Notice. A person who 
is not a Member as on the cut-off date should 
treat this Notice for information purpose only.

12.	Instructions for remote e-voting

i.	 In compliance with the provisions of Sections 
108 and 110 of the Act read with the Rules 
and General Circular No. 09/2024 dated 19th 
September, 2024, other Circulars issued by 
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) 
from time to time, and Circular No. SEBI/
HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/133 dated 
3rd October, 2024 issued by the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) (“the 
Circulars”), as amended and Regulation 
44 of the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing 
Regulations”), as amended from time to 
time, the Company is providing facility to 
the Members to exercise voting through 
electronic voting system (“remote e-voting”) 
on the e-voting platform is provided by KFin. 
The Members may cast their votes remotely, 
using remote e-voting only on the dates 
mentioned hereunder. The instructions for 
remote e-voting forms part of this Notice.

ii.	 Facility to exercise vote through remote 
e-voting will be available during the 
following period:
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Commencement of 
Remote e-voting

End of Remote 
e-voting

12th September 2025 17th September 2025
iii.	 The remote e-voting module shall be 

disabled by KFin for voting thereafter. 
Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the 
Member, the Member shall not be allowed 
to change it subsequently or cast the vote 
again.

iv.	 During the above period, Members of the 
Company holding shares either in physical 
form or in dematerialised form, as on 
Wednesday, 10th September 2025, i.e., 
cut-off date, may cast their vote by remote 
e-voting. 

v.	 Mrs. Vidhya Sivakumar, of M/s. Vidhya 
Associates (M. No. A17092 ; COP: 7282) is 
appointed as the Scrutinizer for conducting 
the Postal Ballot only through remote 
e-voting process in a fair and transparent 
manner. The Scrutinizer’s decision on the 
validity of remote e-voting will be final.

vi.	 The process and manner for remote e-voting 
is as under:

a.	 In compliance with the provisions of Section 
108 of the Act, Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 
2014, as amended from time to time, 
Regulation 44 of the Listing Regulations 
read with SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/
CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated  
9th December, 2020 relating to ‘e-voting 
Facility Provided by Listed Entities’ (“SEBI 

e-voting Circular”) the Members are 
provided with the facility to cast their 
vote electronically, through the remote 
e-voting services provided by KFin, on the 
resolutions set forth in this Notice. The 
instructions for remote e-voting are given 
herein below.

b.	 E-voting process has been enabled for all 
the individual demat account holders, by 
way of single login credential, through 
their demat accounts / websites of 
Depositories / DPs in order to increase 
the efficiency of the voting process.

c.	 Individual demat account holders would 
be able to cast their vote without having 
to register again with the E-voting 
Service Provider (“ESP”) thereby not only 
facilitating seamless authentication but 
also ease and convenience of participating 
in e-voting process. Members are advised 
to update their mobile number and 
e-mail ID with their DPs to access e-voting 
facility.

d.	 The process and manner of remote 
e-voting is explained below:

i.	 Access to Depositories e-voting 
system in case of individual Members 
holding shares in demat mode.

ii.	 Access to KFin e-voting 
system in case of Members 
holding shares in physical and  
non-individual Members in demat 
mode.
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l. Access to Depositories e-voting system in case of individual Members holding shares in demat mode.

Type of Member Login Method

Individual Members 
holding securities in 
demat mode with 
NSDL

For OTP based login you can click on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/
evoting/evotinglogin.jspYou will have to enter your 8-digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, 
PAN No., Verification code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP received on registered 
email id/mobile number and click on login. After successful authentication, you 
will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. 
Click on the company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be 
re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

1.	 Existing Internet-based Demat Account Statement (“IDeAS”) facility Users:
1.	 Visit the e-services website of NSDL https://eservices.nsdl.com  either on 

a personal computer or on a mobile.
2.	 On the e-services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under 

“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. Thereafter enter the 
existing user id and password.

3.	 After successful authentication, Members will be able to see  
e-voting services under ‘Value Added Services’. Please click on “Access to 
e-voting” under e-voting services, after which the  
e-voting page will be displayed.

4.	 Click on company name i.e. Coromandel Engineering Company Limited 
or ESP i.e. KFin.

5.	 Members will be re-directed to KFin’s website for casting their vote during 
the remote e-voting period.

2.	 Those not registered under IDeAS:
1.	 Visit https://eservices.nsdl.com for registering.
2.	 Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at https://eservices.nsdl.

com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
3.	 Visit the e-voting website of NSDL https://www.evoting.nsdl.com.
4.	 Once the home page of e-voting system is launched, click on the icon 

“Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder / Member’ section. A new 
screen will open.

5.	 Members will have to enter their User ID (i.e. the sixteen digit demat 
account number held with NSDL), password / OTP and a verification code 
as shown on the screen.

6.	 After successful authentication, Members will be redirected to NSDL 
Depository site wherein they can see e-voting page.

7.	 Click on company name i.e Coromandel Engineering Company Limited 
or ESP name i.e KFin after which the Member will be redirected to ESP 
website for casting their vote during the remote e-voting period.

8.	 Members can also download the NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” 
facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting 
experience.
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Type of Member Login Method
Individual 
Members holding 
securities in demat 
mode with CDSL

1.	 Existing user who have opted for Electronic Access To Securities Information 
(“Easi/ Easiest”) facility:

i.	 Visit https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Home/Login or www.cdslindia.
com.

ii.	 Click on New System Myeasi.

iii.	 Login to Myeasi option under quick login.

iv.	 Login with the registered user ID and password.

v.	 Members will be able to view the e-voting Menu.

vi.	 The Menu will have links of KFin e-voting portal and will be redirected to the 
e-voting page of KFin to cast their vote without any further authentication.

2.	 User not registered for Easi/ Easiest

i.	 Visit https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiRegistration or 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiestRegistration for 
registering.

ii.	 Proceed to complete registration using the DP ID, Client ID (BO ID), etc. 

iii.	 After successful registration, please follow the steps given in point  
no. 1 above to cast your vote.

3.	 Alternatively, by directly accessing the e-voting website of CDSL

i.	 Visit www.cdslindia.com.

ii.	 Provide demat account number and PAN.

iii.	 System will authenticate user by sending OTP on registered mobile and email as 
recorded in the demat Account.

iv.	 After successful authentication, please enter the e-voting module of CDSL. Click 
on the e-voting link available against the name of the Company, viz. ‘XXXXXXXX’ 
or select KFin.

v.	 Members will be re-directed to the e-voting page of KFin to cast their vote 
without any further authentication.

Individual 
Members login 
through their 
demat accounts / 
website of DPs

i.	 Members can also login using the login credentials of their demat account through 
their DPs registered with the Depositories for e-voting facility.

ii.	 Once logged-in, Members will be able to view e-voting option.

iii.	Upon clicking on e-voting option, Members will be redirected to the NSDL / CDSL 
website after successful authentication, wherein they will be able to view the 
e-voting feature.

iv.	Click on options available against ‘Coromandel Engineering Company Limited’or 
‘KFin’.

v.	 Members will be redirected to e-voting website of KFin for casting their vote 
during the remote e-voting period without any further authentication.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID / Password are advised to use Forgot user ID 
and Forgot Password option available at respective websites.
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Helpdesk for Individual Members holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login 
through Depository i.e., NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details
Securities held 
with NSDL

Please contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at 
toll free no.: 1800 102 0990 and 1800 22 4430

Securities held 
with CDSL

Please contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at  
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022-62343625, 022-62343626, 022-
62343259 

II.	 Access to KFin e-voting system in case of members holding shares in physical and non-individual 
members in demat mode.

Members whose e-mail IDs are registered with the Company / DPs, will receive an e-mail from KFin 
which will include details of E-Voting Event Number (EVEN), USER ID and password. They will have to 
follow the following process:

i.	 Launch internet browser by typing the URL: https://emeetings.kfintech.com.

ii.	 Enter the login credentials (i.e., User ID and password). In case of physical folio, User ID will be EVEN 
(E-Voting Event Number) xxxx, followed by folio number. In case of Demat account, User ID will be 
your DP ID and Client ID. However, if you are already registered with KFin for e-voting, you can use 
your existing User ID and password for casting the vote.

iii.	 After entering these details appropriately, click on “LOGIN”.

iv.	 You will now reach password change Menu wherein you are required to mandatorily change your 
password. The new password shall comprise of minimum 8 characters with at least one upper case 
(A- Z), one lower case (a-z), one numeric value (0-9) and a special character (@,#,$, etc.,). The system 
will prompt you to change your password and update your contact details like mobile number, e-mail 
ID etc. on first login. You may also enter a secret question and answer of your choice to retrieve your 
password in case you forget it. It is strongly recommended that you do not share your password with 
any other person and that you take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

v.	 You need to login again with the new credentials.

vi.	 On successful login, the system will prompt you to select the “EVEN” i.e., ‘Coromandel Engineering 
Company Limited’ and click on “Submit”

vii.	 On the voting page, enter the number of shares (which represents the number of votes) as on the 
Cut-off Date under “FOR/AGAINST” or alternatively, you may partially enter any number in “FOR” 
and partially “AGAINST” but the total number in “FOR/ AGAINST” taken together shall not exceed 
your total shareholding as mentioned herein above. You may also choose the option “ABSTAIN”. If 
the Member does not indicate either “FOR” or “AGAINST” it will be treated as “ABSTAIN” and the 
shares held will not be counted under either head.

viii.	Members holding multiple folios/demat accounts shall choose the voting process separately for 
each folio/ demat accounts.

ix.	 In case you do not desire to cast your vote, it will be treated as abstained.

x.	 You may then cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option and click on “Submit”.

xi.	 A confirmation box will be displayed. Click “OK” to confirm else “CANCEL” to modify. Once you have 
voted on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. During the voting period, 
Members can login any number of times till they have voted on the resolution.
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General Guidelines for Members:

Institutional members (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/
JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution / Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signatures of the 
duly authorised signatory(ies) who are authorised to vote on their behalf. The documents should be emailed 
to einward.ris@kfintech.com with the subject line “Coromandel Engineering Company Limited, AGM  -18th 
September 2025”.

In case of any query and/ or assistance required, Members may refer to the Help & Frequently Asked 
Questions (“FAQs”) available at the download section of https://evoting.kfintech.com or contact  
KFin at the email ID evoting@kfintech.com or call KFin’ s toll free No.: 1800 309 4001 for any further 
clarifications/ technical assistance that may be required.
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE
STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

consultation with M/s. Nithya Gokul & Associates. 

Besides the audit services, the Company would 
also obtain permitted services which are to be 
mandatorily received from the Secretarial Auditor 
under various statutory regulations from time to 
time, for which M/s. Nithya Gokul & Associates will 
be remunerated separately on mutually agreed 
terms. 

The Board of Directors may alter and vary the 
terms and conditions of appointment, including 
remuneration, in such manner and to such extent 
as may be mutually agreed with the Secretarial 
Auditor. 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 
(KMP) and their relatives are, in any way, concerned 
or interested in the resolution at Item No. 3 of the 
accompanying Notice. The Board recommends 
the Ordinary Resolution at Item No. 3 of the 
accompanying Notice for approval by the Members 
of the Company.

Item No: 4 

As per the provisions of Section 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), transactions with 
related parties which are on an arm’s length 
basis and in the ordinary course of business, are 
exempted from the obligation of obtaining prior 
approval of shareholders. However, Regulation 
23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’), as 
amended, any transactions with a related party 
shall be considered material, if the transaction(s) 
entered into/to be entered into individually or 
taken together with the previous transactions 
during a financial year exceeds 1,000 Crores or 10% 
of annual consolidated turnover of the Company 
as per the last audited financial statements of the 
Company, whichever is lower, and shall require 
prior approval of shareholders by means of an 
ordinary resolution. The said limits are applicable, 
even if the transactions are in the ordinary course 
of business of the company concerned and at an 
arm’s length basis. 

Item No. 3

Pursuant to recent amendments to Regulation 
24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing 
Regulations), a listed entity is required to appoint 
a Secretarial Audit firm for up to two terms of five 
consecutive years, subject to the approval of its 
Members at their Annual General Meeting. 

In this regard, based on the recommendation of 
the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors, at its 
meeting held on August 13, 2025, approved the 
appointment of M/s. Nithya Gokul & Associates, 
Practicing Company Secretaries (FCS No.9221, 
CP No. 10804), as the Secretarial Auditor for five 
years commencing from financial year 2025-2026 
to financial year 2029-2030, subject to Members’ 
approval, after taking into account the eligibility of 
the firm’s qualification, experience, independent 
assessment, competency and Company’s previous 
experience based on the evaluation of the quality 
of audit work done by them in the past. 

The Company has received a consent letter, 
confirming their willingness to undertake the 
Secretarial Audit and issue the Secretarial Audit 
Report in accordance with Section 204 of the Act 
along with other applicable provisions, if any, under 
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended 
M/s. Nithya Gokul & Associates, hereby affirms its 
compliance with Regulation 24A(1B) of the Listing 
Regulations in providing services to the Company. 

Further, M/s. Nithya Gokul & Associates confirms 
that they hold a valid peer review certificate issued 
by ICSI and it fulfills all eligibility criteria and has not 
incurred any disqualifications for appointments, as 
outlined in the SEBI circular dated December 31, 
2024. 

The Board of Directors has approved remuneration 
of ` 1,00,000/- plus applicable taxes and out of 
pocket expenses for financial year 2025-2026 
and for subsequent 4 years of term, such fee be 
payable as may be determined by the Board, 
based on recommendation of Audit Committee in 
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Additionally, SEBI vide its circular dated 08th April, 
2022 also clarified that “In order to facilitate listed 
entities to align their processes to conduct AGMs 
and obtain omnibus shareholders’ approval for 
material RPTs it has been decided to specify that 
the members approval of omnibus RPTs approved 
in an AGM shall be valid upto the date of the next 
AGM for a period not exceeding fifteen months 
and in case of omnibus approvals for material RPTs, 
obtained from members in General Meetings other 
than AGMs, the validity of such omnibus approvals 
shall not exceed one year”.

Given the nature of the industry, the Company 
works closely with its related parties  to achieve 
its business objectives and enters into various 
operational transactions with its related parties, 
from time to time, in the ordinary course of 
business and on arm’s length basis.

It is in the above context that, Resolution No(s). 6 
is placed for the approval of the Members of the 
Company. Your Company seeks approval of the 
Members of the Company in terms of Regulation 
23 of the Listing Regulations, by way of passing of 
an Ordinary Resolution to the aforesaid Material 
Related Party Transactions to be entered from 77th 
Annual General Meeting [18th September 2025] till 
the date of 78th Annual General Meeting. 

The relevant information pertaining to transactions 
with Promoter and Promoter Group as required 
under Rule 15 of Companies (Meetings of Board 
and its Powers) Rules, 2014, as amended and 
pursuant to the SEBI Master Circular No. dated 
November 11, 2024, are as follows:

1.	 Summary of information provided by the 
management to the Audit Committee:

a.	 Name of the related party and its 
relationship with the listed entity or its 
subsidiary, including nature of its concern or 
interest (financial or otherwise): Sri Lakshmi 
Ammal Educational Trust along with the 
educational institutions and organizations 
affiliated under  the  said  Trust (under 
the same PAN). Nature of relationship: 
Managing Trustee of the trust is the 
Promoter of the Company.

b.	 Type/Nature, material terms, monetary 
value and particulars of contracts or 

arrangement: Subject to the approval 
of the members, the Audit Committee 
at its meeting held on 13th August 2025 
has granted its omnibus approval to the 
related party transaction with Sri Lakshmi 
Ammal Educational Trust along with the 
educational institutions and organizations 
affiliated under  the  said  Trust, for sale of 
services from the 77th Annual General 
Meeting (18th September 2025) to 78th 
Annual General Meeting.

c.	 Value of Contract: The aggregate value of 
the proposed operational transaction is 
upto Rs. 200 Crores.

d.	 Tenure of the transaction: 15 months

e.	 Value of Transaction: Rs. 200 Crores (Rupees 
Two Hundred Crores Only)

f.	 Percentage of annual consolidated turnover 
of the Company considering FY24 as the 
immediately preceding financial year: In 
excess of 10% of the annual turnover of 
the Company FY 2024-25 as per the last 
audited financial statements.

2.	 Justification for the transaction: Company 
operates in construction industry. The 
Promoter Group is associated with affiliated 
initiatives and educational institutions that 
require the construction of hostels, classrooms, 
and related infrastructure. This transaction 
is aligned with the Company’s expertise in 
the construction industry and supports the 
development of these facilities, thereby 
contributing to the growth of leveraging the 
Company’s core capabilities.

3.	 Details of transaction relating to any loans, 
inter-corporate deposits, advances or 
investments made or given by the listed entity 
or its subsidiary: - Not applicable

a.	 Details of the source of funds in connection 
with the proposed transaction

 b.	 where any financial indebtedness is incurred 
to make or give loans, inter-corporate 
deposits, advances or investments - nature of 
indebtedness; - cost of funds; and – tenure

c.	 applicable terms, including covenants, tenure, 
interest rate and repayment schedule, whether 
secured or unsecured; if secured, the nature of 
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security

d.	 the purpose for which the funds will be utilized 
by the ultimate beneficiary of such funds 
pursuant to the RPT

e.	 A statement that the valuation or other external 
report, if any, relied upon by the listed entity 
in relation to the proposed transaction will 
be made available through registered email 
address of the shareholder

f.	 Percentage of counterparty’s annual 
consolidated turnover that is represented by 
the value of the proposed RPT, on a voluntary 
basis

g.	 Name of the director or key managerial 
personnel who is related, if any and nature of 
relationship

h.	 Any other information that may be relevant 
- All important information forms part of the 
Explanatory Statement setting out material 
facts of the proposed RPT.

Item 3 (a) to 3 (h) - Not applicable

The Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their 
relatives holding shares of the Company may be 
deemed to be concerned or otherwise interested 
in the said Ordinary Resolution only to the extent 
of their shareholding. 

All related parties of the Company, irrespective 
of whether he/she/ entity is a party interested in 
the above transactions or not, will not vote on this 
resolution. Hence, the Promoter(s) and promoter 
group companies shall abstain from voting for this 
resolution.

Item No:5

As per the provisions of Section 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), transactions with 
related parties which are on an arm’s length 
basis and in the ordinary course of business, are 
exempted from the obligation of obtaining prior 
approval of shareholders. However, Regulation 
23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’), as 
amended, any transactions with a related party 
shall be considered material, if the transaction(s) 
entered into/to be entered into individually or 
taken together with the previous transactions 

during a financial year exceeds 1,000 Crores or 10% 
of annual consolidated turnover of the Company 
as per the last audited financial statements of the 
Company, whichever is lower, and shall require 
prior approval of shareholders by means of an 
ordinary resolution. The said limits are applicable, 
even if the transactions are in the ordinary course 
of business of the company concerned and at an 
arm’s length basis. 

Additionally, SEBI vide its circular dated 08th April, 
2022 also clarified that “In order to facilitate listed 
entities to align their processes to conduct AGMs 
and obtain omnibus shareholders’ approval for 
material RPTs it has been decided to specify that 
the members approval of omnibus RPTs approved 
in an AGM shall be valid upto the date of the next 
AGM for a period not exceeding fifteen months 
and in case of omnibus approvals for material RPTs, 
obtained from members in General Meetings other 
than AGMs, the validity of such omnibus approvals 
shall not exceed one year”.

Given the nature of the industry, the Company 
works closely with its related parties  to achieve 
its business objectives and enters into various 
operational transactions with its related parties, 
from time to time, in the ordinary course of 
business and on arm’s length basis.

It is in the above context that, Resolution No(s). 5 
is placed for the approval of the Members of the 
Company. Your Company seeks approval of the 
Members of the Company in terms of Regulation 
23 of the Listing Regulations, by way of passing of 
an Ordinary Resolution to the aforesaid Material 
Related Party Transactions to be entered from 77th 
Annual General Meeting [18th September 2025] till 
the date of 78th Annual General Meeting. 

The relevant information pertaining to transactions 
with and a company in which Director or his 
relative is interested as required under Rule 15 
of Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) 
Rules, 2014, as amended and pursuant to the SEBI 
Master Circular dated November 11, 2024, are as 
follows:

1.	 Summary of information provided by the 
management to the Audit Committee:

a.	 Name of the related party and its 
relationship with the listed entity or its 
subsidiary, including nature of its concern 
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or interest (financial or otherwise): Unnmaii 
Financial Services Private Limited Nature of 
relationship: A private company in which 
a relative of Managing Director of the 
company is a member and director.

b.	 Type/Nature, material terms, monetary 
value and particulars of contracts or 
arrangement: Subject to the approval 
of the members, the Audit Committee 
at its meeting held on 13th August 2025 
has granted its omnibus approval to the 
related party transaction with Unnmaii 
Financial Services Private Limited, for 
obtaining unsecured Loan in tranches 
upto a maximum of Rs.10 Crores during 
the period starting from the 77th Annual 
General Meeting (18th September 2025) to 
78th Annual General Meeting.

c.	 Value of Contract: Not applicable

d.	 Tenure of the transaction: 15 Months

e.	 Value of Transaction: Rs.10 Crores (Rupees 
Ten Crores)

f.	 Percentage of annual consolidated turnover 
of the Company considering FY24 as the 
immediately preceding financial year: In 
excess of 10% of the annual turnover of the 
Company FY 2024-25 as per the last audited 
financial statements.

2.	 Justification for the transaction: For the purpose 
of meeting working capital requirements, 
based on the approval of the Audit Committee, 
the Board of Directors has approved obtaining 
an unsecured loan from the said related 
party and recommended the same for the 
Shareholders for its approval.

3.	 Details of transaction relating to any loans, 
inter-corporate deposits, advances or 
investments made or given by the listed entity 
or its subsidiary: - Not applicable

a.	 Details of the source of funds in connection 
with the proposed transaction

 b.	 where any financial indebtedness is incurred 
to make or give loans, inter-corporate 
deposits, advances or investments - nature of 
indebtedness; - cost of funds; and – tenure

c.	 applicable terms, including covenants, tenure, 
interest rate and repayment schedule, whether 
secured or unsecured; if secured, the nature of 
security

d.	 the purpose for which the funds will be utilized 
by the ultimate beneficiary of such funds 
pursuant to the RPT

e.	 A statement that the valuation or other external 
report, if any, relied upon by the listed entity 
in relation to the proposed transaction will 
be made available through registered email 
address of the shareholder

f.	 Percentage of counterparty’s annual 
consolidated turnover that is represented by 
the value of the proposed RPT, on a voluntary 
basis

g.	 Name of the director or key managerial 
personnel who is related, if any and nature of 
relationship

h.	 Any other information that may be relevant 
- All important information forms part of the 
Explanatory Statement setting out material 
facts of the proposed RPT.

Item 3 (a) to 3 (h) - Not applicable

	 The Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or 
their relatives holding shares of the Company 
may be deemed to be concerned or otherwise 
interested in the said Ordinary Resolution only 
to the extent of their shareholding. 

	 All related parties of the Company, irrespective 
of whether he/she/ entity is a party interested 
in the above transactions or not, will not vote 
on this resolution. Hence, the Promoter(s) and 
promoter group companies shall abstain from 
voting for this resolution

FOR & ON BEHALF THE BOARD

Place: Chennai	 G V MANIMARAN

Date: 13th August, 2025	 CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR

	 DIN: 09707546
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ITEM NO : 2 - DETAILS AS REQUIRED UNDER REGULATION 36(3) OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND 
DISCLOSURE  REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 & CLAUSE 1.2.5 OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON 
GENERAL MEETINGS

Name DR. ENNARASU KARUNESAN
DIN 00200432
Date of Birth 27/07/1966
Age 59
Nationality Indian
Date of Appointment 12th November 2024
Qualification B.E (Mechanical), MBA, PhD in Maritime Management
Nature of expertise in specific functional area Dr Ennarasu Karunesan has more than 35 years of 

Leadership in the Maritime sector, including 25 years 
as President, Director & CEO, Chief Executive and Chief 
Advisor in the Global Ports and Logistics system

Disclosure of relationship between Directors 
inter se

Nil

Name of the Listed entities in which the person 
also holds the Directorship and the membership 
of committees of the Board along with the listed 
entities from which the person has resigned in 
the past three years.

Other Listed Companies: Nil

Membership in Committee of Coromandel Engineering 
Company Limited

a.	 Member of Audit Committee 
b.	 Chairman of Stakeholders Relationship 

Committee
c.	 Member of Technical Committee

Shareholding of Non-Executive Director in 
the Listed Entity including shareholding as a 
beneficial owner

Nil

In case of independent directors, the skills 
and capabilities required for the role and the 
manner in which the proposed person meets 
such requirements.

-

Details of Remuneration sought to be paid No remuneration excepting the sitting fees for attending 
the meeting of the Directors and Committees

Details of Remuneration last drawn -
Date of first appointment on the Board 12/11/2024
Number of Equity shares held 0
Number of meetings of the board attended 
during the year

4

Chairman / Member in committees of Other 
entities 

NIL

Listed Entities from which the Director has 
resigned in past three years

NIL
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ITEM NO 3:  - DETAILS AS REQUIRED UNDER REGULATION 36(3) OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND 
DISCLOSURE  REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 & CLAUSE 1.2.5 OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON 
GENERAL MEETINGS

Background of the Firm

•	 Mrs. Rajmohan Nithya of M/s. Nithya Gokul & Associates, Practising Company Secretary, has been 
a trusted name in Corporate Law, offering specialized services. With a dedicated team of young 
executives and professional associates, Ms. Rajmohan Nithya provides a fresh perspective to 
secretarial complexities and compliance with all the required compliances under Companies Act 2013 
and other statutory laws. From legal drafting and compliance to corporate restructuring to navigate 
the intricacies of corporate governance with honesty and integrity 

Website: https://nithyagokul.in/ 

Tenure Consideration

•	 Any association of an individual/firm as Secretarial Auditor before March 31, 2025, shall not be 
considered for computing tenure under Regulation 24A of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Peer Review & Eligibility

•	 The firm holds a valid Certificate of Peer Review No. 3662/2023 issued by ICSI and has confirmed 
eligibility for appointment for a five-year term at the proposed remuneration of ` 1,00,000/- plus 
applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses for financial year 2025-2026 and for subsequent 4 years 
of term, such fee be payable as may be determined by the Board on recommendation of the Audit 
Committee

•	 The firm has also confirmed that:

	 The appointment is within prescribed limits under the Companies Act, Rules, and SEBI Listing 
Regulations.

	 They are not disqualified under applicable provisions.

Scope of Services

•	 Services to be rendered fall within the purview of SEBI Listing Regulations, SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/
CFD/CFD-PoD-2/CIR/P/2024/185 dated December 31, 2024, and FAQs dated April 23, 2025.
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